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SUMMARY 
 

Care UK’s financial results for the year ended 30 September 2014 are overall in line with expectations and 
remain consistent with prior year, after adjusting for expected new build start-up losses. 
 
The refinancing of the Group’s borrowings in July has set a stable, long-term capital structure to support 
growth investment as well as reducing debt servicing costs. 
 
Despite continued market regulatory and staffing challenges, the Residential Care Services division is 
returning to historic levels of regulatory quality compliance and labour cost. The new build programme is 
progressing as planned. 
 
Health Care has made good progress with its Secondary and Primary Care services, but improvement 
has been slower for Urgent Care services. The pre-election political context for the NHS is inhibiting short 
term growth prospects and investment in business development cost is being reduced accordingly. 
 
Performance in Community Services has been mixed, with consistent performance in Learning Disabilities 
being offset by lower profitability in Care at Home as a consequence of tight public sector funding 
restricting our ability to cover labour cost inflation through price increases. 
 
The outlook is expected to be one of steadily improving performance in Residential Care, as occupancy 
levels increase as planned in new homes, with progress being maintained in Health Care. Concern 
remains with market pressures for Care at Home. To underpin progress and planned reduction in 
leverage levels, a significant cost reduction programme is being implemented, along with the disposal of 
the freehold interest in three new build care homes (within the independent development group, Silver 
Sea) to reduce net debt within the bond group and demonstrate the inherent value generation of this 
investment programme. 

 
 

 Group Highlights (all figures and percentages below are quoted, unless stated, as excluding the 
effects of IFRIC 12). 

o Operational performance has been generally positive throughout the group, despite market 
conditions across the sector remaining challenging, both in terms of continuing pressure on 
public sector spending and increased quality and regulatory compliance requirements. Some 
services continue to experience pricing restrictions causing a drag on EBITDA progression; in 
particular in Health Care, due to reductions in tariff, and Care at Home, as National Minimum 
Wage increases are not matched by increases in funding. 

o Organisational changes are being implemented in the Care UK Group and Health Care 
divisional functional overheads to both reflect the operating divisions becoming increasingly 
self-sufficient and the limited opportunities currently available from large scale NHS reform 
projects. The combined annualised savings from these two initiatives is expected to be in 
excess of £10 million. 

o Care UK’s independent development group, Silver Sea, has reached agreement on the sale 
of three of its care homes, enabling the repayment of Care UK’s capital contribution to the 
development group of approximately £20 million. The cash returned will be held within the 
Bond Group to reduce net debt and corresponding leverage. On a Bond Group basis, Care 
UK will continue to operate these three homes under the same long term lease arrangements. 
There is no plan to dispose of more freehold care home assets.  

 
o Social Care 

 The Residential Care Services division continues to deliver its planned growth with 
total beds in the division having increased by 10.3 per cent. to 6,944 as at 30 
September 2014: 

 Strong progress in the greenfield programme: 

o Demand for services at these facilities is encouraging and occupancy 
build up, together with other key operating metrics, is in line with our 
expectations for newly opened care homes and therefore on track to 
deliver planned mature EBITDA. Nine greenfield care homes opened 
in the year ended 30 September 2014, adding 697 beds in 
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aggregate, with a further 60 bed home opened in October 2014 in 
Stansted Mountfitchet, Essex. The new build greenfield programme 
remains strong with a further nine home openings anticipated through 
to 30 September 2016. 

o These new home openings are aimed at the private pay market.  
Even though these homes are yet to collectively achieve mature 
occupancy levels, this has already driven an increase in the 
percentage of revenue derived from self-funding residents to 
approximately 32 per cent. in the year ended 30 September 2014 
(2013: 26 per cent.), demonstrating good progress with one of Care 
UK’s strategic growth initiatives. 

 The Suffolk contract: 

o Three of the new build Suffolk homes also opened in the second half 
of the year ended 30 September 2014, facilitating the closure of four 
old homes resulting in a small net increase in overall bed numbers. 
As planned, this programme does result in a temporary reduction in 
EBITDA whilst the new homes progress to full occupancy. 

o The transitional programme for relocating our residents to the newly 
built homes is inherently complex and high profile locally. We 
experienced operational implementation challenges at the first new 
home to be commissioned, Mildenhall Lodge; however, we are 
making good progress in fully addressing these issues, which have 
not been experienced in opening the other three new homes. As part 
of their routine inspection activity, CQC has inspected 12 of the 14 
homes that we run in Suffolk and they have found 11 to be fully 
compliant, a ratio far better than CQC inspection outcomes for all 
providers nationally and regionally. 

o Five new homes are now open with the commissioning programme 
for the remaining five homes being slightly extended to reflect 
experience. These are now planned to open during the 2015 
calendar year. This is expected to have a modest implication for 
planned EBITDA progression. 

 Average weekly fee rates across all homes increased by 5.0 per cent. in the 
year ended 30 September 2014. This rise was due in part to the higher fee 
rates applying to the new build homes, together with a weekly fee increase of 
2.7 per cent. in the mature homes portfolio as a result of the increased levels 
of care required by the residents, as well as the application of block contract 
indexation mechanisms. 

 Consistent with the sector, labour cost as a percentage of revenue was 
higher than in the prior year.  However, as a result of significant operational 
focus on labour cost reduction in the second half of the year, these are now 
back in line with the lower levels seen at the start of the year.  Detailed 
operational plans are in place to further reduce agency costs whilst 
maintaining staffing levels that support the provision of high quality care. 

 Within Residential Care Services the level of full CQC compliance is at 84 per 
cent., a significant improvement over the past year and a level that compares 
favourably to peers and overall industry levels published on CQC’s website. 

 The Community Services division has had a challenging year with the Care at Home 
market suffering continued local authority funding pressure. In particular, the level of 
profitability now being achieved by the Care at Home service is marginal. Despite 
this, the Community Services division has made some good progress: 

 The transition of the supporting living Doncaster contract is complete and 
progress in migrating from a very traditional service to a more progressive 
‘enabling’ service has been praised by Doncaster Council and CQC. The 
associated workforce dispute has recently been satisfactorily settled. 

 A new Care at Home contract with Nottinghamshire County Council mobilised 
in July 2014 with an initial transfer of service users. Currently delivering 
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approximately 5,000 hours per week and steadily building to an expected 
9,000 hours of care per week by the end of Q2 FY2015. 

 In November 2014 a recently won contract with London Borough of Hillingdon 
started delivering care at home to service users and is anticipated to reach 
4,500 hours per week at full maturity. 

 Within the residential learning disability service, average occupancy rates 
increased by 0.8 per cent. in the year to 93.6 per cent. and are currently 
running at a historical high of 95.5 per cent. Quality of care within this division 
is good, with current levels of full CQC compliance at 87 per cent. for Care at 
Home branches and 100 per cent. compliant for Learning Disabilities 
services. 

o Health Care 

 To respond to the current political environment which is inhibiting opportunities for 
short to medium term growth from large scale outsourcing contracts, we are resizing 
our overheads as described within the Group highlights above.   

 During the year, we also completed a service line restructure that resulted in the 
Mental Health division being absorbed into the Secondary Care sub-segment and the 
combination of the formerly separate Primary Care and Urgent Care sub-segments 
into an enlarged Primary Care sub-segment, generating synergy savings. This 
supports our Quality and Business Excellence Programme, whilst at the same time 
retaining our status as a low cost provider in each of our target markets. 

 We have seen strong organic growth in the Secondary Care sub-segment, driven by 
elective surgery procedure volumes across the 10 treatment centres operated by 
Care UK.  In addition a minor injury unit contract in Southampton commenced in 
August 2014. 

 Within Offender Health, we were successful in securing contracts for Pentonville 
prison, alongside the existing services provided at Brixton prison as part of an 
enlarged and extended contract. Care UK has also commenced service delivery in 
October 2014 at Dovegate prison in Staffordshire under a newly won five year 
contract. However, we chose to relinquish the North East prison contract as re-
procurement would no longer provide an acceptable margin and we have been 
unsuccessful in retaining Belmarsh prison following a recent tender process. 

 The NHS 111 service operated by Care UK continues to be operationally stable. 
During the year, changes were implemented to enable networking of its care 
response centres, which is now complete for three of the four centres, facilitating  
more efficient staffing structures and a reduction in the overall cost base. Further 
planned operational efficiency improvements will strengthen the financial 
performance and enable the expected mature EBITDA to be achieved. This is 
expected to result in an even greater level of structural cost competitiveness in the 
111 market. 

 The Mental Health service, through its joint venture entity with the Sussex Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust, recently opened a new complex care recovery service in 
Horsham, West Sussex, with 24 beds. Occupancy growth in this service, as with our 
three other new mental health hospitals, is progressing steadily 

 The levels of full CQC compliance across our Health Care services is 96 per cent. 
and 100 per cent. in our Mental Health services 

 

 Financial Highlights 

o Group 

 Total Revenue increased 10.4 per cent. to £728.1 million. 

 Adjusted EBITDA £52.8 million. Consistent with prior year when adjusted for 
residential care new home start-up losses of £3.6 million to give a pro-forma Adjusted 
EBITDA of £56.4 million compared to £57.1 million on a like-for-like basis (2013: 
£56.2 million, start- up losses £0.9 million). 
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 Operating cash generation remains strong at £46.9 million for the year ended 30 
September 2014, compared prior year of £46.1 million after adjusting for acquisition 
related outflows incurred in the year ended 30 September 2013. 

 In July 2014, the Group successfully completed a full refinancing of its borrowings, 
incorporating a two tier floating rate bond issue of £400.0 million in aggregate and a 
revised RCF structure that reduces total availability from £115.0 million to £65.0 
million. Whilst this has added around £27 million to net debt levels through 
redemption and transaction costs, ongoing debt servicing costs will reduce by 
approximately £8-10 million annually. 

 LTM EBITDA decline over recent quarters is attributable to a combination of the 
expected start-up losses on new home openings, increased labour cost in the mature 
residential portfolio (now reversing) and margin pressure in the Care at Home 
service. This EBITDA decline and the incremental £45.6 million of net debt, of which 
£27 million relates to the Group refinancing redemption and transaction costs, has 
combined to increase short term financial leverage until the latent benefits are 
realised from the new greenfield home programme, cash from the Silver Sea home 
disposals, and the overhead resizing programme outlined above. 

 On a pro-forma basis, adjusting for new care home start-up losses (but making no 
allowance for expected future positive EBITDA), LTM Adjusted EBITDA to net debt as 
at 30 September 2014 was 6.72x. The reported leverage ratio was 7.18x.  

   
o Social Care 

 Residential Care Services division generated revenue growth of £24.9 million or 12.5 
per cent., driven by the 15 new greenfield homes built in the last three financial years 
and the homes transferred from Suffolk County Council. 

 Average weekly fees increased 5.0 per cent. in the year ended 30 September 2014 
due to a combination of the impact of the new greenfield homes that are focused on 
self-pay and fee accretion in the mature portfolio. 

 Community services division revenue increased 2.3 per cent., predominantly due to 
the effect of the Doncaster contract and a small supported living acquisition made in 
the year ended 30 September 2013, offsetting a decline in the care at home service 
due to the continued impact of local authority funding pressures. 

 
o Health Care  

 Revenue grew by £40.7 million (12.4 per cent.) from organic growth in offender 
health, elective surgery and the NHS 111 service, plus the effect of the two strategic 
acquisitions, Harmoni and UKSH, in Q1 and Q2 of FY13 respectively.   

 Adjusted EBITDA grew by £6.1 million (24.2 per cent.), mainly driven by growth in 
elective surgery activity and new contracts in offender health, offset by margin 
pressure in some urgent care contracts. 
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS 
 

Appointment of Chief Financial Officer 

Following the resignation of Paul Humphreys for personal reasons, who formally left the business on the 7th 
October 2014, Care UK has appointed Phil Whitecross as CFO effective from 12 December 2014. Phil has 
been with Care UK since 2012 in the role of Group Commercial Director and Managing Director of the 
Community Services division since May 2014, a responsibility he will retain going forward. Phil will be 
supported by Nicola Grimes, Group Finance Director. The next phase of our development in the health and 
social care sectors carries very real opportunities, as well as some challenges. Phil’s exceptional track record 
of both operational and financial leadership within health and social care services will continue to bring real 
benefit to commissioners and to colleagues across our organisation. His permanent appointment represents a 
very positive step for Care UK. 

Organisational Review 
As reported in the “Summary” section, a series of organisational changes have been initiated in the 

Care UK Group and Health Care functional overheads. This reflects the operating divisions becoming 
increasingly self-sufficient and the limited opportunities currently available from large scale NHS reform. The 
actions being undertaken include the resizing of the group and divisional support functions by devolving 
responsibility and thereby reducing the overall overhead base. The plans are designed to empower 
operational teams and create closer connections through locating support functions closer to those delivering 
care. The combined annualised savings from these two initiatives is expected to be in excess of £10 million 
and underpins progress to deliver the planned reduction in leverage. 

 
Freehold care Home Disposal 

Silver Sea (Care UK’s independent development group) has reached agreement with a third party 
investor on the sale of three freehold properties. Of the sale proceeds, approximately £20 million will flow into 
the Bond Group repaying Care UK’s investment in the development of these properties and again supporting 
the planned reduction in leverage. On a Bond Group basis Care UK will continue to operate these homes 
under the same long term lease arrangements. 

 
Contract wins 

In October 2014, we commenced service delivery at Dovegate Prison in Staffordshire under a newly 
won five year contract. However, we chose to relinquish the North East prisons contract as re-procurement 
would no longer provide an acceptable margin. In addition, we have been unsuccessful in retaining Belmarsh 
prison following a retender process. 

 
Within our Community Services division, in November 2014 we have won a contract with London 

Borough of Hillingdon to deliver care at home to service users. This contract is anticipated to deliver 4,500 
hours of care per week at full maturity. 

 
Suffolk Care Home Contract 

Since 30 September 2014, Care UK has opened two new care homes within the Residential Care 
Services division under the Suffolk contract, bringing the total of new homes opened under this contract to five 
(out of ten to be built in total). The new homes are in Framlingham, with 30 beds being opened as the first 
phase of a total 60 bed home, and the second in Lowestoft, with 80 beds. As a consequence of these 
openings, three of the originally transferred 16 homes have recently been closed, with 106 beds in total, 
bringing the total of closed homes to eight. Good progress continues to be made in respect of the remaining 
five new homes, which are now all in construction. 

 
New Greenfield Care Home 

Care UK has opened a further new care home within the Residential Care Services division in 
October 2014. Mountfitchet House near Stansted, Essex is a 60 bed facility, which is orientated towards self-
funding residents and is focused on dementia care. 
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STRATEGY 

Care UK’s strategy is to be the leading provider of outsourced health and social care services to the public 
in the United Kingdom, by delivering high quality services cost efficiently. The key elements of Care UK’s 
strategy are: 

• Continue to leverage its leading market positions.  Care UK intends to continue to leverage its 
leading market positions in both the health and social care markets, and the spread of its operations to 
target the most attractive outsourcing opportunities available to it. Care UK also intends to take advantage 
of the extensive expertise and experience it has gained as one of the leading independent sector 
providers of outsourced health care services to the NHS in England to pursue further such opportunities in 
health care, where currently only around three per cent. of NHS funded health care services are estimated 
to be outsourced to independent sector providers. 

• Continue to deliver profitable growth.  Care UK intends to continue to deliver profitable growth, 
principally through expanding and growing its range of care services dedicated to more intensive and 
higher dependency conditions, such as dementia, where Care UK generates higher margins, and 
pursuing increased outsourcing opportunities, particularly in health care where it expects to see increased 
benefits from greater scale. Furthermore, Care UK intends to maintain its strong operating cash flows and 
balance sheet ratios through the efficient management of its working capital. 

• Continue to deliver high levels of service quality and patient satisfaction.  Care UK believes 
that the recognised quality of its services is a key advantage in a market where consumer expectations of 
quality are increasing and regulatory standards are becoming more stringent. 

• Develop a strong customer service capability for the self-pay market.  Care UK is growing 
the level of its social care services funded by self-pay service users, in line with the expected direction for 
social care funding generally in the UK. In order to do so, Care UK has invested, and will continue to 
invest, in customer service and marketing capability to be able to provide a compelling service proposition 
to self-pay customers. 

• Focus on EBITDA improvement and cash generation to reduce leverage.  We continue to 
focus on EBITDA improvement and cash generation through the combination of realising the benefits of 
the capital investments made to date in actual and planned new services, managing the level of future 
capital expenditure, strong working capital management and further cost reduction and operational 
efficiency improvement initiatives. We have invested £76.4 million of expansionary capital expenditure in 
the period from 1 October 2011 to 30 September 2014 both to create a number of high quality new 
services and to implement a range of new contracts across the group. Due in part to our well-invested 
asset base, we also expect to benefit from our stable maintenance capital expenditure levels, which 
typically represent under 2 per cent. of revenue. Historically, our working capital levels have also been 
carefully controlled. We will also continue to take advantage of cost-reduction and operational efficiency 
improvement opportunities that may be available, including headcount reductions, particularly within our 
overhead cost base such as those implemented recently as referred to in the “Summary” above. We 
believe that our focus on EBITDA improvement and cash generation should enable us to reduce our 
leverage in the future, particularly as we start to realize the anticipated benefits from our capital 
investment programme in the next two financial years. 
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COMPETITIVE SRENGTHS 

Care UK’s business benefits from a number of competitive strengths, including: 

• Leading market positions and broad range of services.  Care UK is a significant independent 
sector provider of health care services to the NHS in England and a leading provider of social care 
services in the United Kingdom. With 113 care homes providing 7,008 beds, and around 600 day care 
places, Care UK is one of the five largest operators of care homes for older people in the United Kingdom 
measured by bed numbers, with a strong focus on high dependency care, in particular dementia and 
related conditions. Care UK is also one of the five largest providers of community services in the United 
Kingdom measured by the number of hours of care delivered, providing around 150,000 hours of care per 
week to a range of service users including both older people and people with learning disabilities. 
Following the acquisitions of Harmoni and UKSH in November 2012 and February 2013 respectively, 
Care UK is now the leading provider of elective surgical procedures out of hours care and offender health 
services to the NHS in England, as well as having established a strong market position in the provision of 
the NHS 111 non-emergency service. Consequently, among independent providers of health and social 
care services in the United Kingdom, Care UK provides the broadest range of services. Care UK has an 
extensive network of health and social care facilities across the United Kingdom. It believes that its 
leading market positions, broad range of services and scale and scope of its operations enable it to focus 
on the most attractive outsourcing opportunities, benefit from economies of scale and adjust quickly to any 
changes in the UK Government’s health and social care agenda. 

• Strong, contracted revenue streams with a high degree of visibility and high cash 
conversion ratio.  In the year ended 30 September 2014, over 87 per cent. of Care UK’s revenue was 
derived from publicly funded entities in the United Kingdom. This provides Care UK with a strong, 
contracted revenue stream and high visibility with respect to future revenue for the term of these 
contracts. Care UK estimates that the total of Care UK’s forward contracted revenue at 30 September 
2014, including forward revenue at the preferred bidder stage, was approximately £1.29 billion. Care UK 
also benefits from attractive working capital conditions as Care UK’s primary customers are various 
publicly funded entities who typically pay relatively promptly, on average within 30-45 days of the billing 
date. In addition, Care UK has relatively modest maintenance capital expenditure requirements. 

• Strong track record of winning and managing health and social care contracts.  Care UK 
has a strong track record of winning and managing contracts to provide health and social care services to 
the public sector. Based on this strong track record and a number of long-standing customer relationships 
Care UK believes that it is well-positioned to take advantage of the trend towards increased outsourcing of 
health and social care services, notwithstanding the significant change that the commissioning of health 
care services has undergone during 2013 and 2014, which is yet to fully stabilise. For example, within the 
Community Services division care at home contracts with Nottinghamshire County Council and London 
Borough of Hillingdon commenced in July 2014 and November 2014 respectively. Care UK’s Health Care 
division commenced operating new offender health contracts at Pentonville prison, alongside an extended 
contract at Brixton prison, in May 2014. More recently, services at Dovegate Prison commenced in 
October 2014. A new Minor Injuries Unit contract in Southampton within the Health Care division became 
operational in August 2014. 

• Strong commitment to quality.  Care UK has historically achieved industry leading ratings for 
both service quality and patient satisfaction metrics. The majority of Care UK’s services are now assessed 
by the CQC, which monitors all registered services across a range of standards, focused around outcome 
based measurements, in order to assess provider compliance. CQC inspections assess the outcomes 
that are inspected as being either compliant or non-compliant, with a service being rated as fully compliant 
if no non-compliant outcomes are observed. The overall level of compliance varies across the group but 
as of November 2014, the overall group compliance level stood at 85 per cent., being the proportion of all 
sites inspected that have been assessed as fully compliant. The overall level of fully compliant services in 
England stood at approximately 65 per cent. as at 31 March 2014 as disclosed in the CQC’s publicly 
available Annual Report for 2013/2014. Of the more than 1,200 outcomes assessed by CQC in their 
inspections of Care UK services, almost 95 per cent. were rated as compliant. Of the non-compliance 
outcomes 95.3 per cent. were classified minor or moderate by the CQC. All non-compliances are taken 
seriously by Care UK, with immediate action plans put in place to rectify any concerns as quickly as 
possible. Care UK’s health care services have a proven record of positive clinical outcomes and 
significantly higher scores than the top 20 per cent. of NHS hospitals on several service quality and 
patient satisfaction metrics. 
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• Strong asset backing.  Care UK operates around 280 facilities across the United Kingdom. As of 
30 September 2014, the group’s total property, plant and equipment assets, before applying IFRIC 12, 
amounted to £308.8 million. This includes the freehold and long-term leasehold properties within the 
Residential Care Services and Mental Health divisions that were independently valued by Knight Frank in 
February 2010, which resulted in a valuation surplus of approximately £85 million against their then book 
value. Moreover, we invested £76.4 million of expansionary capital expenditure in the period from 
1 October 2011 to 30 September 2014 to create a number of high quality new services across the group, 
which has further improved the group’s asset base. 

• Experienced and proven management team.  Care UK has benefited over the past twelve 
years from the extensive experience and industry know-how of its senior management team, led by Chief 
Executive Mike Parish, who joined Care UK in 2001, and from the former Group Finance Director Paul 
Humphreys, who joined in 2002 and has subsequently stepped down for personal reasons from the 
position on the 7 October 2014. Phil Whitecross has replaced Paul Humphreys, as Chief Financial Officer 
on 12 December 2014. Phil, who has been with Care UK since 2012, has an exceptional track record of 
both operational and financial leadership within health and social care services. Mike Parish has both 
chaired and participated in a number of industry forums for both the Department of Health and the 
independent sector and is a trustee and Non-Executive Director of the NHS Confederation. The senior 
management of Care UK currently holds 19.7 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital of Care UK 
Health & Social Care Holdings Limited, the Company’s ultimate parent company. 

• Strong support from principal shareholder.  Care UK benefits from the relationships, 
investment experience and knowledge of its sponsor, Bridgepoint, one of Europe’s leading mid-market 
private equity managers with a longstanding track record of investing in European businesses and 
significant knowledge and track record in the social care and health care markets. Bridgepoint has 
significant experience delivering improved strategy, operations and management within its portfolio 
businesses. Bridgepoint holds 79.4 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital of Care UK Health & 
Social Care Holdings Limited. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
This Annual report includes statements that are forward-looking in nature. Forward-looking statements 

are subject to known and unknown risks and uncertainties and are based on potentially inaccurate 
assumptions that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expected or implied by the forward-
looking statements. Care UK’s actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in its forward-
looking statements for many reasons, including the factors described in the section entitled ‘‘Risk Factors’’ in 
this annual report. In addition, even if Care UK’s actual results are consistent with the forward looking 
statements contained in this offering memorandum, those results or developments may not be indicative of 
results or developments in subsequent periods. 

 
The risks described in the “Risk Factors” section of this annual report are not exhaustive. Other 

sections of this annual report describe additional factors that could adversely affect Care UK’s business, 
financial condition or results of operations. Moreover, Care UK operates in a very competitive and rapidly 
changing environment. New risk factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for Care UK to predict 
all such risk factors, nor can it assess the impact of all such risk factors on its business or the extent to which 
any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any 
forward-looking statements. Given these risks and uncertainties, users of this annual report and the financial 
statements contained therein should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements as a prediction 
of actual results. 
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CERTAIN DEFINITIONS 
 
In this Annual report: 

• “2010 Notes” means the £325,000,000 9¾ per cent. Senior Secured Notes due 1 August 2017 
issued by Care UK Health & Social Care Plc in July 2010 and November 2012; 

• “2014 Notes” means together, the £325,000,000 floating rate Senior Secured First Lien Notes 
due 2019 and £75,000,000 floating rate Second Lien Notes due 2020 issued by Care UK Health 
& Social Care Plc on 17 July 2014; 

• “Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Facility Agreement” means the agreement between 
the Issuer, Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited, the Subsidiary Guarantors, 
Citibank N.A., London Branch, HSBC Bank plc, ING Bank N.V., London Branch and Credit 
Suisse AG, London Branch for the provision of up to a £65 million (subject to increase in certain 
circumstances) revolving credit facility, as amended from time to time. See “Description of Other 
Indebtedness”; 

• “Amended Revolving Credit Facility” or “Amended RCF” means the revolving credit facility 
established under the Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Facility Agreement, as amended 
from time to time; 

• “Board” or “Directors” means the Board of Directors of Care UK Health & Social Care 
Investments Limited; 

• “Bridgepoint” means Bridgepoint Advisers Limited, acting as manager for and on behalf of the 
limited partnerships comprising Bridgepoint Europe IV Fund; 

• “Care UK” means the Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited group or the 
operational business thereof as the context determines; 

• “CCG” means Clinical Commissioning Group;  

• “Company” means Care UK; 

• “CQC” or “Care Quality Commission” means the entity that regulates, inspects and reviews care 
services in England; 

• “Department of Health” or “DoH” means the United Kingdom Department of Health; 

• “EU” means the European Union; 

• “Executive Directors” means the executive directors of Care UK Health & Social Care 
Investments Limited; 

• “Executive Management Team” means Mike Parish and Phil Whitecross; 

• “Harmoni” means Care UK (Urgent Care) Holdings Limited, previously called HWH 
Group Limited; 

• “IFRS” means International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union; 

• “Issuer” means Care UK Health & Social Care plc; 

• “Local Authorities” means local councils throughout the United Kingdom; 

• “LTM” means Last Twelve Months; 

• “NHS” or “NHS England” means the National Health Service in England; 

• “Original Revolving Credit Facility” or “Original RCF” means the revolving credit facility 
established under the Senior Revolving Facility Agreement; 

• “PCTs” means Primary Care Trusts; 

• “Refinancing” means the issue of the 2014 Notes, the repurchase and redemption of all 
outstanding 2010 Notes and the amendments to the Amended and Restated Senior Revolving 
Facility Agreement and the Intercreditor Agreement. 

• “Security Agent” means ING Bank N.V., London Branch; 

• “Senior Revolving Facility Agreement” means the agreement between the Issuer, Care UK 
Health & Social Care Investments Limited, the Subsidiary Guarantors, Citibank N.A., London 
Branch, HSBC Bank plc, ING Bank N.V., London Branch and Lloyds TSB Bank plc for the 
provision of up to £115.0 million revolving credit facility in two tranches, as amended prior to the 
date of execution of the Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Facility Agreement; 

• “Trustee” means Citibank N.A., London Branch; 

• “UK” or “United Kingdom” means the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland; “UK 
Government” means the government of the United Kingdom; and 

• “UKSH” means Care UK (UKSH) Limited’, previously called UK Specialist Hospitals Limited; 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 
The following discussion and analysis of Care UKôs financial condition and results of operations 

should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and unaudited pro-forma 
supplementary condensed consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto contained in this 
Annual report. The following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks 
and uncertainties. For the reasons explained under ñForward-looking Statementsò and ñRisk Factorsò Care 
UKôs future results may differ materially from those expected or implied in these forward-looking statements. 
 

The financial information in this report comprises two elements for Care UK Health & Social Care 
Investments Limited and its subsidiaries: (i) the audited consolidated financial statements and (ii) the 
unaudited pro-forma supplementary condensed consolidated financial statements before giving effect to the 
provisions of IFRIC 12. The commentary included within this section of the Annual report primarily discusses 
the financial condition and results of operations before giving effect to the provisions of IFRIC 12. In addition, 
a short separate discussion and analysis is provided dealing with the group results on a fully compliant IFRS 
basis, including the effects of applying IFRIC 12. For further information on IFRIC 12 and a brief description of 
the most significant line items that are included in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive performance, 
including a definition of non-IFRS financial measures used by Care UK, including amongst others Adjusted 
EBITDA, refer to ñPresentation of Financial Informationò on page 45. 

 
Overview 

Care UK is a significant independent sector provider of health care services to the NHS in England 
and a leading provider of social care services in the United Kingdom operating from around 280 facilities 
across the United Kingdom. Care UK considers itself to be the most diversified provider in terms of nature and 
variety of care services offered across both the social and the health care markets in the United Kingdom, 
which provides Care UK with multiple opportunities for growth, not least in the potential to integrate services. 
Care UK believes that no other social and health care provider can match the breadth of services, which span 
residential and assisted home care, learning disabled and mental health support, secondary and primary 
health care, and urgent care services.  

 

Social Care Health Care 

 Residential Care: Care homes (113 homes with 
around 7,000 beds) providing both residential and 
nursing care for older people, particularly those 
suffering from dementia and related conditions 

 

 Community Services: Care worker visits and 
live-in support for people in their own homes, 
facilitating daily living needs and promoting 
independence (around 150,000 care hours per 
week delivered to more than 10,000 people plus 
133 residential learning disability places) 

 Broad range of health care services centred 
around the key service streams: 

o Primary Care (e.g. prison healthcare, GP 
services, out of hours support and the NHS 
111 service) 

o Secondary Care (e.g. hospital based elective 
surgery, “CATS” contracts and support for 
enduring mental health conditions) 

 Around 100 operating locations  

 Almost 16 million patients treated or supported 
annually by the Health Care division 
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Key figures, in £ million Q4 / 2013 Full Year 2013 Q4 / 2014 Full Year 2014 

Revenue 178.5 659.6 182.5 728.1 

Adjusted EBITDA 
1
 19.8 56.2 14.5 52.8 

Adjusted operating profit 
1
 12.7 30.8 5.9 20.8 

Net loss for the period (2.7) (30.3) (31.9) (61.0) 

Operating cash flow 28.8 31.1 12.8 46.9 

1
See Non-IFRS Financial Measures 

 
 

 

Financial leverage As of and for the 12 month period ended 

Amounts in £ million 

31 
December 

2013 

31 
March 

2014 

30 
June 
2014 

30 
September 

2014 

Adjusted EBITDA 60.5 62.2 58.1 52.8 

Net debt 339.7 338.2 341.0 378.9 

Net debt / Pro-forma Adjusted EBITDA
2
 5.53x 5.28x 5.58x 6.72x 

Net debt / Adjusted EBITDA 5.61x 5.44x 5.87x 7.18x 
2
 Net debt / Pro-forma Adjusted EBITDA, excluding new home start-up losses in the Residential Care Services division.  

 
 
Significant Factors Affecting Care UKôs Results of Operations 

The following is a summary of the most significant factors affecting Care UK’s results of operations 
that are described in the commentary below. They should not be considered an exhaustive list and should be 
considered along with other sections of this annual report in particular “Risk Factors” and “Business” that 
describe additional factors that may affect the results of Care UK. 
 
Social Care 

The main drivers affecting results of operations in the social care businesses are: 

 the number of beds and the occupancy rates at Care UK’s care homes; 

 the hours of care provided to service users within their own homes; 

 the prevailing fee rates for all such services; and  

 the level of operating expenses, particularly staff costs. 
 
Health Care 

The main drivers affecting results of operations in the health care businesses are: 

 Care UK’s ability to win new contracts; 

 its continued operation of existing facilities and contracts; 

 the level of patient volume and Care UK’s ability to attract patients within the Secondary Care 
services market; 

 the number of patients who choose or are directed to use Care UK’s Primary and Urgent Care 
services; 

 the number of beds, occupancy rates, and prevailing fee rates at Care UK’s mental health 
facilities; 

 the impact of new business and organic growth in certain services; 

 the impact of the transition of Wave II ISTCs to the expected post-contract commercial 
arrangements; 

 the level of operating expenses, particularly staff costs and business development costs; and 

 the level of delivery of benefits from both the service line reorganisation and broader 
overhead restructuring programme. 

 
Effect of Increases in Staff Costs and Other Costs 

Care UK’s results of operations are significantly affected by cost levels, in particular staff costs. Care 
UK’s staff costs include wages and salaries, social security costs and pension costs. In common with other 
providers in the health and social care sector, Care UK’s employed staff base is supplemented by agency 
staff and, on certain contracts within the Health Care division, both by staff seconded from the NHS and by 
self-employed medical professionals. 

 
As outlined in “Recent Developments”, Care UK’s staff costs will be affected by the implementation of 

the organisational changes that are anticipated to deliver in excess of £10 million savings annually. 
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Other operating costs consist primarily of costs relating to medical services and consumables, 
property services and facilities management costs, utilities, food and other variable expenses and rent. 

 
Care UK’s operating sites have historically reflected a mix of freehold and leasehold tenure and the 

level of rent payable on the leasehold interests has not represented a material cost to Care UK. Going 
forward, Care UK expects that the proportion of leaseholds will increase and that, as a consequence, rent will 
become a more important element of the overall operating cost base of Care UK’s services. 

 
Government Policy 

In Health Care, Care UK’s strategy is predicated upon the increasing involvement of independent 
sector operators in providing health care services to NHS patients. Care UK has positioned its elective 
surgery centres to compete for patients making their choice of hospital directly through the Choose and Book 
system via a competitive market. Other than these centres, further growth in the Health Care division is 
generated primarily by winning new contracts to provide various services to NHS patients. If the 
UK Government were to open further areas of health care services, such as operating and managing full 
service hospitals or the outsourcing of community health services, Care UK’s scope for future growth would 
substantially increase. Likewise, if the UK Government were to reverse the policies promoting either the 
competitive market or general outsourcing of health care services, Care UK’s operations would be likely to be 
impacted. Following the passing of the Health & Social Care Act in 2012 (“HSCA”), the commissioning of 
health care services has been transferred from Primary Care Trusts to the combination of Clinical 
Commissioning Groups, national and regional NHS Commissioning Boards under NHS England and Local 
Area Teams.  

 
As part of the changes engendered by the HSCA the body that has historically regulated NHS 

Foundation Trusts, Monitor, has been given wider responsibility to act as economic and market regulator for 
all providers of health care services to the NHS, including independent sector providers. Monitor has 
introduced licensing for providers of certain health care services during 2014 and Care UK, in common with 
other independent sector providers, will be required to obtain appropriate licenses for the future provision of 
such services. Care UK has registered with Monitor and the application process is ongoing. Care UK has no 
reason to believe that there will be any difficulty in obtaining any licences should they become necessary. 

 
As part of its austerity measures, the current Government has reduced the level of central funding 

provided generally to Local Authorities. The specific decisions regarding how Local Authorities react to this 
reduced level of funding are the responsibility of each Local Authority but social care services have seen a 
reduction in spending over the past two years and further cuts in Local Authority spending on such services 
are expected over at least the next two years. The impact of the reduced spending on social care services has 
been seen by Care UK most notably within the domiciliary care service within the Community Services 
division, although other services have also seen some effects. 
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Results of Operations for the Years Ended 30 September 2013 and 30 September 2014 
The following table sets out the key line items from the Consolidated statement of comprehensive 

performance for the years ended 30 September 2013 and 30 September 2014. The figures shown as 
Adjusted for IFRIC 12 are audited figures; those shown as excluding IFRIC 12 are not classed as audited. 
 

Consolidated statement of comprehensive 
performance  

Year ended 30 September 

(Audited) (Unaudited) 

Adjusted for IFRIC 12 Excluding IFRIC 12 

 2013 

£m 

2014 

£m 

2013 

£m 

2014 

£m 

Revenue 657.2 725.8 659.6 728.1 

Cost of sales (570.5) (642.5) (572.4) (642.2) 

Gross profit 86.7 83.3 87.2 85.9 

Administrative expenses (95.2) (102.1) (94.7) (101.5) 

Operating loss before financing expenses (8.5) (18.8) (7.5) (15.6) 

Adjusted EBITDA 53.4 48.1 56.2 52.8 

Depreciation of tangible assets (23.1) (30.1) (25.4) (32.0) 

Adjusted operating profit 30.3 18.0 30.8 20.8 

Amortisation of intangible assets (20.6) (21.3) (20.1) (20.9) 

Impairment of intangible assets (1.8) - (1.8) - 

Non-recurring items (16.4) (13.0) (16.4) (13.0) 

IAS 17 lease expense - (2.4) - (2.4) 

Less: Share of joint venture EBITDA - (0.1) - (0.1) 

Operating loss before financing expenses (8.5) (18.8) (7.5) (15.6) 

Financial income 2.1 2.9 0.9 1.8 

Financial expenses (36.6) (58.3) (36.6) (58.3) 

Net financing expenses (34.5) (55.4) (35.7) (56.5) 

Share of results of joint venture - (0.3) - (0.3) 

Loss before taxation (43.0) (74.5) (43.2) (72.4) 

Taxation 12.9 12.0 12.9 11.4 

Loss for the period (30.1) (62.5) (30.3) (61.0) 

 
Year ended 30 September 2014 compared to the year ended 30 September 2013 

Following an organisational restructuring programme that commenced in June 2014, Care UKôs 
Mental Health division, previously reported in the óOtherô segment, was absorbed into the groupôs Secondary 
Care sub-segment of the Health Care division resulting in three ongoing operating divisions: Residential Care 
Services, Community Services, and Health Care. Following this change, information in respect of the óOtherô 
segment provided within this Management discussion & analysis comprises the Amicus ITS business and 
costs in respect of the groupôs central functions. The full year results for the year to 30 September 2014, 
together with the comparative results for the year ended 30 September 2013, are reported under the revised 
structure. Quarterly segmental results for the year to 30 September 2014 are also provided under the new 
structure (see page 27). 

 
Revenue 

Revenue increased by 10.4 per cent., or £68.5 million, from £659.6 million for the year ended 30 
September 2013 to £728.1 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. Approximately 33 per cent. of this 
increase is a result of the acquisitions of Harmoni and UKSH in November 2012 and February 2013 
respectively, as the 2013 comparative does not include a full year contribution from either. A further 
approximate 25 per cent. of the increase is attributable to the new homes opening programme in the 
Residential Care Services division across the three years ended 30 September 2012, 2013 and 2014, with an 
aggregate of 15 new homes opened. Other than these acquisition and new build related contributions, the 
majority of the increases in revenue for the year ended 30 September 2014 compared with the year ended 30 
September 2013 has been delivered from organic growth initiatives, winning new contracts, particularly in 
offender health and the Suffolk contract in the Residential Care division, and implementing the 111 contracts 
that were acquired with the Harmoni business but were not operational at that time. The organic and new 
contract related growth in the Health Care division more than offsets a reduction in revenue from the out of 
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hours primary care contracts that were expected as a result of the impact of the new 111 service and the loss 
of an out of hours contract in Sussex. In the year ended 30 September 2014, over 87 per cent. of revenue 
was derived from contracts with publically funded entities, with the remainder derived from self-paying 
individuals in Care UK’s social care businesses. 
 

The following table shows a breakdown of revenue by segment for each of the periods reported, in 
absolute numbers and as a percentage of group revenue. 

 

Revenue For the year ended 30 September 

 2013 2014 % Change 

 
(£ in millions, except 

%) 
(£ in millions, except 

%)  

Residential Care Services 199.1 30.2% 224.0 30.8% 12.5% 

Community Services 119.2 18.1% 122.0 16.8% 2.3% 

Health Care 329.4 49.9% 370.1 50.8% 12.4% 

Other 11.9 1.8% 12.0 1.6% 0.8% 

Total 659.6 100.0% 728.1 100.0% 10.4% 

 
Revenue for the Residential Care Services division increased by 12.5 per cent., or £24.9 million, from 

£199.1 million for the year ended 30 September 2013 to £224.0 million for the year ended 30 September 
2014. Approximately 70 per cent. of the increases in revenue is attributable to the new greenfield homes 
opened in the three years ended 30 September 2012, 2013 and 2014. Nine of these greenfield care homes 
have opened in the year ended 30 September 2014 and have contributed revenue of £5.9 million for the year 
ended 30 September 2014. The Suffolk contract accounts for an increase in revenue of £3.1 million in the 
year ended 30 September 2014 compared with the year ended 30 September 2013 although mainly as a 
result of the revenue step up from the take on of the former 16 homes which commenced in December 2012. 
As expected, the revenue growth contribution from the Suffolk contract has begun to reduce and will continue 
to do so in the short term as we work towards the progressive closure of the existing Suffolk homes, and 
occupancy begins to build in the new build homes that have a significantly higher proportion of non-contract 
beds. The mature homes in the division, including the former Southern Cross homes, contributed increased 
revenue of £4.3 million in the year ended 30 September 2014 compared with the year ended 30 September 
2013 largely as a result of fee rates increases. 
 

As at 30 September 2014 Care UK operated 6,944 beds across 113 care homes and an additional 
607 day care places, including those places within the Suffolk County Council (“SCC”) homes. Measured by 
bed numbers, Care UK remains one of the five largest operators of care homes. This increase in capacity of 
647 beds resulted largely from the nine new greenfield development homes opened during the year which 
added 697 beds, complimented with a net increase in beds under the Suffolk contract across the year of 62. 
Two homes closed during the year ended 30 September 2014 with an aggregate loss of 106 beds from the 
portfolio. One home that suffered from subsidence now has a long-term solution agreed with the property 
owner, and the other, which was fully contracted, was handed back to the local authority following mutual 
agreement by both parties that the home was neither operationally or financially sustainable. Other net 
movements in bed numbers reflect small configuration changes in certain homes.  

 
The nine new greenfield homes were all developed without any underlying block contract in place as 

part of Care UK’s extensive greenfield development programme. The demand for services at these new 
facilities is encouraging and occupancy ramp-up, together with other key operating metrics, in line with our 
expectation for newly opened care homes. Four of these homes were developed by the independent and 
separately financed development group (see “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions”), which 
has now developed seven of the new care homes opened by Care UK since January 2013. In each case, 
Care UK has entered into an operating lease on completion of the properties. Since 30 September 2014 a 
further care home with 60 beds has opened in Stansted, Essex and a further four greenfield sites are in 
various phases of construction with several more approved, subject either to final commercial negotiations 
and/or the receipt of satisfactory planning permission. Three of the further four homes in construction are 
being developed by the independent development group referred to above with the remaining one being 
developed by third party developer. Care UK intends to enter into an operating lease for the homes once they 
are completed. 

 
Three of the ten Suffolk new build care homes opened prior to 30 September 2014 with two more 

opening in October and November. The remaining five in the programme have all received planning 
permission and are currently under construction. A total of eight of the originally transferred homes have now 
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closed, five prior to 30 September 2014 and three since. The new build homes are being funded by 
institutional funders with Care UK entering into an operating lease for each home once it is completed. 

 
The homes recently opened and the currently planned homes are purpose built predominantly to care 

for dementia and other high dependency service users, but they will have the flexibility to convert beds to 
provide other care home services where required. It typically takes 21 to 24 months for newly opened care 
homes to reach their targeted occupancy levels depending on the size and type of service. 

 
As at 30 September 2014, 32.7 per cent. of all beds were operated under block contracts compared 

with 38.0 per cent. as at 30 September 2013. This aspect of Care UK’s residential care business is 
considered to provide a clear competitive advantage to most other providers in the residential care market, 
who do not have the necessary capabilities to compete for such block contracts.  

 
Fee rates across all homes in the year ended 30 September 2014 averaged £709 per week compared 

with £675 per week in the year ended 30 September 2013, a total increase of 5.0 per cent. The increase is in 
part due to the higher fee rates applying to the new build and recently opened homes across the three years 
ended 30 September 2012, 2013 and 2014, which are more focused on the self-pay market with higher 
dependency needs, including dementia and other related conditions. Self-funding residents accounted for 
approximately 32 per cent. of total revenue in the year ended 30 September 2014 compared with 
approximately 26 per cent. of total revenue in the year ended 30 September 2013, reflecting the greater 
orientation of newer services towards self-funding residents. As contracts with self-paying individuals typically 
generate higher fee rates than contracts with publicly funded bodies, even after allowing for the change in void 
risk, Care UK intends gradually to shift the mix of its services in the Residential Care Services division towards 
a higher proportion of self-funded care whilst still seeking opportunities for the further provision of beds under 
public sector block contracts where available. The mature portfolio average weekly fee rate increased by 
approximately 2.7 per cent. in the year ended 30 September 2014, reflecting the application of block contract 
indexation mechanisms, negotiated spot rate increases where obtainable, the fee rate increases achieved in 
April 2014 and the increasing level of dependency, in particular dementia and other related conditions, 
typically evident in the service users being cared for. The average fee rates applying to the beds operated 
under the Suffolk contract will have a dilutive impact in the short-term as the private offering in the new homes 
ramps up, but the contract overall will be enhancing to the average weekly fee rate due to the higher 
proportion of self-pay in the new homes. 

 
Physical occupancy in the mature Care UK homes, excluding the Suffolk County Council contracted 

homes and the new homes opened in the three years ended 30 September 2012, 2013 and 2014,  averaged 
87.5 per cent. in the year ended 30 September 2013, the same level as in the  year ended 30 September 
2013. Likewise, the average mature financial occupancy, measured on the same basis and reflecting the 
proportion of beds paid for, remained unchanged at 91.3 per cent. for the years ended 30 September 2013 
and 30 September 2014. Total physical occupancy across the entire Care UK portfolio, and including the 
Suffolk homes, was 82.2 per cent. in the year ended 30 September 2014 compared with 84.6 per cent. in the 
year ended 30 September 2013. The overall reduction in occupancy is primarily caused by the 12 new homes 
opened since 1 January 2013, which are still in their initial occupancy ramp-up phase. The Suffolk contract will 
also have an additional short-term dilutive impact during the transitional occupancy ramp due to the lower 
proportion of contracted beds and overall increase in bed numbers for the new homes compared with the 16 
originally transferred homes. Physical occupancy within the Suffolk homes portfolio reduced from 87.7 per 
cent. in the year ended 30 September 2013 to 84.0 per cent. in the year ended 30 September 2014 as three 
of the new build homes opened in the latter part of 2014. 

 
In addition to the revenue that the Residential Care Services division earns directly for the provision of 

bed capacity and the related services, a small amount of revenue is also earned for higher levels of personal 
care, typically called “one to one” care and also for the provision of day care places to older persons within the 
local community who do not require permanent residential or nursing care. 
 

Revenue for the Community Services division increased by 2.3 per cent., or £2.8 million, from £119.2 
million for the year ended 30 September 2013 to £122.0 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. This 
increase largely reflects the contribution from the Doncaster learning disabilities contract that commenced in 
September 2013 and the Living Ambitions business acquired in April 2013, which together added revenue of 
£8.1 million in the year ended 30 September 2014 compared with the year ended 30 September 2013. This 
more than offsets the revenue reduction arising from the impact of continued Local Authority funding 
pressures, which are resulting both in fewer people receiving care funding and reductions in the size of 
funding packages. This is acutely more evident in the care at home service where the weekly average number 
of hours of care provided by Care UK in September 2014 has reduced by approximately 6.0 per cent. 
compared to the average hours delivered in September 2013, however Care UK remains one of the five 
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largest providers of community services in the United Kingdom. Despite this back drop Care UK has been 
successful in winning new care at home business; within the final quarter of the year ended 30 September a 
contract with Nottinghamshire County Council commenced that will deliver an estimated 9,000 hours of care 
per week at full maturity. In addition, a contract with London Borough of Hillingdon has mobilised since the 
year end which is anticipated to deliver 4,500 hours of care per week at full maturity. 

 
The total number of hours delivered per week within the Community Services division averaged 

approximately 155,000 throughout the year, compared with an average of 151,000 in the year ended 30 
September 2013, an increase of 2.6 per cent. This increase reflects the positive impact of the Doncaster 
contract and the Living Ambitions acquisition with a partial offset from volume reductions arising in the care at 
home service outlined above. Care UK continually assesses contract viability in this challenging market and 
where the economic reality of service provision does not allow sustainable operational or financial 
performance, Care UK will seek to address and work with commissioners of these services to identify other 
ways in which the services could potentially be delivered, or if no viable alternative solution, terminated. 

 
Average fee rates in the Community Services division for the year ended 30 September 2014 were 

£13.68 per hour compared with £13.66 per hour in the year ended 30 September 2013. The marginal increase 
is attributable to mix effects across the portfolio rather than absolute fee rate increases. As at 30 September 
2014 a total of 133 residential learning disabilities beds were operated, the same number as 30 September 
2013, with average occupancy for the year ended 30 September 2014 of 93.6 per cent. and average fee rates 
of approximately £1,766 per week. In the year ended 30 September 2013 average occupancy was 92.8 per 
cent. and average fee rates £1,786 per week. The marginal decrease in fee rates in this part of the business 
reflects a shift in the mix of acuity levels of service users being referred into the service by commissioners, 
rather than like for like reductions in price. 

 
Revenue for the Health Care division that is wholly derived from Clinical Commissioning Groups, NHS 

England or the Department of Health directly for services provided entirely to NHS patients, increased by 12.4 
per cent., or £40.7 million, from  £329.4 million for the year ended 30 September 2013 to £370.1 million for the 
year ended 30 September 2014. The most significant factors contributing to this increase were the 
acquisitions of Harmoni and UKSH, the implementation of the NHS 111 service and recently won and 
implemented offender health contracts. Harmoni and UKSH were acquired in November 2012 and February 
2013 respectively and therefore did not have a full year contribution to the results for the year ended 30 
September 2013. Excluding revenue generated from NHS 111 contracts that were acquired with the Harmoni 
business but were not operational at the time, the increase in revenue from these acquisitions in the year 
ended 30 September 2014 was £22.5 million compared with the year ended 30 September 2013. 

 
The mobilisation of the NHS 111 contracts acquired, and including the impact of new contracts won 

since, contributed increases in revenue of £10.1 million in the year ended 30 September 2014 compared with 
the year ended 30 September 2013. As previously reported, the full implementation of the NHS 111 service 
results in partial revenue reduction in out of hours primary care contracts due to the transfer of the call triaging 
responsibility for inbound patient calls. In addition, an out of hours contract in Sussex/East Surrey ended in 
March 2014. The combination of these two factors resulted in revenue reduction of £6.9 million in the year 
ended 30 September 2014 compared with the year ended 30 September 2013. 

 
Revenue from offender health services has increased by £4.4 million in the year ended 30 September 

2014 compared with the year ended 30 September 2013 largely as a result of the new and extended health 
care prison contracts that have commenced in the last eighteen months. A new five year contract to deliver 
services to a prison in Staffordshire commenced in October 2014 that will add further growth. The balance of 
revenue growth in the Health Care division has arisen due to organic growth in Secondary Care services from 
an increase in elective surgery procedures across the 10 treatment centres operated by Care UK, 
notwithstanding the closure of one unit in July 2014, and from the mental health service that now forms part of 
the Health Care division following the organisational restructuring programme that commenced in June 2014. 
The new Southampton minor injuries unit has commenced service and made a small contribution in the year 
ended 30 September 2014.  

 
The mental health specialist and recovery services, excluding the service that closed during the year, 

contributed an increase in revenue of £4.4 million in the year ended 30 September 2014 compared to the year 
ended 30 September 2013. The increase was in part due to an increasing contribution from new services as 
they mature, and improved occupancy in the eating disorder rehabilitation service which typically demands 
significantly higher average fee rates. 

 
In Care UK’s mental health facilities, the average physical occupancy rates were 74.1 per cent. and 

72.5 per cent. in the years ended 30 September 2013 and 30 September 2014 respectively. The financial 
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occupancy in the mature facilities, reflecting the benefit of the block within the Mental Health division, was 
84.5 per cent. in the year ended 30 September 2013 compared with 86.5 per cent. in the year ended 30 
September 2013. The small reduction in both of these measures reflects the expected impact of the opening 
and acquisition of two new facilities during the year ended 30 September 2013 as well the impact of the 
running down of the service that closed in March 2014. This mental health facility was largely contract funded 
from the local authority and closed following redistribution by commissioners of the associated funding.  

 
Care UK’s average weekly fee rates in the Mental Health business were £2,064 in the year ended 30 

September 2014 compared with £1,880 in the year ended 30 September 2013, an increase of 9.8 per cent. 
This increase particularly reflects the business mix effect from both the new services opened in the year 
ended 30 September 2013 and an increase in occupancy in the eating disorder rehabilitation services both of 
which serve the younger end of the age scale and demand a higher intensity level of care. 

 
Care UK’s Other activities segment comprises Amicus ITS, a small IT services provider that was 

acquired with the Harmoni business in the year ended 30 September 2013, and the group’s central functions. 
Revenue within the Other segment relates solely to Amicus ITS which increased by 0.8 per cent., or £0.1 
million, from £11.9 million for the year ended 30 September 2013 to £12.0 million for the year ended 30 
September 2014. 

 
Forward Contracted Revenue 

As at 30 September 2014, Care UK has estimated forward contracted revenue amounting to 
£1.29 billion, including forward income at the preferred bidder stage. Care UK’s forward contracted income is 
calculated by multiplying the remaining life of each contract, including the minimum termination period, as 
against the revenue that the contract states will be earned for providing the services specified in the contract, 
using current prices and, to the limited extent necessary, making certain factual assumptions regarding user 
demand and delivery of services. Care UK does not take account of potential future price increases in making 
this estimate, even where specified indexation measures are used. 

The assumptions regarding the amount and timing of revenues which have been used to calculate 
forward contracted revenue may differ from the actual results reported in future periods. This difference is due 
to various factors, including, but not limited to, any failure to reach the volumes set out in Care UK’s contracts 
due to the lack of demand for those services or otherwise. In addition, amounts included in the calculation of 
forward contracted revenue may change because contracts may be varied or modified by mutual consent or 
counterparties may exercise early termination rights. As a result, the estimated forward contracted revenue as 
of any particular date may not be indicative of its actual operating results for the subsequent periods for which 
the forward contracted revenue is calculated. Forward contracted revenue provides a snapshot of committed 
revenues as at 30 September 2014 on the basis of certain assumptions and the actual revenues to be earned 
under certain contracts may be lower than the estimated amount of forward contracted revenues, and Care 
UK may in the future generate additional revenues which are not included in the estimated amount of forward 
contracted revenue as at 30 September 2014. 

Cost of Sales 
Care UK’s cost of sales increased by 12.2 per cent., or £69.8 million, from £572.4 million for the year 

ended 30 September 2013 to £642.2 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. Measured as a 
percentage of revenue, cost of sales increased from 86.8 per cent. for the year ended 30 September 2013 to 
88.2 per cent. for the year ended 30 September 2014. The increase in the absolute value of cost of sales 
reflects the increase in scale of the group’s activities, particularly the acquisitions in the Health Care division, 
the Suffolk and Doncaster contracts, and organic growth across the group’s operating divisions. A significant 
element of the increase in cost of sales as a percentage of revenue for the year ended 30 September 2014 
compared with the year ended 30 September 2013 is as a result of the increased staffing costs in a number of 
services across the Residential Care Services division as previously reported and to a lesser extent within the 
Health Care division. Within Residential Care these higher staffing costs have largely arisen in response to 
the significantly higher degree of external regulatory scrutiny being seen across the industry generally, with 
the focus being to increase service quality and assurance. The market for Health Care professionals is 
becoming increasingly more competitive, particularly for GP’s and nurses, and recruitment and retention of 
quality staff difficult due to a finite supply and NHS Trusts increasing nursing staffing levels in response to 
concerns over quality and safety of clinical services. Much of the increased staffing cost has involved the use 
of external agency staff, with a commensurate cost premium. Care UK has taken decisive operational actions 
with respect to staffing levels with the longer term aim of eliminating as much of this excess cost as possible 
whilst achieving staffing levels commensurate with the delivery of high quality services. An element of the 
remainder of the increase is due to the timing differential between the level of rent payable on the new homes 
opened in the years ended 30 September 2013 and 30 September 2014, some of which are coming to the 
end of their initial rent free periods, and the immature occupancy levels during the ramp-up period. Going 
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forward, the Suffolk contract will also have an adverse impact on the cost of sales as a percentage of revenue 
in the short-term as the new build homes come on line and occupancy within the non-contract bed offering is 
built up, similar to the profile of a greenfield home. 

 
As staff costs are such a significant proportion of our overall cost base we are constantly seeking 

innovative ways to create efficiency savings, including the use of technology. Within Community Services, we 
have recently invested in GPS technology that enables the live recording of the time a care worker has spent 
with a service user allowing billable revenue to be matched directly with care worker cost. In addition, the 
technology significantly reduces the level of administration and associated costs as well as expediting cash 
collection. The GPS technology is in the pilot phase and has been rolled out to a significant number of Care 
UK’s branches. In addition, within the Residential Services division, there is a significant operational focus on 
the reduction of labour costs, in particular the use of agency, whilst maintaining staffing levels that support the 
provision of high quality care. Detailed operational plans are in place to support this and are proving to be 
effective. 

 
Administrative Expenses 

Care UK’s administrative expenses increased by 7.2 per cent., or £6.8 million, from £94.7 million for 
the year ended 30 September 2013 to £101.5 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. 

Included within administrative expenses are non-recurring items and non-cash charges for 
depreciation, amortisation, impairment charges and IAS 17 rent charges. The charge for non-recurring items 
decreased from £16.4 million for the year ended 30 September 2013 to £13.0 million for the year ended 30 
September 2014 and includes a number of items which are explained further below with a full analysis set out 
in note 2 of the condensed Consolidated financial statements. The aggregate total for the non-cash charges 
increased from £25.3 million in the year ended 30 September 2013 to £29.0 million in the year ended 30 
September 2014. The majority of the Group’s depreciation is recognised in cost of sales but an element 
relating to centrally held fixed assets is recognised in administration expenses. This depreciation charge 
increased by £2.3 million, from £3.4 million in the year ended 30 September 2013 to £5.7 million for the year 
ended 30 September 2014, due to an increase of the charge relating to support service assets where contract 
terms are used as a basis for useful economic life as well as the roll out of a new care management system 
within the residential division. The increase of £0.8 million in the amortisation charge, from £20.1 million for 
the year ended 30 September 2013 to £20.9 million for the year ended 30 September 2014, results from a full 
year’s charge in relation to the intangible assets recognised on the acquisitions made during the year ended 
30 September 2013, in particular Harmoni and UKSH. An impairment charge of £1.8 million was recognised in 
the year ended 30 September 2013, in relation to goodwill that arose on an acquisition made by the Health 
Care division in the year ended 30 September 2011 whereby performance measures were not achieved to 
trigger the payment of contingent consideration and a reduction in goodwill was made to recognise the 
reduced carrying value of the business. No such intangible asset impairments have been recognised in the 
year ended 30 September 2014. 

 
The IAS 17 lease expense of £2.4 million in the year ended 30 September 2014 is a non-cash charge 

arising from the allocation of lease incentives on a straight line basis in accordance with IFRS. For further 
details see non-IFRS measures on page 46. The charge is in respect of a number of new care homes opened 
by the Residential Care division in the year ended 30 September 2014 and the renewal of central property 
leases. No such charge has been made in the year ended 30 September 2013. 

 
Excluding non-recurring items, depreciation, amortisation, impairment charges, and IAS 17 rent 

charges, underlying administrative expenses increased by £6.5 million from £53.0 million for the year ended 
30 September 2013 to £59.5 million for the year ended 30 September 2014, an increase of 12.3 per cent. The 
increase in the absolute value of administrative expenses in the year ended 30 September 2014 compared 
with the year ended 30 September 2013 partly reflects the overall growth in the group. Measured as a 
percentage of revenue, underlying administrative expenses increased from 8.0 per cent. for the year ended 30 
September 2013 to 8.2 per cent. for the year ended 30 September 2014.  

 
Operating Loss before Financing Expenses 

Care UK’s operating loss before financing expenses changed from £7.5 million in the year ended 30 
September 2013 to £15.6 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. This change reflects the full year 
contributions from the Harmoni and UKSH acquisitions, together with organic growth across the group, 
particularly in offender health and elective surgery, offset by a reduction in the Residential Care Services 
division as a result of the impact of the new home opening programme, a reduction in the scale of the out of 
hours business in Health Care and a reduced contribution from the Community Services division due largely 
to Local Authority funding pressures. Labour cost pressures have been felt across the group and have been 
particularly acute in the Residential Care market. In addition, investment in contract bid activity, and the 
supporting structures necessary to deliver services, has been greater this year, particularly in the Health Care 
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division as the Group considered and pursued a small number of large scale opportunities in the market. 
Aggregate non-cash depreciation, amortisation and IAS 17 rent charges have increased by £9.8 million in the 
year ended 30 September 2014 to £55.3 million compared with £45.5 million in the year ended 30 September 
2013, and is offset by a lower level of non-recurring charges. 

 
The following table shows a breakdown of operating loss before financing expenses by division for 

each of the periods indicated, in absolute numbers and as a percentage of Care UK’s operating loss before 
financing expenses.  

 

Operating profit/(loss) before 
financing expenses 

For the year ended 30 September 

2013 2014 % Change 

 (£ in millions, except %) (£ in millions, except %)  

Residential Care Services 13.1 (174.7%) (5.4) 34.6% (141.2%) 

Community Services 0.2 (2.7%) (0.7) 4.5% (450.0%) 

Health Care (11.6) 154.7% 5.1 (32.7%) 144.0% 

Other (9.2) 122.7% (14.6) 93.6% (58.7%) 

Total (7.5)  (15.6)  (108.0%) 

 
 

Operating result for Care UK’s Residential Care Services division changed from a profit of £13.1 
million in the year ended 30 September 2013 to a loss of £5.4 million for the year ended 30 September 2014, 
a reduction of £18.5 million. These changes reflect in particular the increase in non-recurring charges of £7.3 
million due mainly to the transition and service optimisation programme of the Suffolk contract, the expected 
start-up losses incurred on new homes opened in recent years, and the staffing cost pressure in the mature 
portfolio of homes. 

 
A total of 12 new greenfield homes have opened since January 2013, with operating losses 

amounting in aggregate to £6.0 million in the year ended 30 September 2014. These losses include 
depreciation charges of £0.5 million and IAS 17 non-cash lease expenses of £1.9 million, with Adjusted 
EBITDA for these homes consequently being losses of £3.6 million for the year ended 30 September 2014, in 
line with expectations during their ramp up phases. 

 
Non-recurring charges have increased by £7.3 million, from £0.6 million for the year ended 30 

September 2013 to £7.9 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. This increase is principally due to the 
progress being made on the change programme in respect of the Suffolk contract, incurring transition and 
change costs of £6.9 million in the year ended 30 September 2014. As previously reported this programme 
will extend into the year ended 30 September 2015. Other non-recurring charges incurred in the year ended 
30 September 2014 are in respect of two home closures, the first in March 2014 due to subsidence and the 
other in July 2014 where the fully contracted home was handed back to the local authority. Aggregate closure 
costs of £1.0 million were incurred in the year ended 30 September 2014. 

 
Although the mature homes portfolio, including the former Southern Cross homes, has delivered a 2.7 

per cent. increase in revenue for the year ended 30 September 2014 compared with the year ended 30 
September 2013, a reduced operating profit contribution was delivered for the same period mainly due to 
higher staff costs, in particular greater use of external agency staff. The residential care industry generally is 
seeing pressure being placed on staffing levels as a consequence of significantly heightened regulatory 
scrutiny which in the short term often results in the increased usage of external agency staff. The primary 
focus of additional resource has been on the assurance of service quality. The division has taken operational 
actions with respect to staffing levels with the longer term aim of eliminating as much of this excess cost as 
possible whilst achieving staffing levels commensurate with the delivery of high quality services. The immature 
homes within the Residential Care Services division, defined as those opened during the years ended 30 
September 2012 and 30 September 2013, increased their operating profit contribution for the year ended 30 
September 2014 compared with the year ended 30 September 2013, in line with their expected maturity 
profile. 

 
Before the non-recurring charges outlined above, the Suffolk homes contributed a marginally higher 

operating profit in the year ended 30 September 2014 compared to the year ended 30 September 2013 
mainly because the Suffolk contract only commenced on 1 December 2012. In the short-term a reduced 
operating profit contribution from the Suffolk homes is expected as the existing homes will progressively close 
and the new homes open. As at 30 September 2014 three of the new build homes were open with two more 
opening shortly thereafter (see Recent Developments section). The priority on opening the new homes is to 
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safely transfer existing contracted residents, which will mean a period of operating the new homes without any 
self-funding residents being admitted as well as a natural period of dual running, with consequently higher 
operating costs, whilst the resident transfers take place. Eight of the originally transferred homes have now 
closed, four of which all took place in the final quarter of the year ended 30 September 2014. In addition to the 
higher operating costs mentioned above, during resident transition and the successive ramp up in self-funding 
residents, due to the funding structure for the new Suffolk homes, rental charges are payable from the date 
that the new homes open whereas no rental charges were payable in respect of the originally transferred 
homes. 

 
In addition to the above factors driving the change in operating result in the Residential Care Services 

division, aggregate non-cash depreciation and amortisation charges increased by £4.1 million, from £15.7 
million for the year ended 30 September 2013 to £19.8 million for the year ended 30 September 2014, 
resulting from the capital expenditure incurred to bring new homes into operation and the commencement of 
depreciation on a new care system roll out completed in the year ended 30 September 2014 and increased 
amortisation charges relating to certain contract relationships. 
 

Operating result for Care UK’s Community Services division changed from a profit of £0.2 million in 
the year ended 30 September 2013 to a loss of £0.7 million for the year ended 30 September 2014, a 
reduction of £0.9 million. The principal factors of this change are an increase in the non-recurring charges 
incurred, the reduction in operating profit arising from continued Local Authority funding pressures, particularly 
in the domiciliary care business, offset by a reduction in the amortisation charge of intangible fixed assets. 

 
In the year ended 30 September 2014 the increase in operating profit arising from the Doncaster 

learning disabilities contract and Living Ambitions acquisition were more than offset by a reduction in the 
domiciliary care business generally due to Local Authority funding pressures and the consequent reductions in 
volumes and, to some extent, fee rates. The Community Services division is continuing to introduce 
technology that will enable further reduction in the indirect cost base of the business as well as considering 
the most effective organisational structure to meet customer’s needs. In this respect restructuring costs of 
£0.6 million were incurred in the first phase of restructuring that took place in the year ended 30 September 
2013 which enabled the division to adopt a localised structure and create a balance between the day-to-day 
operations and the strategic direction of the business. This programme has continued into the 2015 financial 
year with the division continuing to devolve responsibilities to the operational network in order to deliver on a 
localised service strategy and achieve efficiency savings, with some one-off costs to be incurred as a result. 

 
The Doncaster contract change programme that is now complete also incurred non-recurring costs of 

£1.8 million in the year ended 30 September 2014 compared to £0.2 million in the year ended 30 September 
2013. Other non-recurring charges incurred in the year ended 30 September 2013 were acquisition and 
integration costs in respect of the Living Ambitions business acquired in April 2013.  

 
The non-cash amortisation expense decreased by £1.3 million, from £6.5 million for the year ended 

30 September 2013 to £5.2 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. This decrease reflects the reduced 
amortisation expense from intangible assets recognised some years ago, partially offset by an increased cost 
arising from intangible assets recognised on more recent acquisitions. 

 
Operating profit for Care UK’s Health Care division changed from a loss of £11.6 million in the year 

ended 30 September 2013 to a profit of £5.1 million for the year ended 30 September 2014, an increase of 
£16.7 million. The most significant factors contributing to this change are the reduction in non-recurring 
charges, coupled with the benefit of a full period contribution from the UKSH acquisition and organic growth 
across the business, partly offset by staff cost pressures, a reduced contribution from the NHS 111 service 
and Out Of Hours contracts. 

 
Non-recurring charges reduced by £13.3 million, from £15.3 million in the year ended 30 September 

2013 to £2.0 million in the year ended 30 September 2014. An elective surgery unit in Bradford, which Care 
UK has operated for almost four years, closed in July 2014 following the decision of the local commissioners 
not to re-tender the service. Care UK incurred non-recurring exit and redundancy costs of £0.9 million in the 
year ended 30 September 2014. The financial impact of this closure is small as the centre made a negligible 
operating profit contribution. In addition, non-recurring charges were incurred amounting to £1.1 million in the 
year ended 30 September 2014 in respect of an organisational simplification programme resulting in the Care 
UK Mental Health division being absorbed into the Group’s secondary Care sub-segment and the combination 
of the formerly separate Primary Care and Urgent Care sub-segments into an enlarged Primary Care sub-
segment. This restructuring is now complete and as outlined in the “Summary” and “Recent Developments” 
and has enabled a second phase of structural changes to commence in October 2014 that involves the 
devolvement of the support functions that are hosted centrally in the division to the Primary and Secondary 
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Care sub-segments in order to support front line teams in delivering care. The second phase of this 
programme will result in significant cost savings being realised, with some one-off costs to be incurred as a 
result. 

 
The non-recurring charge of £15.3 million incurred in the year ended 30 September 2013 was made 

up of the acquisition and integration costs in relation to the acquisitions of Harmoni and UKSH, amounting to 
£9.0 million, the non-recurring excess implementation costs incurred in relation to the start-up phase of the 
NHS 111 service, amounting to £2.5 million, and a charge for onerous contract liabilities of £4.4 million, and 
closure costs in respect of Mental Health services. These costs were offset by a credit arising from the writing 
back of contingent consideration provided but not required for an acquisition made in the year ended 30 
September 2011. 

 
The UKSH acquisition has contributed increased operating profit, at unit level, in the year ended 30 

September 2014 compared with the year ended 30 September 2013 due largely to the benefit of owning 
UKSH throughout the period as the acquisition completed in February 2013, but also complimented by an 
element organic volume growth in the acquired services. 

 
Organic growth has principally been achieved in the offender health and elective care businesses 

within Health Care. In offender health, two new contracts commenced in the second half of the year ended 30 
September 2013 and the contract for the delivery of healthcare in Pentonville prison commenced in April 
2014, although the operating profit contribution from this contract in the year ended 30 September 2014 is 
negligible given the start-up nature of this contract. In elective care, the business has benefited from additional 
procedure volumes, including certain initiatives to support the reduction of NHS waiting lists and actively 
managing the operational capacity to deliver the increased volume demand. The out of hours business has 
seen a reduced contribution as a result of the reduction in revenue reported above, with the transfer of the call 
triaging responsibility to the NHS 111 service, and also due to the loss of the out of hours contract in Sussex. 
The NHS 111 service contributed operating losses of £3.4 million for the year ended 30 September 2014 
which includes non-cash depreciation and amortisation charges of £2.9 million in aggregate. Further 
improvements have been introduced in the NHS 111 service to improve both operational and financial 
performance, particularly around workforce planning and call centre networking. The service has shown 
improved financial performance in recent months but the majority of benefits from these and ongoing actions 
being taken are likely to be realised over the 2015 financial year. 

 
Support costs within the Health Care division have increased in the year ended 30 September 2014 

compared with the year ended 30 September 2013, due to the significantly larger scale of the business. The 
Health Care division has borne specific costs of approximately £1.0 million in the year ended 30 September 
2014 in relation to large scale bids. These costs are in addition to the normal recurring level of business 
development costs and were incurred earlier in the underlying tender processes than would normally be the 
case due to the scale of the contracts involved. Despite the increased investment in this activity, measured as 
a percentage of revenue, support costs have remained broadly flat year on year through the combination of 
various cost initiatives and service line restructuring which is now complete. As outlined above, the Health 
Care division has taken the decision to devolve much of the divisional functional support activity into the newly 
orientated Primary Care and Secondary Care business streams. This will generate substantial cost savings 
whilst maintaining high quality care through stronger connections between operational and functional teams. 

 
The charge for amortisation of intangible assets increased from £7.9 million for the year ended 30 

September 2013 to £8.9 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. This increase was due to the full 
period amortisation charge in respect of the acquisitions made in the year ended 30 September 2013 of 
Harmoni and UKSH. The impairment charge of £1.8 million recorded in the year ended 30 September 2013 
relates to the same acquisition made in the year ended 30 September 2011 on which the non-recurring credit 
for the writing back of contingent consideration arose, as a result of the business not meeting the targets for 
the full payment of contingent consideration.  

 
The Operating loss for Care UK’s Other segment that consists of the Amicus ITS business and the 

group’s central functions increased by £5.4 million from a loss of £9.2 million for the year ended 30 September 
2013 to a loss of £14.6 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. The contribution from the Amicus ITS 
business remained unchanged in the year ended 30 September 2014 compared to the year ended 30 
September 2013. The operating loss within this segment includes non-cash IAS 17 lease expense charges of 
£0.5 million for the year ended 30 September 2014 in respect of the renewal of central property leases. No 
such charges were incurred in the year ended 30 September 2013. Central non-recurring charges of £1.3 
million were incurred in the year ended 30 September 2014 in relation to the restructuring programme that 
commenced in the final quarter of the year ended 30 September 2013. A non-recurring credit of £0.4 million in 
the year ended 30 September 2013 arose from the reversal of unrequired contract restructuring costs 
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provided for in the year ended 30 September 2012. The depreciation charge recognised on central assets 
increased by £0.4 million in the year ended 30 September 2014 compared to the year ended 30 September 
2013 due to the increased investment in IT systems and office refurbishments. Excluding these factors, the 
group’s underlying central management costs increased by £2.9 million in the year ended 30 September 2014 
compared with the year ended 30 September 2013 reflecting the proportionate growth of the group but also 
reflecting a realignment of costs reported centrally following some of the restructuring programmes across the 
group. 

 
Adjusted Operating Profit 

Adjusted operating profit, which includes Care UK’s proportionate ownership share of EBITDA from 
joint venture enterprises, is defined as Operating profit before net financing expenses adjusted to exclude 
amortisation of IFRS 3 intangible assets, impairment charges and non-recurring items and excluding the 
impact of applying IAS 17 in respect of lease incentives.  

 
Adjusted operating profit decreased by 32.5 per cent., or £10.0 million, from £30.8 million for the year 

ended 30 September 2013 to £20.8 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. This decrease in Adjusted 
operating profit essentially reflects the factors discussed above, excluding the non-cash amortisation and 
impairment charges, IAS 17 lease expense and the non-recurring items discussed further below. 

 
The following table presents a reconciliation of Adjusted operating profit to Operating profit before 

financing expenses for the two financial years ended 30 September 2013 and 30 September 2014. 
 

Adjusted operating profit 
For the year ended 

30 September 

 2013 2014 

 (£ in millions) 

Operating profit/(loss) before financing expenses (7.5) (15.6) 

Amortisation of intangible assets 20.1 20.9 

Impairment of intangible assets 1.8 - 

Non-recurring items 16.4 13.0 

IAS 17 lease expense - 2.4 

Less: Share of joint venture EBITDA - 0.1 

Adjusted operating profit 30.8 20.8 

 
 The non-cash amortisation charge for the year ended 30 September 2014 amounted to £20.9 million, 
compared to £20.1 million in the year ended 30 September 2013. This increase, of £0.8 million, is largely as a 
result of the full year amortisation charge in respect of the acquisitions made at various points in year ended 
30 September 2013, particularly the Harmoni and UKSH acquisitions, partly offset by a natural reduction in 
the amortisation charge arising from the portfolio of other intangible assets as they reach the end of their 
economic life. In this respect, the useful economic lives applied to intangible assets are reviewed annually and 
where appropriate revised to take account of the expected likelihood of contract extension and renewal. 
Certain contracts reviewed during the year ended 30 September 2014 resulted in the shortening of the 
remaining useful lives being applied, which contributed to the increased amortisation charge for the year. 
 

An impairment charge of £1.8 million was recognised in the year ended 30 September 2013, which 
relates to the writing down of the value of goodwill recognised on an acquisition made by the Health Care 
division in the year ended 30 September 2011, as explained above. There was no impairment charge 
recorded in the year ended 30 September 2014.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24 

 

Non-recurring items in the year ended 30 September 2014 amounted to a charge of £13.0 million in 
aggregate. The non-recurring charges in the year ended 30 September 2013 amounted to £16.4 million in 
aggregate. The key elements of the charges for both years are set out below. 

 
 

Non-recurring items 
For the year ended 

30 September 

 2013 2014 

 (£ in millions) 

Contract transfer and integration costs (0.3) (8.8) 

Restructuring charges (0.3) (2.4) 

Closure costs - (1.2) 

Property related costs (0.7) (0.6) 

Acquisition and integration costs (8.2) - 

Onerous contract liabilities (4.4) - 

Excess contract implementation costs (2.5) - 

Total (16.4) (13.0) 

 
Contract transfer and integration costs 

During the 2013 financial year the Residential Care Services division transferred 16 existing care 
homes from Suffolk County Council as the initial stage of a long term contract and the Community Services 
division commenced the operation of a significant learning disabilities supported living contract in Doncaster. 
Both of these contracts involved significant employee transition and service optimisation programmes 
incurring associated costs, in aggregate, of £1.3 million in the year ended 30 September 2013 and £8.8 million 
in the year ended 30 September 2014. 

 
During the year ended 30 September 2013, Care UK also completed the transfer and integration 

process in respect of a contract that commenced in the year ended 30 September 2011, which resulted in the 
release of a surplus transition costs provision of £1.0 million. 
 
Restructuring charges 

In the final quarter of the year ended 30 September 2013 a restructuring programme was initiated in 
order to reduce ongoing operating costs through various business efficiency initiatives. Throughout the year 
ended 30 September 2014 the Care UK group continued to affect a wide ranging organisational restructuring 
programme that simplifies and realigns divisional operating and management structures to market 
opportunities and improves service quality and operational effectiveness. This programme has resulted in the 
Mental Health division being absorbed into the group’s Secondary Care sub-segment of the Health Care 
division and the combination of the formerly separate Primary Care and Urgent Care sub-segments into an 
enlarged Primary Care sub-segment. Aggregate implementation costs of £0.3 million have been incurred in 
the year ended 30 September 2013 and £2.4 million in the year ended 30 September 2014 in delivering the 
restructuring plans. 

 
Closure costs 

During the year ended 30 September 2014 an elective surgery unit in Bradford, which Care UK has 
operated for almost four years, closed following the decision by the local commissioners not to retender the 
service. In addition, within the Residential Care Services division, a local council fully funded care home 
closed as it was not considered by both Care UK and the council to be operationally or financially sustainable. 
The home was held on a short leasehold basis and was handed back to the council on closure. As a result of 
these closures Care UK incurred unit closure and contract exit costs of £1.2 million in the year ended 30 
September 2014. 

 
Property related costs 

During the year ended 30 September 2014 and 30 September 2013 Care UK’s residential Care 
Services division incurred losses of £0.6 million and £0.5 million respectively relating to a care home suffering 
from subsidence that restricted trading capacity and forced the ultimate closure of the home. Since the year 
end a long-term solution has been agreed in principal with the property owners. 

 
Property disposals during the year ended 30 September 2013 resulted in a net charge of £0.2 million 

in relation to the final effects of the closure programme of certain former Mental Health services. 
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Acquisition and integration costs 
During the year ended 30 September 2013 costs were incurred in relation to three acquisitions, 

Harmoni and UKSH in the Health Care division, and Living Ambitions, a learning disability supported living 
service in the Community Services division. In accordance with IFRS 3, such costs cannot be included in the 
cost of the related business combination and therefore cannot be capitalised. In the year ended to 30 
September 2013 total transaction and integration costs of £9.2 million were incurred in relation to these 
acquisitions and their subsequent integration into the Care UK group. 

 
A gain of £1.0 million was recognised in the year ended 30 September 2013 in respect of the writing 

back of contingent acquisition consideration that did not become payable in relation to an acquisition made 
during the year ended 30 September 2011. As a result of this transaction, the goodwill in respect of this 
acquisition was impaired incurring a charge of £1.8 million resulting in an overall net charge to the 
Consolidated statement of comprehensive performance of £0.8 million in the year ended 30 September 2013. 

 
Onerous contract liabilities 

During the year ended 30 September 2013 the periodic assessment of contract performance 
highlighted two contracts within the Health Care division where the division had been unable to deliver the 
contracted services profitably despite significant attempts to do so. A non-recurring charge of £4.4 million was 
recognised in the year ended 30 September 2013 to recognise future losses likely to be incurred if the group 
supplied services under the contracts deemed to be onerous. As at 30 September 2014 Care UK continues to 
operate these contracts with financial performance in line with expectations. Care UK has reached agreement 
with one of the respective commissioners to exit the contract without penalty in early 2015, and in respect of 
the remaining contract, Care UK continues to work with commissioners on ways to improve the service 
operationally and financially. 

 
Excess contract implementation costs 

During the initial implementation period of the NHS 111 service, substantially higher implementation 
costs were incurred than originally expected, with the principal focus being on achieving operational stability 
within these services. In addition, a number of revenue deductions were agreed with the commissioners of 
these services on a commercial rather than contractual basis. A charge of £2.5 million was recognised in the 
year ended 30 September 2013 in relation to certain specific non-recurring excess implementation costs 
incurred. 

 
The following table shows a breakdown of Adjusted operating profit by division in each of the years indicated, 
in absolute numbers and as a percentage of Care UK’s Adjusted operating profit. 
 

Adjusted operating profit/(loss) For the year ended 30 September 

 2013 2014 % Change 

 
(£ in millions, except 

%) 
(£ in millions, except 

%)  

Residential Care Services 19.3 62.7% 11.2 53.8% (42.0%) 

Community Services 7.6 24.7% 6.3 30.3% (17.1%) 

Health Care 13.4 43.5% 16.1 77.4% 20.1% 

Other (9.5) (30.8%) (12.8) (61.5%) (34.7%) 

Total 30.8  20.8  (32.5%) 

 
Adjusted operating profit for Care UK’s Residential Care Services division decreased by 42.0 per 

cent., or £8.1 million, from £19.3 million for the year ended 30 September 2013 to £11.2 million for the year 
ended 30 September 2014. The decrease in Adjusted operating profit was principally due to the same factors 
as drove the changes in Operating profit, particularly the impact of the start-up losses in the new homes 
opened since January 2013 and the staff cost challenges in the mature portfolio as discussed above, other 
than the increase of £7.3 million, £1.2 million and £1.9 million in the charge for non-recurring items, 
amortisation and IAS 17 lease expense respectively. 

 
Adjusted operating profit for Care UK’s Community Services division decreased by 17.1 per cent., or 

£1.3 million, from £7.6 million for the year ended 30 September 2013 to £6.3 million for the year ended 30 
September 2014. This outcome was driven by the same factors as for Operating profit, particularly the 
continued Local Authority funding pressures in the domiciliary care business, other than the decrease of £1.3 
million in the charge for amortisation of intangible assets and the increase in non-recurring charges of £0.9 
million. 
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Adjusted operating profit for Care UK’s Health Care division increased by 20.1 per cent., or £2.7 
million, from £13.4 million for the year ended 30 September 2013 to £16.1 million for the year ended 30 
September 2014. This increase reflects the same factors as for Operating profit other than the increase in the 
charge for amortisation of intangible assets of £1.0 million, the reduction in non-recurring items of £13.3 
million and the decrease in the charge for impairment of intangible assets of £1.8 million. 

 
The Adjusted operating loss for Care UK’s Other segment increased by £3.3 million from a loss of 

£9.5 million for the year ended 30 September 2013 to a loss of £12.8 million for the year ended 30 September 
2014. This change was driven by the same factors as for operating profit other than the increase in the charge 
for non-recurring items of £1.7 million, the decrease in the amortisation charge of £0.1 million and the 
increase in the IAS 17 lease expense of £0.5 million. 
 
Adjusted EBITDA 

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as Adjusted operating profit plus depreciation. Care UK presents 
Adjusted EBITDA because it believes, when considered in conjunction with related IFRS financial measures, 
Adjusted EBITDA provides investors with important additional information to evaluate operating performance. 
Adjusted EBITDA is not a measure of financial performance under IFRS, has not been audited and should not 
be considered an alternative to, or more meaningful than, net income as a measure of operating performance. 
“Consolidated EBITDA” for the purposes of the covenants under the Amended and Restated Senior Revolving 
Facility Agreement allows for, amongst other things, all adjustments of the nature used in connection with the 
calculation of Adjusted EBITDA and Estimated Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA as outlined in “Presentation of 
Financial Information - Non-IFRS Financial Measuresò, and therefore is not exactly equivalent to the definition 
of Adjusted EBITDA as presented for the purposes of management’s discussion and analysis of financial 
condition and results of operations. 

 
The table below provides a reconciliation of Adjusted operating profit to Adjusted EBITDA. 

 

Adjusted EBITDA For the year ended 
30 September 

 2013 2014 

 (£ in millions) 

Adjusted operating profit 30.8 20.8 

Depreciation 25.4 32.0 

Adjusted EBITDA 56.2 52.8 

 
Care UK’s Adjusted EBITDA decreased by 6.0 per cent., or £3.4 million, from £56.2 million for the 

year ended 30 September 2013 to £52.8 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. The increase in 
Adjusted EBITDA was driven by the factors discussed above in relation to Operating profit and Adjusted 
operating profit as well as the increase in the depreciation charge in the year ended 30 September 2014 
compared with the year ended 30 September 2013 of £6.6 million. 

 
The table below shows a breakdown of Adjusted EBITDA by division in each of the periods indicated, 

in absolute numbers and as a percentage of Care UK’s Adjusted EBITDA. 
 

Segmental Adjusted EBITDA For the year ended 30 September 

 2013 2014 % Change 

 (£ in millions, except %) (£ in millions, except %)  

Residential Care Services 29.4 52.3% 24.2 45.8% (17.7%) 

Community Services 9.4 16.7% 8.1 15.3% (13.8)% 

Health Care 25.2 44.8% 31.3 59.3% 24.2% 

Other (7.8) (13.9%) (10.8) (20.5%) (38.5%) 

Total 56.2  52.8  (6.0%) 

 
Net Financing Expense 

Care UK’s financing expenses increased by 58.3 per cent., or £20.8 million, from £35.7 million for the 
year ended 30 September 2013 to £56.5 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. In July 2014 the 
group carried out a refinancing (see Borrowing and Capital Funding below) that significantly changed the debt 
structure of the group and materially impacted the net finance charge for the year ended 30 September 2014 
as explained below. 
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The net financing expense for the year ended 30 September 2014 includes a charge of £15.8 million 

in respect of the redemption premium incurred on repayment of the 2010 Notes and a non-cash charge of 
£7.9 million for the remaining unamortised loan arrangement fees and related expenses in respect of the 
financing arrangements of the 2010 Notes and Revolving Credit Facility in place prior to the refinancing. A 
non-cash credit of £3.3 million has been recorded in the net Finance expense for the year ended 30 
September 2014 relating to the unamortised premium received on issue of the additional £75 million of 2010 
Notes made in November 2012. Excluding these significant one-off items, Care UK’s underlying net financing 
expense increased by 1.1 per cent., or £0.4 million, from £35.7 million for the year ended 30 September 2013 
to £36.1 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. 

 
Underlying net financing expense mostly comprises the interest payable on the group’s 2010 Notes 

and 2014 Notes, as well as interest, performance bond commission and commitment fees payable on the 
group’s Revolving Credit Facility (“RCF”) and interest payable in relation to other bank loans. The increase in 
underlying net financing expense for the year ended 30 September 2014 compared with the year ended 30 
September 2013 is largely as a result of the increased use of the RCF, in line with expectations, and a fair 
value amortisation charge of £0.5 million in respect of the interest rate cap taken out shortly after the 
refinancing, offset by a reduction in the interest charge on the new 2014 Notes compared to the 2010 Notes. 

 
Taxation 

Care UK’s taxation credit decreased from £12.9 million for the year ended 30 September 2013 to 
£11.4 million for the year ended 30 September 2014. 
 

The reported loss before taxation was £72.4 million for the year ended 30 September 2014 compared 
with a loss of £43.2 million for the year ended 30 September 2013. The tax rate that results from applying the 
reported taxation credits to these reported figures is subject to distortion resulting particularly from the 
impairment and non-recurring charges recognised in both financial years. However, Care UK’s underlying tax 
rate is higher than the current statutory tax rate of 20 per cent., mainly as a result of the proportion of Care 
UK’s capital expenditure that is non-qualifying for tax purposes.  
 
Loss for the Period 

As a result of the factors discussed above, Care UK reported a loss for the year ended 30 September 
2014 of £61.0 million compared with a loss of £30.3 million for the year ended 30 September 2013. 

 
Restatement of quarterly segmental results for the year to 30 September 2014 

Following the restructure that commenced in June 2014 outlined above, Care UK’s Mental Health 
division, previously reported in the ‘Other’ segment, was absorbed into the group’s Health Care division. The 
following quarterly results for the Health Care and Other segments are restated and presented under the new 
structure. 

 

Health Care (Restated) Q1  Q2  Q3  Q4  
Full Year 

2014 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Revenue ...........................................................  94.0 92.1 93.0 91.0 370.1 

Adjusted EBITDA .......................................................  5.9 8.1 8.3 9.0 31.3 

Depreciation of tangible assets ..................................  (3.7) (3.7) (4.2) (3.6) (15.2) 

Adjusted operating profit/(loss).........................  2.2 4.4 4.1 5.4 16.1 

Amortisation of intangible assets .....................  (2.2) (2.3) (2.2) (2.2) (8.9) 

Non-recurring items ..........................................  - (0.2) (0.8) (1.0) (2.0) 

Less: Share of joint venture EBITDA ...............  - (0.1) - - (0.1) 

Operating profit/(loss) before financing 
expenses and taxation ............................................  - 1.8 1.1 2.2 5.1 

      

Operating lease charges: Land & 
buildings (excluding IAS 17 lease 
expense) .......................................................  (3.7) (3.7) (3.3) (3.6) (14.3) 
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Other (Restated) Q1  Q2  Q3  Q4  
Full Year 

2014 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Revenue ...........................................................  3.3 3.1 3.0 2.6 12.0 

Adjusted EBITDA .......................................................  (1.9) (1.8) (3.1) (4.0) (10.8) 
Depreciation of tangible assets ..................................  (0.4) (0.5) (0.4) (0.7) (2.0) 

Adjusted operating profit/(loss).........................  (2.3) (2.3) (3.5) (4.7) (12.8) 
Non-recurring items ..........................................  (0.2) (0.6) (0.4) (0.1) (1.3) 

IAS 17 lease expense ......................................  - (0.4) (0.1) - (0.5) 

Operating profit/(loss) before financing 
expenses and taxation ..................................  (2.5) (3.3) (4.0) (4.8) (14.6) 

      

Operating lease charges: Land & 
buildings (excluding IAS 17 lease 
expense) .......................................................  (0.2) 0.2 (0.2) (0.2) (0.4) 

 
 
Year ended 30 September 2014 compared to the year ended 30 September 2013 ï IFRS compliant 
basis 

The comparisons presented within this section of the Management discussion and analysis use 
financial information presented on an IFRS compliant basis, including the effects of applying the provisions of 
IFRIC 12. For further information on the impact of IFRIC 12, see ñPresentation of Financial Information ï 
Financial Statements ï IFRIC 12 ï Service Concession Arrangementsò. 
 

The table below shows the effects of IFRIC 12 on the Consolidated statement of comprehensive 
performance. 
 

Consolidated statement of comprehensive 
performance 

Year ended 30 September 2014 

 Pre-IFRIC 12 
adoption 

£m 

IFRIC 12 
adjustments 

£m 

Post IFRIC 12 
adjustments 

£m 

Revenue 728.1 (2.3) 725.8 

Cost of sales (642.2) (0.3) (642.5) 

Gross profit 85.9 (2.6) 83.3 

Administrative expenses (101.5) (0.6) (102.1) 

Operating loss before financing expenses (15.6) (3.2) (18.8) 

Adjusted EBITDA 52.8 (4.7) 48.1 

Depreciation of tangible assets (32.0) 1.9 (30.1) 

Adjusted operating profit 20.8 (2.8) 18.0 

Amortisation of intangible assets (20.9) (0.4) (21.3) 

Non-recurring items (13.0) - (13.0) 
IAS 17 lease expense (2.4) - (2.4) 
Less: Share of joint venture EBITDA (0.1) - (0.1) 

Operating loss before financing expenses (15.6) (3.2) (18.8) 

Financial income 1.8 1.1 2.9 

Financial expense (58.3) - (58.3) 

Net financing expense (56.5) 1.1 (55.4) 

Share of results of joint venture (0.3) - (0.3) 

Loss before taxation (72.4) (2.1) (74.5) 

Taxation 11.4 0.6 12.0 

Loss for the period (61.0) (1.5) (62.5) 

 
The application of IFRIC 12 does not change the overall profit or loss recorded on a contract 

accounted for in accordance with its provisions. However, both the disposition of income and operating costs 
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change within the Consolidated statement of comprehensive performance and the timing of recognition of 
both revenue and profit also changes. The net effect of these changes in the year ended 30 September 2014 
is to increase the loss for the period by £1.5 million. 
 

The table below shows the effects of IFRIC 12 on the Consolidated balance sheet. 
 

Consolidated balance sheets – extract As at 30 September 2014 

 Pre-IFRIC 12 
adoption 

£m 

IFRIC 12 
adjustments 

£m 

Post IFRIC 12 
adjustments 

£m 

Property, plant and equipment 308.8 (31.2) 277.6 

Intangible assets 202.3 8.7 211.0 

Other financial assets 0.6 21.1 21.7 

Total non-current assets  544.1 (1.4) 542.7 

    

Other financial assets - 1.1 1.1 

Total current assets   112.3 1.1 113.4 

    

Trade and other payables (155.8) (10.4) (166.2) 

Total current liabilities (157.1)  (10.4) (167.5) 

    

Deferred tax liabilities (7.2) 2.4 (4.8) 

Total non-current liabilities (420.3) 2.4 (417.9) 

    

Net assets 79.0 (8.3) 70.7 

 
The principal effect of IFRIC 12 on the group’s Consolidated balance sheets is to de-recognise 

amounts formerly accounted for as Property, plant and equipment and to recognise amounts as either 
Intangible assets or Other financial assets. The net impact on the Consolidated balance sheet reflects the 
aggregate timing differences regarding the recognition of profits or losses on IFRIC 12 related contracts.  

 
The table below shows the effects of IFRIC 12 on the Consolidated cash flow statement. 

 

Consolidated cash flow statement – extract Year ended 30 September 2014 

 Pre-IFRIC 12 
adoption 

£m 

IFRIC 12 
adjustments 

£m 

Post IFRIC 12 
adjustments 

£m 

Net cash flow from operating activities 46.9 (2.4) 44.5 

Net cash flow from investing activities (30.7) 2.4 (28.3) 

Net cash flow from financing activities (29.9) - (29.9) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (13.7) - (13.7) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 20.9 - 20.9 
  

As noted previously, IFRIC 12 has no effect on total cash flow movements in any year. It does have 
an effect on the disposition of cash flow movements within the group’s Consolidated cash flow statement, as 
set out in the above table. 
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Net Debt and Liquidity 
 
The following table shows the comparative net debt position as at 30 September 2013 and 30 

September 2014. 
 

Net debt As at 30 September 

 2013 2014 

 (£ in millions) 

Senior Secured Notes (325.0) (400.0) 

Cash and cash equivalents 34.6 20.9 

Finance lease obligations (3.7) (1.4) 

Bank loans (49.5) (7.0) 

Deferred financing costs 10.3 8.6 

Total net debt (333.3) (378.9) 

 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Care UK has historically financed its capital investment and working capital requirements through a 
combination of cash flows from its operating activities, short and long-term bank borrowings and the issuance 
of Senior Secured Notes. Care UK expects that its key sources of liquidity for the foreseeable future will 
continue to be cash flows from operations together with drawings under Care UK’s Revolving Credit Facility.  

 
The following table sets forth selected information concerning Care UK’s Consolidated cash flow 

during the periods indicated. 
 

Consolidated cash flows For the year ended 

30 September 

 2013 2014 

 (£ in millions) 

Net cash flow from operating activities 31.1 46.9 

Net cash flow from investing activities (111.0) (30.7) 

Net cash flow from financing activities 76.2 (29.9) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3.7) (13.7) 

Cash and cash equivalents carried forward 34.6 20.9 
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Year ended 30 September 2014 compared to the year ended 30 September 2013 ï movement in net 
debt 

The following table shows a summary of cash flows and change in net debt for the periods indicated. 
 

 2013 2014 

 (£ in millions) 

Adjusted operating profit 30.8 20.8 

Depreciation and other non-cash movements 25.5 29.4 

Change in working capital and non-recurring items 
1
 (10.2) (3.3) 

Cash flow from operations 
2
 46.1 46.9 

Cash flows resulting from financing activities and taxation (39.1) (60.1) 

Capital expenditure (34.9) (32.4) 

Proceeds from disposal of tangible fixed assets 1.7 3.1 

Loans to related party undertakings & joint ventures (10.7) (1.8) 

Interest received - 0.4 

Cash costs of acquired businesses 
3
 (81.8) - 

Movement in net debt arising from cash flows (118.7) (43.9) 

Other non-cash movements in net debt 0.6 (1.7) 

Total movement in net debt (118.1) (45.6) 

Net debt at 30 September (333.3) (378.9) 

Cash conversion ratio (Cash flow from operations/Adjusted EBITDA) 82.0% 88.8% 

 
1
 Excluding acquisition and integration costs and contingent consideration payments 

2
 Adjusted for acquisition and integration costs and contingent consideration payments 

3
 Including acquisition and integration costs and contingent consideration payments 

 
The cash inflow from operations for the year ended 30 September 2014 was £46.9 million compared 

with £46.1 million for the year ended 30 September 2013. This figure has been adjusted to exclude the 
acquisition and integration costs and payment of contingent consideration incurred during the year ended 30 
September 2013 that have been included within the heading of Cash costs of acquired businesses. The cash 
flow from operations measured against Adjusted EBITDA showed a cash conversion ratio of 88.8 per cent. in 
the year ended 30 September 2014 compared with a conversion ratio of 82.0 per cent. for the year ended 30 
September 2013. These measures include the impact of cash flows arising in relation to other non-recurring 
items that are included within the Cash flow from operations figure above reflecting the significant investment 
made in the transition of employees and service optimisation programmes on certain social care contracts 
during the year. Adjusting for these non-recurring items, and timing differences arising in relation to certain 
working capital outflows amounting to £6.5 million in the year ended 30 September 2013 as previously 
reported, the underlying cash conversion ratio for the year ended 30 September 2014 was 109.5 per cent. 
compared to 98.8 per cent. in the year ended 30 September 2013. The increase in this measure reflects the 
combined impact of a number of initiatives introduced in the year aimed at accelerating the cash collection 
process, including the roll out of IT systems that support the information exchange between front-line 
operations and back office administrations processes; the development of a direct billing interface with the 
NHS shared business service centre; and an increase in the proportion of certain customer bases to a direct 
debit payment method. 

 
Cash flows resulting from financing expenses and taxation were a net outflow of £60.1 million in the 

year ended 30 September 2014 compared with £39.1 million for the year ended 30 September 2013. The 
cash outflow in the year ended 30 September 2014 includes £15.8 million 2010 Notes redemption premium 
and £8.7 million of loan arrangement fees paid as a result of the refinancing that took place in July 2014. The 
cash outflow in the year ended 30 September 2013 includes £4.4 million of loan arrangement fees paid during 
the year in relation to the funding raised for the acquisitions of Harmoni and UKSH. 

 
Capital expenditure amounted to £32.4 million for the year ended 30 September 2014 compared with 

£34.9 million for the year ended 30 September 2013. Maintenance capital expenditure amounted to £9.4 
million compared with £11.0 million for the year ended 30 September 2013. Expansionary capital expenditure 
amounted to £22.9 million for the year ended 30 September 2014 compared with £23.9 million for the year 
ended 30 September 2013. The principal items of expenditure in the year ended 30 September 2014 included 
costs associated with new residential care homes, including the Suffolk contract, of £9.6 million, service 
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optimisation expenditure on existing residential care homes of £6.8 million and systems related expenditure of 
£2.4 million. The principal items of expenditure in the year ended 30 September 2013 included expenditure on 
the implementation of the NHS 111 service of £6.6 million, costs associated with new residential care homes, 
including the Suffolk contract, of £4.2 million, service optimisation expenditure on existing residential care 
homes of £3.2 million, investment in new mental health services of £2.6 million and systems related 
expenditure of £3.2 million. 

 
Proceeds from the disposal of fixed assets amounted to £3.1 million for the year ended 30 September 

2014 compared with £1.7 million for the year ended 30 September 2013. The proceeds received in the year 
ended 30 September 2014 largely arose from the disposal of the a former mental health unit that closed at the 
end of March 2014; whilst in the year ended 30 September 2013 the majority of the proceeds arose from the 
disposal of a number of former mental health facilities. 

  
Care UK provided loans to related parties of £1.5 million for the year ended 30 September 2014 

compared with £5.1 million for the year ended 30 September 2013 - see “Certain Relationships and Related 
Party Transactions”. In addition, in the year ended 30 September 2014, Care UK provided equity and loan 
funding of £0.3 million compared with £5.6 million for the year ended 30 September 2013 to its 50 per cent. 
owned joint venture, Recovery & Rehabilitation Partnerships Limited, to fund the acquisition of an existing 
mental health unit in Gosport and the development of a new build mental health facility in Sussex.  

 
Interest received was £0.4 million in the year ended 30 September 2014 compared with nil for the 

year ended 30 September 2013. 
 
Cash costs of acquired businesses amounted to nil for the year ended 30 September 2014 compared 

with £81.8 million for the year ended 30 September 2013. In the year ended 30 September 2013 Care UK 
acquired Harmoni in November 2012, UKSH in February 2013, both within the Health Care division, and 
Living Ambitions in April 2013, within the Community Services division. The year ended 30 September 2013 
outflow includes the acquisition and integration costs associated with the acquisitions and the payment of 
contingent consideration made in that year relating to an acquisition made in the year ended 30 September 
2011, amounting to £14.7 million in aggregate. 

 
Net debt increased by £45.6 million in the year ended 30 September 2014 of which approximately 

£27.0 million was a result of the refinancing exercise executed during the year, reducing ongoing debt 
servicing costs by approximately £8-10 million annually, and the remainder due to the combination of factors 
discussed above. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term bank deposits, net of 
related bank overdrafts. As at 30 September 2014, Care UK had net cash and cash equivalents of £20.9 
million, compared to £34.6 million as at 30 September 2013. 
 
Borrowings and Capital Funding 

In July 2014 the group carried out a refinancing (the “Refinancing”) in order to put in place a long term 
stable capital structure to underpin the group’s future growth plans whilst significantly reducing the group’s 
cost of debt. The Refinancing comprised the issue of the 2014 Notes with the company’s intention being to 
use the net proceeds to (i) redeem all of the outstanding 2010 Notes; (ii) repay the outstanding amounts under 
the original Revolving Credit Facility; and (iii) pay transaction fees and expenses in connection with the 
Refinancing. The intended Sources and Uses for the Refinancing are shown in the table below, reproduced 
from the Offering Memorandum relating to the offering of the 2014 Notes. In addition to the issue of the 2014 
Notes, the company put a revised Revolving Credit Facility in place with a reduced total availability of £65.0 
million, compared with the original Revolving Credit Facility availability of £115.0 million. 

 
Sources of Funds £m Uses of Funds £m 

Senior Secured Notes offered 325.0 Redemption of the existing Notes 
(1)

 356.7 

Second Lien Notes offered 75.0 
Repayment of the existing Revolving 
Credit Facility 

60.5 

Cash 27.0 Transaction fees and expenses 9.8 

Total 427.0 Total 427.0 

 
(1)

 Includes the costs of the assumed redemption of all of the outstanding 2010 Notes at the redemption price of 

104.875 per cent. together with the interest payment that fell due on 1 August 2014 in respect of the six month period 
ending 31 July 2014. 
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Revolving Credit Facility 
Care UK carries a Revolving Credit Facility of £65.0 million with ING Bank N.V., London Branch, 

HSBC Bank plc, Citigroup Global Markets Limited and Credit Suisse International. This facility was reduced 
from its former level of £115.0 million to £65.0 million on the issue date of the 2014 Notes in accordance with 
an amendment and restatement agreement. Additional RCF facilities may be available to Care UK, subject to 
certain conditions, up to a maximum amount of £90 million in total or an amount equal to 13.3 per cent. of the 
Total Assets of the group. See “Description of Other Indebtedness-Revolving Credit Facility” for further 
information. 
 
Performance Bonds 

Performance bonds have been provided in favour of certain NHS bodies in relation to Care UK’s 
performance of contracts and services. These performance bonds are provided through the Revolving Credit 
Facility described above. An aggregate value of £10.1 million was in place as at 30 September 2014 in 
relation to the amounts provided under these bonds as well as other ancillary facility utilisations. The 
outstanding amounts under these performance bonds will expire once the initial contract periods of the 
underlying contracts expire. 
 
Intercreditor Agreement 

The various parties to the Amended Revolving Credit Facility and the Indentures have entered into an 
intercreditor agreement which governs the relationships and relative priorities among (i) the lenders under the 
Amended Revolving Credit Facility; (ii) any persons that accede to the Intercreditor. See “Description of Other 
Indebtedness-Intercreditor Agreement” for further information. 

Capital Expenditure 
Care UK’s historical capital expenditure has largely been driven by expansionary capital expenditure 

in the Residential Care Services and Health Care divisions. Since 1 October 2011, Care UK’s gross capital 
expenditure has amounted to £108.2 million After taking into account disposal proceeds received over the 
same period of £22.7 million, net capital investment was £85.5 million. Within this period total maintenance 
capital expenditure has amounted to £31.8 million with expansionary capital expenditure amounting to £76.4 
million. The most significant areas of expansionary capital expenditure for Care UK over this time period have 
been the construction and acquisition of new freehold residential care homes as well as commissioning costs 
related to new leasehold residential care homes, including the Suffolk contract, the optimisation of existing 
residential care homes in order to enhance the customer proposition to self-funding service users, the 
construction of new complex care centres within the Mental Health division and expenditure associated with 
new contracts in the Health Care division. These projects have accounted for approximately £57.4 million of 
expansionary capital expenditure since 1 October 2011 with the balance of £19.0 million being invested in a 
range of smaller projects across the group, including certain key IT and system investments. 

 
As at 30 September 2014, Care UK had total capital commitments of nil compared with £0.9 million as 

at 30 September 2013. Future capital expenditure is expected to be focused on the commissioning of planned 
new care homes in the Residential Care Services division, including the remaining five new homes under the 
Suffolk contract, further expenditure on the optimisation of the group’s more mature residential care homes 
explicitly to target more self-funding service users, and investment required for the delivery of new contracts 
within the Health Care division. In addition, spend will be required on the maintenance of existing properties 
and the replacement or upgrade of certain of Care UK’s IT systems. 

 
A substantial portion of these future capital expenditure amounts are discretionary, and Care UK may 

adjust spending in any period according to its needs. Care UK currently intends to finance its projected capital 
expenditure through a combination of operating cash flows and, if necessary, by drawings under the Amended 
Revolving Credit Facility. 
 

Following the acquisition of Care UK Limited in 2010, Bridgepoint and management have established 
an independent, separately funded property financing vehicle for the development and ownership of new 
greenfield residential care home developments, which will be leased to Care UK on completion of each new 
property (see also “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions”). Care UK expects that the majority 
of new residential care home developments will be financed and owned by this independent entity or by 
certain third party developers or funders. Care UK will continue to invest in capital expenditure in relation to 
the greenfield development programme. 
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Contractual Obligations 

   The following table summarises Care UK’s contractual obligations as of 30 September 2014. 
 

Contractual obligations Payments due by period 

 Total 

Less 
than 

1 year 
2-

5 years 

More 
than 

5 years 

 (£ in millions) 

Finance lease obligations 1.4 1.3 0.1 - 

Operating lease obligations 639.6 32.8 111.0 495.8 

Total 641.0 34.1 111.1 495.8 

 
Claims and Litigation 

At the date of this annual report, to the best of Care UK’s knowledge after due inquiry, there were no 
exceptional events, claims or litigation which have had or are likely to have a material adverse impact on Care 
UK’s business activities, results of operations or financial condition. 
 
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements 

Care UK leases various offices and operational facilities as well as equipment under non-cancellable 
operating lease agreements. 
 
Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk 

Care UK’s activities and debt financing expose it to a variety of financial risks, the most significant of 
which are market risk (cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk (changes in the 
debt market). Care UK’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on Care UK’s financial performance. Care UK may 
use derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures: since the Refinancing outlined above the 
group has put certain such instruments in place, which are described below. 
 
Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk 

Prior to the Refinancing the majority of Care UK’s borrowings carried a fixed interest rate with 
relatively limited use being required of the group’s previous Revolving Credit Facility. Consequently Care UK 
had not employed derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate risk prior to the Refinancing. The 
2014 Notes issued as part of the Refinancing all carry a combination of a fixed margin together with a LIBOR 
floating interest rate. As a result, in July 2014, Care UK entered into interest rate cap arrangements to protect 
its downside interest rate risk. Interest rate caps have been taken with a principal value of £400 million, equal 
to the value of the 2014 Notes, for the three year period to July 2017 with the floating rate LIBOR exposure 
capped at 2.00 per cent. for the first twelve months, 3.00 per cent. for the second twelve months and 3.50 per 
cent. for the final twelve months. A premium of just over £1.0 million was paid in relation to the purchase of 
these caps. 

 
In addition, Care UK currently carries an amount of short-term cash deposits. Short-term deposits are 

placed with financial institutions in accordance with Care UK’s treasury policy. Interest rates obtained on 
deposits are variable and linked to LIBOR.  
 

Care UK has made significant use of the Revolving Credit Facility and would expect to do so in the 
future. Any such borrowings would potentially increase Care UK’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk as 
they would be issued at a floating rate linked to LIBOR. However, the group considers this risk as not material 
in view of the interest rate protection documented above in respect of the majority of Care UK’s borrowings. 
 
Price Risk 

Care UK is not exposed to commodity price risk but as a provider of services is subject to both 
general and industry specific wage pressures, including legislative changes concerning the minimum wage 
level. Contracts with Local Authorities, Clinical Commissioning Groups and other NHS funded bodies are also 
subject to annual price review. For the year ended 30 September 2014, a 1 per cent. increase in salary costs 
would have decreased profit before tax by £4.1 million. 
 

In common with the majority of government-funded providers, most of Care UK’s price changes take 
effect annually on 1 April. Around 25 per cent. of Care UK’s revenue is linked to general inflation indices. 
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Credit Risk 
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions. 

Credit exposures in relation to customers is limited given that the majority of Care UK’s revenue is attributable 
to publicly funded entities such as Local Authorities, Clinical Commissioning Groups and other NHS bodies. 
Care UK has no significant concentrations of credit risk. For banks and financial institutions, only parties with 
a minimum rating of A are accepted. For an analysis of trade receivables, see note 12 of the audited 
consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 September 2014. 
 
Liquidity Risk 

A policy of prudent liquidity risk management is applied. Care UK’s operational cash flow is largely 
stable and predictable given the contractual and recurring nature of the core business activity. Care UK 
prepares annual and shorter term cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated projects. 
Borrowing facilities are arranged as necessary to finance projected requirements, including capital 
expenditure. Adequate headroom in available facilities is maintained. 
 

In addition to the above a detailed description of Care UKôs business can be accessed on the Care 
UK website: careuk.com. 
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MANAGEMENT 

Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited 

Board of Directors 
During the year, Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited’s Board of Directors was 

composed of the following individuals: 

Name Age Title 

Mike Parish ......................................................................................................  55 Chief Executive 
Paul Humphreys (resigned 7 October 2014) ..................................................  55 Group Finance Director 

Set forth below is a brief description of the business experience of the individuals who serve as 
members of the Board. 

Mike Parish has been Chief Executive of Care UK Limited since 2001. Prior to joining Care UK, he 
was appointed to Exel plc’s (“Exel”) main board of directors as chief executive of Exel’s global industrial 
division. Mike had joined Exel (known at that time as NFC) as a graduate trainee in 1981, and in 1995 he 
initiated the formation of a joint venture company between Exel and Bass Brewers called Tradeteam and was 
appointed managing director.  

Paul Humphreys stepped down from the position of Group Finance Director after a transitional 
period, for personal reasons, and formally left the business on the 7

 
October 2014.  

Phil Whitecross has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of Care UK. Phil joined Care UK as 
Group Commercial Director in December 2012 and Managing Director of the Community Services division 
since May 2014. Prior to joining Care UK, Phil was the CEO of InHealth from 2007 to 2011 having previously 
been Finance Director from 2001. He has experience in both listed and private equity owned businesses and, 
prior to InHealth, was Group FD of Copyright Promotions Plc from 1994 to 2000 and Financial Controller at 
Crockfords Plc from 1990 to 1994. Having joined as a graduate in 1986, Phil spent four years with Deloitte & 
Touche where he qualified as a Chartered Accountant. 
 

Senior Management 

 In addition to the executive directors discussed above, Care UK considers the following personnel to 
form its senior management team: 

Name Age Title 

Karen McCormick 58 Group HR Director 
Jim Easton 50 Managing Director, Health Care 
Andrew Knight 47 Managing Director, Residential Care Services 
Belinda Moore 52 Group Marketing Director 
Barry Nee 39 Change Programme Director 
Nicola Grimes 40 Group Finance Director 
   

Set forth below is a brief description of the business experience of the members of Care UK’s senior 
management. 

Karen McCormick has been the Group Human Resources Director since October 2012. Karen spent 
her early career with N&P Building Society and Norman Broadbent Consulting Services and then spent four 
years with GUS plc in HR and Organisational Development roles before joining J Sainsbury plc as People 
Performance Director. In 2005 Karen became Chief Executive of the Cheshire Building Society and 
subsequently undertook a number of consulting and interim assignments before joining Care UK. 

Jim Easton joined Care UK in February 2013 as Managing Director of the Health Care division. 
Before joining Care UK he was the national director of improvement and efficiency at the Government’s 
Department of Health. He led the national Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) project 
which works across the NHS to improve both quality and efficiency. Jim has also been chief executive of the 
NHS South Central Strategic Health Authority and chief executive officer of York Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust. Jim has more than 30 years experience in the NHS and has also worked in primary care, mental health, 
health care commissioning and policy development. 
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Andrew Knight has been the Managing Director of the Residential Care Services division since 
February 2014. Andrew spent his early career with Allied Domecq, before becoming Commercial Director for 
Spirit Group in a role he held for until the sale of the business to Punch Taverns Plc. in 2006. Andrew became 
the Managing Director for Spirit and a Director of Punch Taverns Plc. in 2006. Prior to joining Care UK 
Andrew was the Managing Director of Weight Watchers UK, He also holds a Non-Executive role with an NHS 
trust. 

Belinda Moore joined Care UK in October 2011 from BMI Healthcare where she was Group Sales & 
Marketing Director. In that role Belinda was responsible for a nationally based sales and marketing team and 
a significant customer contact centre. Prior to joining BMI, Belinda was Head of Marketing & Operations for 
Britvic International and has held a series of senior marketing roles in a number of leading FMCG 
organisations and also spent six years in pharmaceutical sales and marketing for the Wellcome Foundation. 

Barry Nee has been the Change Programme Director since June 2013. Barry spent 15 years in 
Accenture’s management consulting division, specialising in organisational effectiveness, change 
management and programme delivery. His experience includes working for government clients both in the UK 
and overseas, including extensive experience in the NHS. 

Nicola Grimes joined Care UK in August 2012 from Compass Group PLC where she spent two years 
as a UK divisional Finance Director. Prior to this, Nicola spent ten years in the Telecoms sector undertaking a 
wide range of commercial finance roles including Group Director of Financial Planning and Analysis at Virgin 
Media. Nicola trained with Ernst and Young, where she qualified as a Chartered Accountant. 

The business address for each member of the Board of Directors and senior management of Care UK 
is Connaught House, 850 The Crescent, Colchester Business Park, Colchester, Essex CO4 9QB. 

Board Committees 
Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited has not separately established any audit, 

remuneration or other board committees. The Board of Directors as a whole, or their delegated members, 
fulfils these functions as and when required. The remuneration committee, audit committee and integrated 
governance committee of Care UK Health & Social Care Holdings Limited, which indirectly owns 100 per cent. 
of Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited, performs remuneration committee, audit committee 
and integrated governance functions relating to these companies. 

Care UK Health & Social Care Holdings Limited Remuneration Committee 

The Care UK Health & Social Care Holdings Limited remuneration committee recommends the 
remuneration of the executive directors and senior management of Care UK. 

Care UK Health & Social Care Holdings Limited Audit Committee 

The Care UK Health & Social Care Holdings Limited audit committee has been established to monitor 
the integrity of Care UK’s financial statements. The audit committee is responsible for monitoring the 
effectiveness of the external audit process and making recommendations to the board in relation to the 
appointment, reappointment and remuneration of the external auditor. The committee also reviews annually 
Care UK’s systems of internal control and the processes for monitoring and evaluating the risks facing Care 
UK. 

Compensation 

Remuneration and other benefits 
The aggregate remuneration paid to or accrued on behalf of the directors of Care UK Health & Social 

Care Investments Limited, in relation to their positions of employment within the Care UK group, for the 
financial year ended 30 September 2014, was £1,125,000 in salaries and fees, cash bonuses and benefits. 

The aggregate remuneration paid to or accrued on behalf of Care UK’s senior management (other 
than the directors of Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited) for the financial year ended 
30 September 2014 was approximately £2,072,000 in salaries, fees, cash bonuses and benefits. 

Care UK Health & Social Care Holdings Limited maintains directors’ and officers’ liability insurance 
with respect to its directors and senior managers of its direct and indirect subsidiaries. 
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Defined contribution pension plans 
Care UK operates a stakeholder (defined contribution) arrangement. The total expense relating to 

these plans in the financial year ended 30 September 2014 was £3.4 million (2013: £2.0 million). Pension 
contributions to defined contribution schemes are subject to HM Revenue & Customs limits. Where such limits 
would be exceeded, the remaining amount that would otherwise have been paid as a pension contribution is 
provided as a payment in lieu of pension benefits, at the discretion of the executive director. 

Executive Management Team Share Ownership 
During the year, the Executive Management Team’s holdings (and the percentage of the total issued 

share capital of Care UK Health & Social Care Holdings Limited which this represents) are set out in the table 
below. 

Name 

Number of 
A 

Ordinary 
shares 

Number of 
B 

Ordinary 
shares 

Total 
number 

of 
Ordinary 
shares 

Total per cent. 
of issued 
Ordinary 
shares 

Number of 
Preference 

shares 

Mike Parish ....................................  300,000 12,297 312,297 6.481% 398,703 
Paul Humphreys* ...........................  137,500 2,813 140,313 2.912% 91,220 
TOTAL ...........................................  437,500 15,110 452,610 9.393% 489,923 

* Shareholding disposed of on 30th September 2014. 

Management and Employee Share Ownership 
As at 30 September 2014, in total, 1,000,000 A Ordinary Shares were set aside for issue to Care UK 

management (the “Management Shares”) under a management incentivisation scheme, of which 300,000 
were allocated to the Executive Management Team, as set out in the table above at the year end, this related 
solely to Mike Parish. A further 625,000 have been allocated to other managers and employees, of which 
342,500 are currently held by the group’s Employment Benefit Trust pending allocation to new management. 
The remaining 75,000 A Ordinary Shares are currently unissued and unallocated. 

It is the commercial intention that the Management Shares represent 20.0 per cent. of the value of 
Care UK Health & Social Care Holdings Limited attributable to its issued Ordinary Shares, subject to a ratchet 
mechanism to be applied in the event of a sale, listing or winding up that will reduce the value of the 
Management Shares to 17.5 per cent. if certain performance thresholds are not met. 

Restrictions attaching to shareholdings 
The Management Shares are subject to certain transfer restrictions and customary drag and tag 

provisions. A manager may be forced to sell his Ordinary Shares in the event that he/she ceases to be 
employed by Care UK. In such cases, the consideration payable for the shares depends on the circumstances 
under which the employment ended and on how long the shares have been held. 

Employment Agreements 
Care UK’s policy is that Executive Directors are employed on rolling contracts subject to twelve 

months’ notice from either party. The existing Executive Directors are employed on these terms. There is no 
provision in any Executive Director’s contract for predetermined compensation or liquidated damages in the 
event of early termination, but Care UK may make payments in lieu of notice at its discretion. Care UK would 
review each case of early termination individually in order to ensure compensation settlements are made 
which are appropriate to the circumstances. During the year, the contract details for the Executive Directors 
are: 

 Effective Date 
Unexpired 

Term Notice Period 

Mike Parish ......................................................................  5 Nov 2001 12 months 12 months 
Paul Humphreys (resigned 7 October 2014) ...................  8 Jul 2002 12 months 12 months 
Phil Whitecross ................................................................  12 Dec 2014 12 months 12 months 
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PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS 

Care UK Limited is 100 per cent. owned by Care UK Health & Social Care Plc, which is 100 per cent. 
owned by Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited. Care UK Health & Social Care Investments 
Limited is 100 per cent. owned by Care UK Health & Social Care Finance Limited, which is 100 per cent. 
owned by Care UK Health & Social Care Holdings Limited. Bridgepoint Europe IV (Nominees) Limited holds 
79.4 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital of Care UK Health & Social Care Holdings Limited as 
nominee for Bridgepoint Europe IV—A LP, Bridgepoint Europe IV—B LP, Bridgepoint Europe IV—C LP, 
Bridgepoint Europe IV—D LP, Bridgepoint Europe IV—E LP, Bridgepoint Europe IV—F LP and Bridgepoint 
Europe IV—G LP (together the—BEIV Fund). The BEIV Fund is managed by Bridgepoint. 

Bridgepoint is one of Europe’s leading mid-market private equity managers with a 25 year track record 
of investing in European businesses valued up to €1 billion. It has over 80 professionals and 26 partners 
operating across Europe. Bridgepoint has a Europe-wide network of 11 offices and broad experience from a 
large number of buy-outs and investments in a wide range of sectors and geographies. Within social care and 
health care, Bridgepoint is an active investor having made multiple investments across Europe since 2000. 
Bridgepoint has deep sector knowledge with an excellent track record. 

The remaining 20.6 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital of Care UK Health & Social Care 
Holdings Limited is held by Mike Parish, other members of Care UK’s senior management and a number of 
Care UK’s employees including the group’s Employee Benefit Trust, who together hold 19.7 per cent. of the 
issued ordinary share capital of Care UK Health & Social Care Holdings Limited, as well as the group’s former 
Chairman, whose trustees hold 0.9 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital. 

In connection with the acquisition of Care UK Limited by Care UK Health & Social Care Plc, Mike 
Parish and Paul Humphreys and the funds managed by Bridgepoint, that own 79.4 per cent. of Care UK 
Health & Social Care Holdings Limited, entered into an investment agreement relating to Care UK Health & 
Social Care Holdings Limited. Following his resignation Paul Humphreys no longer holds any interest in any of 
the Care UK Group of companies. 
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Bridgepoint controls Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited through the holding of shares 
in a chain of wholly owned intermediate holding companies—see “Principal Shareholders”. Bridgepoint is 
therefore considered to be a related party. 

Silver Sea Holdings 
Subsequent to the acquisition of Care UK Limited, Bridgepoint and the management of Care UK 

jointly established, as planned, an independent development group of which the parent company is Silver Sea 
Holdings S.A. (“Silver Sea”). The equity interests in Silver Sea are an exact replica of the equity interests in 
Care UK Health & Social Care Holdings Limited. Silver Sea has been established in order to (i) build 
residential care homes to Care UK’s specifications; or (ii) to oversee the development of residential care 
homes by third party property developers who will build the care homes to Care UK’s specifications and sell 
them to Silver Sea on completion. In each case Silver Sea enters into an agreement for lease and 
development with Care UK and enters into a lease for each such home on its practical completion. 

Sites developed by Silver Sea are funded by a combination of equity contributions from its 
shareholders, loans from Care UK and loans drawn down under the separate non-recourse debt facilities 
available to Silver Sea. The loans to be provided by Care UK are on arms length terms and subject to the 
provisions of both Care UK’s Amended Revolving Credit Facility and the 2014 Notes. See “Description Of 
Other Indebtedness”. The loans are recorded on Care UK’s consolidated cashflow statement under the line 
item “Loans to related party undertakings.” 

Under a technical services agreement, Silver Sea subcontracts certain of its obligations to Care UK 
and pays a fee to Care UK for performing these services. Each agreement for lease and development 
contains an obligation on Silver Sea to grant, and an obligation on Care UK to accept, a lease of the relevant 
site. 

Given the commonality of equity ownership between Silver Sea and Care UK, each of the agreements 
entered into between these entities in connection with these greenfield development plans is a related party 
transaction. Since the establishment of Silver Sea, the parties have entered into ten such agreements. A 
number of other sites have been provisionally approved for development subject to the receipt of satisfactory 
planning permission. 
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RISK FACTORS 

 
The risks outlined below should be carefully considered, together with all of the other publicly 

available information regarding Care UK, in assessing any investment decision regarding Care UK. The risks 
below are not the only risks facing Care UK. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to Care 
UK, or that Care UK currently considers to be immaterial, may also materially and adversely affect its 
business or operations. Any of the risks described herein could have a material adverse effect on Care UKôs 
results of operations and financial condition and its ability to service its debt, including the 2014 Notes. 

 
A detailed explanation of each risk factor outlined below can be accessed on the Care UK website: 

careuk.com. 
 
Risks Related to Care UK’s Business 

 Care UK relies on providing services to publicly funded entities in the United Kingdom such as Local 
Authorities and the NHS, typically through Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England, for a 
substantial proportion of its revenue and any material reduction in the revenue earned from such 
services could adversely impact Care UK’s business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 Changes in public policy for health and social care and uncertainty as to the future of such policies, 
particularly given the UK Government’s commitment to reducing public deficit spending, could have 
an adverse impact on Care UK and delay or prevent its ability to achieve its strategic goals or 
increase the costs of achieving them. 

 Care UK’s strategy is partly based on growth derived from increased levels of consumer demand for 
certain of its services or the increased influence of consumers in the choice of the provider of care to 
them and, as a result, its future growth is dependent on maintaining the quality of its services, 
consumer and patient perception of that quality and on its ability to market these services effectively. 

 The risk of an extended recessionary period and weak macro-economic conditions generally may 
have an adverse effect on personal disposable income. 

 Care UK earns revenue from long-term contracts and, as a result, a failure accurately to predict and 
account for future cost increases or to overestimate its ability efficiently to deliver the services that it 
contracts to provide could affect its profitability. Failure to perform its services in accordance with its 
contractual obligations could result in Care UK facing financial penalties or being required to continue 
operating unprofitable contracts. 

 Care UK operates in a highly regulated business environment and failure to comply with regulations 
could lead to substantial penalties, including the loss of the registration certificates necessary to 
continue to trade. 

 Care UK may fail to achieve the planned overhead savings from its organisational change programme 
or these may take longer to deliver, which could have a negative impact upon its planned financial 
performance. 

 Care UK may fail to achieve anticipated contract or service volumes or it may reach those volumes 
over a longer period of time than originally anticipated under its contracts or service business plans, 
which could have a negative impact upon its results of operations and the financial performance of 
Care UK. 

 The NHS 111 service undertaken by Care UK was subject to a challenging initial operational period 
and carries specific contract and financial risks. 

 Care UK’s revenue is derived from contracts and if Care UK is unable to renew them or replace them 
with comparable contracts, it could suffer a substantial reduction in revenues. 

 Negative publicity generally could adversely impact Care UK. 

 Certain of Care UK’s operations, particularly in social care, are capital intensive and require significant 
capital investment and planning to support successful organic growth. 

 Care UK’s growth plans require significant IT system development as well as process and efficiency 
improvement initiatives designed to drive greater operating efficiency within the group’s businesses. 
These initiatives exert competing pressures on the resources of the business, and may impact upon 
the speed of change the business can cope with in the short-term. 

 Financing for the development of new facilities or modifications of existing facilities may not be 
available to Care UK on acceptable terms in the future or at all. 

 Care UK may face challenges in acquiring new businesses and successfully integrating such 
business into Care UK or achieving their planned level of performance. 

 Care UK’s insurance may be inadequate or premiums may increase substantially. 
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 UK Government outsourcing of the provision of health care services to private providers is a relatively 
new development in the United Kingdom and the observed growth in this area may not be sustained 
or could be reversed. 

 Care UK’s activities are exposed to significant medical, clinical and health and safety risks and the 
risk of acute service failure. 

 Care UK operates in a competitive environment and faces competition with other for-profit, public and 
not-for-profit entities for contracts, patients and service users as well as for appropriate sites on which 
to expand and build new facilities. 

 Care UK depends on its ability to attract, retain and train experienced and/or qualified staff in a 
number of disciplines and any reduction in the number of such individuals or an increase in the wages 
and salaries necessary to attract and retain them could negatively impact Care UK. 

 The senior management team is critical to Care UK’s continued performance. 

 Care UK’s business could be disrupted if its information systems fail or if its databases were 
destroyed or damaged. 

 Care UK handles sensitive consumer data in the ordinary course of its business and any failure to 
maintain the confidentiality of that data could result in legal liability for, and reputational harm to, Care 
UK. 

 Care UK’s business is subject to laws and regulations relating to the environment and public health. 

 Loss of Care UK’s ability to use certain key properties subject to long-term leases through termination 
or frustration of the relevant lease, compulsory purchase or other events or circumstances outside its 
control could have a material adverse effect on its ability to operate its business and meet its financial 
obligations. 

 Care UK may become involved in legal proceedings based on environmental, health and public 
liability and the duty of care it assumes for its service users. 

 Care UK may incur substantially more debt in the future.  Together with its current leverage, it may be 
difficult for Care UK to service its debt and impair its ability to operate its businesses. 

 Care UK is subject to covenants under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility and the 2014 Notes, 
which will limit its operating and financial flexibility and, if Care UK defaults under these covenants, it 
may not be able to meet its payment obligations. 

 Care UK may not be able to generate sufficient cash to service its indebtedness, including due to 
factors outside its control, and may be forced to take other actions to satisfy its obligations under its 
indebtedness, which may not be successful. 

 The 2014 Notes, drawings under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility and any future variable 
interest rate debt we incur in the future will bear interest at floating rates that could rise significantly, 
thereby increasing our costs and reducing our cash flow. 

 The interests of Care UK’s principal shareholder may be inconsistent with the interests of the holders 
of the 2014 Notes. 
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DESCRIPTION OF OTHER INDEBTEDNESS 
 

The following summary of certain provisions of the documents listed below governing certain of Care 
UKôs indebtedness does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by reference 
to, the underlying documents. Reference should be made to the Offering Memorandum document published 
in July 2014, for full definitions of terms. 
 
Amended Revolving Credit Facility 
 
Introduction 

On 11 July 2014, the Senior Revolving Facility Agreement was amended and restated pursuant to an 
amendment and restatement agreement entered into between, amongst others, Citigroup Global Markets 
Limited, HSBC Bank plc, ING Bank N.V., London Branch and Credit Suisse International as the mandated 
lead arrangers with respect to the Amended Revolving Credit Facility, ING Bank N.V., London Branch as 
facility agent (for the purposes of this section, the “Agent”) and security agent and the Parent Guarantor. 

 
The Amended Revolving Credit Facility consists of a £65,000,000 revolving credit facility, which may 

be used for general corporate and working capital purposes of the Parent Guarantor and its subsidiaries. 
Customary incremental facilities (“Additional Facilities”) may be made available to the Parent Guarantor and 
its Restricted Subsidiaries (the “Group”) in a maximum aggregate principal amount of the greater of 
(x) £90,000,000 or (y) an amount equal to 13.3% of the Total Assets as at the date on which the Parent 
Guarantor may request by notice to the Agent for the relevant Additional Facility. 
 
Repayments and Prepayments 

The Existing Revolving Credit Facility has a final maturity date of 58 months from the Issue Date. The 
maturity date of any Additional Facility will be as agreed but may not fall prior to the maturity date of the 
original Existing Revolving Credit Facility. There is no clean down requirement during the life of the Amended 
Revolving Credit Facility. 

 
In addition to voluntary prepayments and cancellation, the Amended and Restated Senior Revolving 

Facility Agreement contains customary mandatory prepayment (or, as the case may be, an offer to do so) in 
full or in part in certain circumstances, including: upon a Change of Control Event or the sale of all or 
substantially all of the assets of the Group and upon certain note purchases (as set out below). 
 
Interest  

The Amended Revolving Credit Facility will initially bear interest at a rate per annum equal to LIBOR 
(and interpolated if necessary) plus a margin of 3.25% per annum. The margin is subject to a margin ratchet 
and may be adjusted by reference to the Restricted Group’s Consolidated Net Leverage Ratio, excluding 
indebtedness represented by Hedging Obligations. The margin in respect of any Additional Facility will be 
determined at the time such facility is made available subject to certain restrictions in the Amended Revolving 
Credit Facility. 

 
Security and Guarantees 

The Amended Revolving Credit Facility will be guaranteed irrevocably and unconditionally on a joint 
and several basis by the Guarantors, and will benefit from the same collateral as the Existing Notes as set out 
under “Description of the Senior Secured Notes – Security” within the Offering Memorandum published in July 
2014. 

 
Subject to certain agreed security principles, within 90 days after the date of delivery of each annual 

audited consolidated accounts of the Restricted Group, the Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Facility 
Agreement requires that any member of the Restricted Group necessary to ensure that the Guarantors 
represent not less than 85% of each of the Consolidated EBITDA and gross assets of the Restricted Group 
(the “Guarantor Coverage Test”), becomes a Guarantor.  

 
Under the terms of the Intercreditor Agreement (see below), the proceeds of enforcement of the 

Collateral will be in or towards repayment of Amended Revolving Credit Facility, the obligations under certain 
other credit facilities (if any) and certain hedging obligations (if any) in priority to repayment of the Existing 
Notes. 
 
Covenants 

The Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Facility Agreement contains certain positive, negative 
and incurrence covenants. The incurrence covenants will largely follow those set forth in the section entitled 
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“Description of the Senior Secured Notes—Certain covenants” within the Offering Memorandum published in 
July 2014, subject to certain agreed exceptions. 
 
Financial covenant 

The Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Facility Agreement requires the Parent Guarantor to 
ensure compliance with a super senior gross leverage financial covenant (calculated as the ratio of the 
aggregate amount of all outstanding loans under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility to Consolidated 
EBITDA of the Group) on each of 31 March, 30 June, 30 September and 31 December (commencing from 
30 September 2014), which shall not exceed 1.75:1. The financial covenant shall not be tested unless the 
aggregate amount of all utilisations made under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility is equal to or greater 
than 25% of the total commitments under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility. If this covenant level is not 
met, the breach can be cured by way of new shareholder injections (either by equity or shareholder loans) in 
the Parent Guarantor. No more than three cures are permitted over the duration of the Amended Revolving 
Credit Facility. 
 
Note purchase condition 

The Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Facility Agreement contains a ‘‘note purchase’’  
condition (‘‘Note Purchase’’), which provides, subject to certain exceptions set out in the Amended and 
Restated Senior Revolving Facility Agreement, that the Parent Guarantor shall not, and shall procure that no 
other member of the Restricted Group will, repay, prepay, purchase, redeem, defease or otherwise acquire 
any of the Senior Secured Notes. The exceptions to such note purchase condition include, but are not limited 
to, (i) Note Purchases funded with certain new equity, shareholder loans, certain permitted payments or 
permitted indebtedness under the Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Facility Agreement, (ii) Note 
Purchases pursuant to this paragraph (ii) that do not exceed 50% of the aggregate principal amount of the 
Senior Secured Notes or the Second Lien Notes (as the case may be) from time to time, or (iii) Note 
Purchases that exceed 50% of the aggregate principal amount of the Senior Secured Notes or the Second 
Lien Notes (as the case may be) from time to time provided that the Amended Revolving Credit Facility is 
reduced and cancelled on a pro rata basis with the reduction in the principal amount of the relevant class of 
the Senior Secured Notes or Second Lien Notes (as the case may be) then outstanding until the initial 
commitments under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility have been reduced to £20,000,000 (following 
which no further cancellations or prepayments shall be required, and, in the case of (ii) and (iii), provided no 
Event of Default under the Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Facility Agreement is continuing or would 
result from such Note Purchases). 

 
In addition, Note Purchases may be made following the occurrence of a Change of Control provided 

the Group is in compliance with its obligations as described under ‘‘—Repayments and Prepayments’’ above 
in connection therewith. 
 
Events of Default 

The Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Facility Agreement contains events of default, with 
certain adjustments, as those applicable to the Notes as set forth in the section entitled ‘‘Description of the 
Senior Secured Notes—Events  of  Default  and  remedies’’  and  ‘‘Description  of the  Second Lien Notes—
Events of Default and remedies’’. In addition (or in replacement of), the Amended and Restated Senior 
Revolving Credit Facility Agreement contains other specific events, including among others: breach of the 
financial covenant set out above, cross-default, audit qualification and misrepresentation. 
 
Intercreditor Agreement 

In connection with the entry into the Amended Revolving Credit Facility and the Indentures, the Issuer, 
the Guarantors and certain other subsidiaries of the Parent Guarantor will enter into the Intercreditor 
Agreement to govern the relationships and relative priorities amongst: (i) the lenders under the Amended 
Revolving Credit Facility; (ii) any persons that accede to the Intercreditor Agreement as counterparties to 
certain hedging agreements (collectively, the “Hedging Agreements”) and any persons that accede to the 
Intercreditor Agreement as counterparties to such Hedging Agreements being referred to in such capacity as 
the “Hedge Counterparties”); (iii) the Trustee, on its own behalf and on behalf of the holders of the Senior 
Secured Notes (the “Senior Secured Noteholders”) (the “Senior Secured Notes Trustee”); (iv) the Trustee on 
its own behalf and on behalf of the holders of the Second Lien Notes (the “Second Lien Noteholders”) (the 
“Second Lien Notes Trustee”); (v) the intragroup creditors and debtors; and (vi) certain direct or indirect 
shareholders of the Parent Guarantor in respect of certain structural debt that the Parent Guarantor or another 
member of the Group has incurred or may incur in the future (including any subordinated shareholder loans). 
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Financial Statements 
 
Consolidated Financial Statements of Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited and its 
Subsidiaries 
 

The audited consolidated financial statements of Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited, 
set out on pages F-2 to F-56, reflect the two financial years ended 30 September 2014 and 30 September 
2013. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union and are presented in pounds sterling. 
 

Certain amounts that appear in this Annual report have been subject to rounding adjustments. 
Accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures that 
precede them and amounts expressed as percentages may not total 100 per cent. when aggregated. 
 

The adjusted financial information and financial statements presented before giving effect to the 
provisions of IFRIC 12 contained herein are unaudited and have not been prepared in accordance with SEC 
requirements or IFRS, or the accounting standards of any other jurisdiction. 
 

IFRS differs in certain respects from generally accepted accounting principles in the United States 
(“US GAAP”). Care UK has not prepared and does not currently intend to prepare its financial statements in, 
or reconcile them to, US GAAP. Investors should consult their own professional advisers for an understanding 
of the differences between US GAAP and IFRS. 

 
The financial information included in this Annual report is not intended to comply with the reporting 

requirements of the SEC and will not be subject to review by the SEC. 
 
IFRIC 12 - ñService Concession Arrangementsò 

The European Union endorsed IFRIC 12 “Service Concession Arrangements” on 25 March 2009 and 
this interpretation is mandatory for accounting periods commencing after that date. Care UK applied IFRIC 12 
for the first time in connection with its audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended 
30 September 2010. 
 

IFRIC 12 applies to public-to-private service concession arrangements in which the public sector 
controls or regulates the service provided with the infrastructure and their prices, and is contractually 
guaranteed to, at a future time, gain ownership of the infrastructure through which the service is provided. 

 
At the time of IFRIC 12 original implementation, Care UK identified a number of existing contractual 

arrangements in its Health Care and Residential Care divisions to which IFRIC 12 was applicable. The 
contracts in the Health Care division to which IFRIC 12 originally applied have now all expired. IFRIC 12 also 
applies to certain “PFI Handback” contracts in the Residential Care division, where ownership of the property 
reverts to the contracting Local Authority upon expiry of the underlying service contracts. Care UK has not 
entered into any contract to which IFRIC 12 applies since the ISTC Wave I contracts entered into in 2004 and 
2005, and does not currently anticipate any such contract being entered into in the future. As a consequence, 
the differences between Care UK’s results reported prior to the application of IFRIC 12 and its fully IFRS 
compliant results are expected to reduce over time as compared with the results reported for the year ended 
30 September 2014, insofar as they relate to the remaining PFI Handback contracts within the Residential 
Care division. 

 
Following the adoption of IFRIC 12, Care UK accounts for service concessions as follows: 

• revenue and operating profit are separately recognised during the construction and operational 
phases of the service concession arrangement; and 

• consideration receivable that relates to the construction phase of a contract is recognised as: 

o a financial asset in the balance sheet – where Care UK has an unconditional right to receive a 
specified amount of cash over the life of the arrangement; or 

o an intangible asset – where Care UK’s future cash flows are not specified (e.g. where they will 
vary according to the usage of the infrastructure asset); or 

o both a financial asset and an intangible asset. 
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There is no impact on cash or total profit that will ultimately be recognised throughout the life of the 
service concession arrangement. However, IFRIC 12 has an impact on Care UK’s reported revenue and 
EBITDA because a proportion of the overall revenue to be earned under the contract is recognised as 
revenue during the construction phase of the underlying asset rather than being recognised as the contracted 
services are delivered. The corresponding right to receive cash in the future in relation to this proportion of the 
total contract revenue is accounted for on Care UK’s balance sheet as a financial asset, which is recovered in 
cash over the period of the concession arrangement. Prior to the adoption of IFRIC 12, this amount would 
have formed part of the balance sheet heading of property, plant and equipment and was depreciated on a 
periodic basis through the Consolidated statement of comprehensive performance. In addition, a further 
proportion of the overall revenue to be earned from contracts to which IFRIC 12 applies is accounted for as 
financial income and not as revenue. Any capital expenditure incurred in relation to infrastructure assets that 
are accounted for under IFRIC 12 is now charged to cost of sales in the Consolidated statement of 
comprehensive performance in the year it is incurred. Prior to the adoption of IFRIC 12, such expenditure was 
capitalised and depreciated over its estimated useful life.  
 

In addition to the audited consolidated financial statements that are presented in this Annual report, 
unaudited condensed consolidated non-statutory financial information as of and for the years ended 30 
September 2014 and 30 September 2013, without giving effect to the provisions of IFRIC 12, are also 
presented, on pages F-59 to F-65 of this Annual report.  
 
Non-IFRS Financial Measures 

The financial measures Adjusted operating profit, Adjusted EBITDA, Estimated Pro Forma Adjusted 
EBITDA, free cash flow, net debt and cash conversion ratio as against Adjusted EBITDA as presented in this 
Annual report, are non-IFRS measures that are supplemental measures of Care UK’s performance. 

 
Adjusted EBITDA is defined as Adjusted operating profit plus depreciation. 

 
Adjusted operating profit, which includes Care UK’s proportionate ownership share of EBITDA from 

joint venture enterprises, is defined as Operating profit before net financing expenses adjusted to exclude 
amortisation of IFRS 3 intangible assets, impairment charges and non-recurring items and excluding the 
impact of applying IAS 17 in respect of lease incentives outlined below. 

 
Amortisation of intangible assets: Intangible assets comprise the value attributed to ongoing customer 

relationships or customer contracts within acquired businesses. Under IFRS 3, all business combinations are 
reviewed in order to identify any intangible assets required to be recognised. Such intangible assets are then 
amortised over their estimated useful lives, which do not exceed ten years. 

 
Impairment charges: Impairment charges reflect impairment losses of goodwill, other intangible assets 

and tangible assets and are recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. 
 

Non-recurring items: In the normal course of business ‘non-recurring’ costs are often incurred due to 
the varied operations and services of the group. Due to the inherent nature of non-recurring items it is not 
possible to define its application to any particular type of transaction or profit or loss. Care UK therefore 
applies judgement in the disclosure of non-recurring items that is designed to enable users to understand the 
performance achieved in a period and assist them in forming a basis for their assessment of future results and 
cash flows. Non-recurring items may arise from a variety of sources and due to the complexity of the Care UK 
business are likely to occur in one form or another in most periods. 
 

IAS 17 lease expense: Care UK enters into various lease arrangements with third parties within the 
normal course of business which can be subject to various types of incentive. Lease incentives on operating 
units typically take the form of rent free periods as they reflect the economic contribution profile of the unit 
during the early stages of occupancy, however, under the terms of the lease, cash rent does not become 
payable until the expiry of the rent free period. Other lease incentives may take the form of a cash premium 
received at inception or renewal of the lease with annual cash rent payable from commencement of the lease. 
Under IAS 17 ‘‘Leases’’, lease incentives are allocated on a straight line basis over the life of the lease. The 
non- IFRS financial measure Adjusted operating profit is presented on a cash rent basis as it excludes the 
effect of applying the straight line method to lease incentives in order to reflect the underlying commercial 
arrangement and provide underlying operational performance and cash generation of the business. 

 
 
Estimated Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA is defined as Adjusted EBITDA after giving effect to certain 

pro forma adjustments related to start-up losses, contract and services changes, headcount reductions and 
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the opening of new residential care service (‘‘RCS’’) facilities. The assumptions on which these adjustments 
are made are based on our current estimates, and they involve risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other 
factors that may cause actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any 
anticipated future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such pro forma financial 
information. We may not realize any or all of our anticipated increases to Adjusted EBITDA included in this 
Estimated Pro Forma measure. See “Forward-Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors”. 

 
Free cash flow is defined as Adjusted EBITDA less maintenance capital expenditure. 

 
Net debt is defined as the principal amount of the 2014 Notes, all bank or other loans (net of 

unamortised arrangement fees where applicable), overdrafts and finance lease liabilities, less cash and cash 
equivalents. 
 

Cash conversion ratio as against Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating cash flow as a percentage 
of Adjusted EBITDA. 

 
Care UK presents these supplemental non-IFRS measures because it believes, when considered in 

conjunction with related IFRS financial measures, these measures provide investors with important additional 
information to evaluate operating performance and financial position. Care UK believes that Adjusted 
operating profit is useful to investors because it provides additional useful information on the underlying 
performance of the business. Care UK presents Adjusted EBITDA and Estimated Pro Forma Adjusted 
EBITDA because it believes, when considered in conjunction with related standard IFRS financial measures, 
Adjusted EBITDA and Estimated Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA provide investors with important additional 
information to evaluate operating performance. Free cash flow is primarily a liquidity measure, however Care 
UK also believes that it is an important indicator of its overall operational performance as it reflects the cash it 
generates from operations after maintenance capital expenditure. Adjusted operating profit, Adjusted EBITDA, 
Estimated Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA, free cash flow and net debt, however, are not measures of financial 
performance under IFRS, have not been audited and should not be considered alternatives to, or more 
meaningful than, net income as a measure of operating performance. Since Adjusted operating profit, 
Adjusted EBITDA, Estimated Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA, free cash flow and net debt are non-IFRS 
measures and thus are susceptible to varying interpretations and calculations, these measures may not be 
comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies. These measures have limitations as 
analytical tools, and investors should not consider them in isolation from, or as a substitute for analysis of, 
financial information prepared in accordance with IFRS. 

 
Key Line Items in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Performance 

The following is a brief description of the most significant line items that are included in the 
Consolidated statement of comprehensive performance. 
 
Revenue  

Revenue represents the fair value of sales and services to third party customers, stated net of any 
applicable value added tax, rebates and discounts. Following the application of IFRIC 12, a proportion of the 
overall revenue to be earned from contracts to which IFRIC 12 applies (see above) is accounted for as 
financial income and not as revenue. Revenue from services provided by the various businesses within the 
Care UK group is recognised as follows: 
 

Social Care: Revenue from long-term contracts relating to residential based services is recognised on 
a time-elapsed basis as the principal contractual obligation is to provide bed capacity. Units of care under 
these contracts are typically provided on a daily basis and there is no obligation to carry forward any non-
utilised capacity. 
 

Revenue from spot contracts relating to residential based services is recognised when Care UK’s 
principal contractual obligation is fulfilled, that is typically when a service user has received care services from 
Care UK, which are usually provided on a daily basis. 
 

Revenue from services delivered in community based settings, including domiciliary care and 
supported living services to learning disabled service users, is recognised on the actual delivery of care 
services. Revenue attributable to any unused capacity under “block” contracts relating to such services, where 
Care UK is able to submit invoices for contracted services that have not actually been provided, is only 
recognised when the recovery of income is considered virtually certain. 
 

Health Care: Revenue from capacity related contracts is recognised on a time-elapsed basis as the 
principal contractual obligation is to provide an agreed level of capacity over a fixed term. There is no 
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obligation under these contracts to carry forward non-utilised capacity. 
 

Revenue from service related contracts (where these do not fall under IFRIC 12) is recognised only 
on the delivery of services, either surgical procedures or other treatments, under contractual obligations that 
are intended to provide a pre-determined volume of services over a fixed term. Revenue attributable to 
unused capacity is only recognised when recovery of income is considered virtually certain. 

 
Revenue from spot contracts relating to residential based services within the mental health facilities is 

recognised when Care UK’s principal contractual obligation is fulfilled, that is typically when a service user has 
received care services from Care UK, which are usually provided on a daily basis. 

 
Cost of sales 

Cost of sales comprises the direct operating expenses incurred in the delivery of services in each of 
Care UK’s operating divisions, in particular direct staff costs, including agency staff and self-employed medical 
professionals, medical consumables and prostheses, premises costs, utilities, food and other variable care 
related expenses, rent and the majority of depreciation charges. 
 
Administrative expenses 

Administrative expenses include all operating expenses that are not directly attributable to the actual 
delivery of Care UK’s services, principally central staff costs, employee support costs, central premises costs, 
including rent, central property services and facilities management costs, legal and professional costs, 
marketing and development costs and depreciation charges in respect of centrally held fixed assets. In 
addition, this expense heading includes the amortisation of intangible assets and any impairment charges 
thereon, non-recurring items and the non-cash IAS 17 lease expense. 
 
Financing expenses 

Financing expenses comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective interest 
rate method, interest receivable on funds invested and gains and losses, if any, on hedging instruments that 
are recognised in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive performance. In addition, in the IFRS 
compliant financial statements, a proportion of the overall revenue to be earned from contracts to which 
IFRIC 12 applies is accounted for as financial income and not as revenue. 

 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with adopted IFRS requires management to 
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Management bases its estimates and associated assumptions on 
historical experience and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets 
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
 

Care UK uses estimates in accounting for allowances for uncollectible receivables, depreciation, 
amortisation and impairment, pensions, taxes and contingencies. The estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed periodically and the effects of revisions are reflected in the financial statements in the period that 
an adjustment is determined to be required. 
 

Significant accounting judgements in applying Care UK’s accounting policies have been applied by 
Care UK in order to prepare the consolidated financial statements with respect to the value of goodwill and 
other intangible assets and pensions. 
 
Intangible Assets 

The group uses forecast cash flow information and estimates of future growth to initially value other 
intangible assets, to assess whether goodwill and other intangible assets are impaired, and to determine the 
useful economic lives of its intangible assets. If the results of operations in a future period are adverse to the 
estimates used for impairment testing, an impairment charge may be triggered at that point, or a reduction in 
useful economic life may be required.  
 
Pensions 
Details of the principal actuarial assumptions used in calculating the recognised liability for the defined benefit 

plans are given in note 22 to the audited financial statements as at and for the financial year ended 

30 September 2014. Changes to the discount rate, mortality rates and actual return on plan assets may 

necessitate material adjustments to this liability in the future. 
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CARE UK HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE DIRECTORS’ 

REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic report and the Directors’ report and the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.   

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for 
each financial year.  Under that law they have elected to prepare both the group and the parent 
company financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law.  

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied 
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their 
profit or loss for that period.  In preparing each of the group and parent company financial statements, 
the directors are required to:   

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;   

 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;   

 state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU; and   

 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume 
that the group and the parent company will continue in business. 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and 
explain the parent company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 
financial position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply 
with the Companies Act 2006.  They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are 
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and 
other irregularities.   

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial 
information included on the company's website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 
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CARE UK HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE 

For the year ended 30 September 2014 

  Notes 2014 2013  
   £m £m  
 Revenue ......................................................................................   725.8 657.2  
 Cost of sales ................................................................................   (642.5) (570.5)  
 Gross profit.................................................................................   83.3 86.7  
 Administrative expenses ..............................................................   (102.1) (95.2)  
 Operating loss before financing expense ...............................   (18.8) (8.5)  
      

 Adjusted EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxation, 
depreciation and amortisation) ...............................................................................   48.1 53.4  

 Depreciation of tangible assets ..................................................................................  5, 7 (30.1) (23.1)  
 Adjusted operating profit ..............................................................   18.0 30.3  
 Amortisation of intangible assets .................................................  5, 8 (21.3) (20.6)  
 Impairment of intangible assets ...................................................  5, 8 - (1.8)  
 Non-recurring items .....................................................................  2 (13.0) (16.4)  
 IAS 17 lease expense ..................................................................   (2.4) -  
 Less: Share of joint venture EBITDA ...........................................   (0.1) -  
 Operating loss before financing expense ...............................   (18.8) (8.5)  
      
      
 Financial income ..........................................................................   2.9 2.1  
 Financial expense ........................................................................   (58.3) (36.6)  
 Net financing expense ...............................................................  3 (55.4) (34.5)  
      
 Share of results of joint venture ...................................................   (0.3) -  
 Loss before taxation ..................................................................  5 (74.5) (43.0)  
 Taxation .......................................................................................  6 12.0 12.9  
 Loss for the period ....................................................................   (62.5) (30.1)  
      
 Loss attributable to     
 Equity holders of the parent .........................................................   (62.5) (30.1)  
 Non-controlling interest ................................................................   - -  
   (62.5) (30.1)  
      
 Other comprehensive (expense)/income ................................      
 Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension 

plan ..............................................................................................   (1.5) 1.4  

 Deferred taxation on actuarial losses/(gains) ..............................   0.3 (0.3)  
 Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the 

period, net of taxation ............................................................   (1.2) 1.1  
 Total comprehensive loss for the period ................................   (63.7) (29.0)  
      
 Total comprehensive loss attributable to     
 Equity holders of the parent .........................................................   (63.7) (29.0)  
 Non-controlling interest ................................................................   - -  
   (63.7) (29.0)  

 

The notes on pages F-19 to F-47 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CARE UK HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
BALANCE SHEET 

As at 30 September 2014 

  Group Company 

 Notes 2014 2013 2014 2013 

  £m £m £m £m 
Assets      
Property, plant and equipment .................................................  7 277.6 276.2 - - 
Intangible assets ......................................................................  8 211.0 232.1 - - 
Other financial assets...............................................................  9 21.7 22.2 - - 
Amounts due from related party undertakings .........................   18.0 15.1 - - 
Investments in subsidiary undertakings ...................................  10 - - 210.7 210.7 
Equity-accounted investments .................................................   5.5 5.4 - - 

Other receivables .....................................................................  12(a) 8.9 - - - 

Other investments ....................................................................   - 0.1 - - 

Total non-current assets .......................................................   542.7 551.1 210.7 210.7 

Inventories ................................................................................  11 4.1 3.0 - - 
Trade and other receivables ....................................................  12(b) 86.9 87.5 - 40.8 
Other financial assets...............................................................  9 1.1 1.0 - - 
Cash and cash equivalents ......................................................  13 20.9 34.6 - - 
Assets held for sale ..................................................................  14 0.4 0.3 - - 

Total current assets ...............................................................   113.4 126.4 - 40.8 

Total assets ............................................................................   656.1 677.5 210.7 251.5 

Liabilities      
Financial liabilities ....................................................................  15(a) (1.3) (1.9) - - 
Trade and other payables ........................................................  16 (166.2) (148.9) (6.0) (0.6) 

Total current liabilities ...........................................................   (167.5) (150.8) (6.0) (0.6) 

Financial liabilities ....................................................................  15(b) (398.5) (370.0) (3.4) (45.0) 
Other non-current liabilities ......................................................  17 (14.6) (4.3) - - 
Deferred tax liabilities ...............................................................  18 (4.8) (18.0) - - 

Total non-current liabilities ...................................................   (417.9) (392.3) (3.4) (45.0) 

Total liabilities ........................................................................   (585.4) (543.1) (9.4) (45.6) 

Net assets ...............................................................................   70.7 134.4 201.3 205.9 

Equity      
Issued share capital .................................................................  19 210.7 210.7 210.7 210.7 
Retained earnings ....................................................................   (140.0) (76.3) (9.4) (4.8) 

Total equity attributable to equity holders 
of the parent ...........................................................................   70.7 134.4 201.3 205.9 

The notes on pages F-19 to F-47 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

The financial statements on pages F-2 to F-47 were approved by the board of directors on 16 
December 2014 and were signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

MIKE PARISH  
Director  
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CARE UK HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

As at 30 September 2014 

 

Attributable to equity holders 
of the parent   

Group 

Issued 
share 
capital 

Retained 
earnings 

Total 
parent 
equity 

Non-
controlling 

interest 
Total 
equity 

 £m £m £m £m £m 
At 30 September 2012 ..................................................................  210.7 (47.3) 163.4 - 163.4 

      

Total loss for the period ................................................................  - (30.1) (30.1) - (30.1) 

Other comprehensive income .......................................................  - 1.1 1.1 - 1.1 

Total comprehensive loss for the period .......................................  - (29.0) (29.0) - (29.0) 

      
At 30 September 2013 .................................................................  210.7 (76.3) 134.4 - 134.4 

      

Total loss for the period ................................................................  - (62.5) (62.5) - (62.5) 

Other comprehensive expense .....................................................  - (1.2) (1.2) - (1.2) 

Total comprehensive loss for the period... - (63.7) (63.7) - (63.7) 

      

At 30 September 2014 .................................................................  210.7 (140.0) 70.7 - 70.7 

 
 
 

Company 

Issued 
share 
capital 

Retained 
earnings 

Total 
equity 

 £m £m £m 
At 30 September 2012 ............................................................................  210.7 (1.6) 209.1 
    

Total loss for the period ..........................................................................  - (3.2) (3.2) 

Total comprehensive loss for the period .................................................  - (3.2) (3.2) 

    
At 30 September 2013 ...........................................................................  210.7 (4.8) 205.9 
    

Total loss for the period ..........................................................................  - (4.6) (4.6) 

Total comprehensive loss for the period .................................................  - (4.6) (4.6) 

    

At 30 September 2014 ...........................................................................  210.7 (9.4) 201.3 

 

The notes on pages F-19 to F-47 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CARE UK HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

For the year ended 30 September 2014 

  Group Company 

 Notes 2014 2013 2014 2013 

  £m £m £m £m 
Cash flows from operating activities      
Loss for the period before taxation ..................................................   (74.5) (43.0) (4.6) (2.9) 
Share of results of joint venture .......................................................   0.3 - - - 
Financial income ..............................................................................   (2.9) (2.1) (0.4) (0.4) 
Financial expense ............................................................................   58.3 36.6 5.0 3.3 
Depreciation of tangible assets ........................................................   30.1 23.1 - - 
Amortisation of intangible assets .....................................................   21.3 20.6 - - 
Impairment of intangible assets .......................................................   - 1.8 - - 
Decrease in IFRIC 12 financial asset ...............................................   2.3 2.8 - - 
(Profit)/loss on disposal of fixed assets............................................    (0.1) 0.1 - - 
(Increase)/decrease in inventory ......................................................   (0.8) 0.1 - - 
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other 

receivables ...................................................................................   (7.4) (19.4) 40.8 - 
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other 

payables .......................................................................................   17.9 10.8 5.7 (30.7) 

Cash flow from operations ............................................................   44.5 31.4 46.5 (30.7) 
Income taxes paid ............................................................................   - (0.3) - - 

Net cash flow from operating activities .......................................   44.5 31.1 46.5 (30.7) 

Cash flow from investing activities      
Payments to acquire property, plant and 

equipment .....................................................................................  
 

(30.0) (34.9) - - 
Loans to related party undertakings.................................................   (1.5) (5.1) - - 
Investment in joint venture ...............................................................   (0.1) (1.4) - - 
Loans to joint venture .......................................................................   (0.2) (4.2) - - 
Interest received ...............................................................................   0.4 - - - 
Net proceeds from sales of property, plant and 

equipment .....................................................................................   3.1 1.7 - - 
Payments to acquire subsidiary undertakings 

(net of cash acquired) ...................................................................   - (67.1) - - 

Net cash flow from investing activities .......................................   (28.3) (111.0) - - 

Cash flow from financing activities      
Proceeds from new loans ................................................................   658.0 177.6 258.0 95.7 
Repayment of amounts borrowed ....................................................   (625.5) (61.1) (300.5) (61.1) 

Interest paid .....................................................................................   (51.4) (34.4) (3.3) (2.0) 

Finance costs ...................................................................................   (8.7) (4.4) (0.7) (1.9) 

Payment of capital element of finance lease 
payments ......................................................................................   (2.3) (1.5) - - 

Net cash flow from financing activities .......................................   (29.9) 76.2 (46.5) 30.7 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ................................   (13.7) (3.7) - - 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 

the period ......................................................................................   34.6 38.3 - - 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 
the period ....................................................................................  13 20.9 34.6 - - 

 

The notes on pages F-19 to F-47 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CARE UK HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

The significant accounting policies of the group and parent company are set out below. 

The group’s annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2014 
are prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted for use within the EU (“adopted IFRS”), including 
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) interpretations and those parts of 
the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The directors have elected to 
prepare the parent company’s financial statements on the same basis. 

Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited (“the company”) is a company domiciled in 
England and Wales. The consolidated financial statements of the company for the year ended 
30 September 2014 comprise the company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “group”). 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 16 December 2014. 

(a)    STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with adopted IFRS. 

(b)    BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis or fair value as 
appropriate. 

Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value 
less costs to sell. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with adopted IFRS requires management 
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values 
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note (y) in these 
Accounting Policies. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects 
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current 
and future periods. 

The accounting policies set out below and on the following pages have been applied 
consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently by group entities. Refer to section (w) of these Accounting Policies for new 
standards effective and applied in these financial statements. 

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, notwithstanding current year 
total comprehensive losses of £63.7m (2013 losses: £29.0m), which the directors feel to be appropriate 
for the following reasons.  As at 30 September 2014 the group has undrawn borrowing facilities of 
£50.9m (2013: £58.6m) and cash of £20.9m (2013: £34.6m). This should enable the company to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future by meeting its liabilities as they fall due for 
payment. 
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(c)    BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 

(i) Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the company. Control exists when the company has the 
power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain 
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or 
convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control 
ceases. 

(ii) Joint ventures 

Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the group has joint control, established 
by contractual agreement. The consolidated financial statements include the group’s share of the 
profits less losses of joint ventures in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive performance and 
its interest in their net assets in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with the equity method 
of accounting. 

(iii) Transactions eliminated upon consolidation 

Intra-group balances and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising 
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. 
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of 
the group’s interest in the entity. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, 
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. 

(d)    FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date 
of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance 
sheet date are translated to sterling at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange 
differences arising on translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive performance. 

The functional currency of all the group entities is sterling. 

(e)    FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(i) Non-derivative instruments 

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash 
equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables. 

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. The group has no 
non-derivative financial instruments measured at fair value through the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive performance. Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments are 
measured as described below. 

Accounting for cash and cash equivalents is discussed in note (k); interest bearing borrowings 
in note (m); and finance income and expense in note (r)(iii). Other non-derivative financial instruments 
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. 

(ii) Derivative financial instruments 

The group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate risks 
arising from its financing activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the group does not hold or 
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. However, derivatives that do not qualify for 
hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments. 
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Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially and subsequently at fair value. The gain 
or loss on re-measurement to fair value is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive performance. However, where the derivatives qualify for hedge accounting and the 
group opts to apply hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature 
of the item being hedged. In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the group is required to document in 
advance the relationship between the item being hedged and the hedging instrument. The group is 
also required to demonstrate that the hedge is highly effective on an on-going basis. This effectiveness 
testing is re-performed at each period end to ensure the hedge remains highly effective. 

 (iii) Cash flow hedges 

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows 
of a recognised asset or liability, the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial 
instrument is recognised directly in equity. The associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from 
equity and recognised in the statement of comprehensive performance in the same period or periods 
during which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss. The ineffective part of any gain or 
loss is recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive performance. 

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity revokes 
designation of the hedge relationship but the hedged transaction is still expected to occur, the 
cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above 
policy when the transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the 
cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised immediately in the statement of 
comprehensive performance. 

(iv) Financial guarantee contracts 

Where the company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of 
other companies within its group, the company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and 
accounts for them as such. In this respect, the company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent 
liability until such time as it becomes probable that the company will be required to make a payment 
under the guarantee. 

(f)    PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

(i) Owned assets 

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and deemed cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. 

Certain items of property that had been revalued to fair value prior to 1 October 2004, the date 
of transition to adopted IFRS, are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount 
at the date of that revaluation less any subsequent depreciation and impairments.  The fair value 
adjustments recorded by the group on the acquisition of Care UK Limited in 2010 include uplifts in the 
valuation of certain tangible assets, as valued independently at the time of the acquisition of Care UK 
Limited. 

Assets in the course of construction are carried in the financial statements at cost, taken from 
the most recent surveyor’s cost certificate received prior to the date of the financial statements. 

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment. 

The cost of land and buildings includes both the costs of financing assets in the course of 
construction and other costs that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
Capitalisation of finance and other costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to 
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete. 
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(ii) Leased assets 

Where the group enters into a lease which entails taking substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of an asset, the lease is classified as a finance lease. The asset acquired by way of 
finance lease is stated at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the 
minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Future instalments under such leases, net of finance charges, are included within creditors. 

All other leases are accounted for as operating leases. 

The group is required to perform dilapidation repairs on leased properties prior to the 
properties being vacated at the end of their lease term.  Provision for such costs is made where a legal 
obligation is identified and the liability can be reasonably quantified.  

(iii) Subsequent costs 

The group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the 
cost of replacing part of such an item when that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future 
economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other costs are recognised in the statement of comprehensive performance, as 
an expense, as incurred. 

(iv) Depreciation 

Depreciation is charged to the statement of comprehensive performance to write off the cost, 
less estimated residual values, of property, plant and equipment by equal instalments over their 
estimated useful economic lives as follows: 

Freehold land ................................................................  — no depreciation provided 
Freehold buildings .........................................................  — 25 to 50 years 
Long leasehold buildings ..............................................  — 50 years or, if shorter, the period of the lease or 

the associated contract 
Short leasehold buildings ..............................................  — the shorter of the period of the lease or the 

associated contract 
Plant and machinery (as an integral part of 

property assets) .........................................................  — 25 years or, if shorter, the period of the lease 
Motor vehicles ...............................................................  — four years 
Furniture, fittings, medical equipment and office 

equipment ..................................................................  — three to ten years 

The residual value, if not insignificant, is reassessed annually. 

(v) Pre-contract costs 

Pre-contract costs include the costs attributable to a contract for the period from the date of 
securing the contract to the date at which financial close is achieved. The award of preferred bidder 
status is considered as the point at which it is probable that the contract has been secured, although 
contracts are individually reviewed in order to apply the most appropriate treatment. Costs that relate 
directly to a contract and which are incurred in this period are included as part of pre-contract costs 
where they can be separately identified and reliably measured. Such amounts are held within other 
debtors until such time as financial close of the contract is achieved, at which time they are transferred 
to assets in the course of construction. 
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(g)    INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

(i) Goodwill 

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Goodwill 
represents amounts arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, being the 
excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the fair values attributable to the net 
identifiable assets acquired. 

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on 
acquisitions before the date of transition to adopted IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP 
amounts. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is not subject to periodic amortisation but 
is tested annually for impairment. As permitted under IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”, the fair value of 
the assets acquired may be reassessed in the instance of further information arising within twelve 
months from the date of acquisition, provided the initial fair values were determined as provisional. 

Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised directly in the statement of 
comprehensive performance. 

(ii) Other intangible assets 

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the group are stated at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses. 

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive performance, as an expense, as incurred. 

(iii) Amortisation 

Amortisation is charged to the statement of comprehensive performance on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Customer 
relationships are amortised over their estimated useful economic lives, which do not exceed ten years. 
Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested annually for impairment. 
Intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use over their estimated useful 
lives. 

(iv) Impairment 

The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any impairment. The group also 
reviews the carrying amounts of its depreciable tangible and intangible assets to determine if there is 
any indication that an asset has suffered an impairment loss. 

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of 
its net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate 
largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to 
which the asset belongs. 

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive performance. 

(h)    INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provisions for impairment. 
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(i)    TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Trade and other receivables are stated at their fair value less impairment losses. 

(j)    INVENTORIES 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated selling expenses. The 
cost of inventories is based on a first-in first-out cost formula. 

(k)    CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with an original maturity 
of three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the 
group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose 
of the statement of cash flows. 

(l)    SHARE CAPITAL 

(i) Dividends 

Final dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are approved by the 
company’s shareholders. Interim dividends are recorded in the period in which they are paid. 

(m)    INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS 

Interest bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest- bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with 
any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive performance over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis. 

(n)    EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

The assets of all pension plans are held separately from those of the group, in independently 
administered managed funds. 

(i) Defined contribution plans 

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an 
expense in the statement of comprehensive performance as incurred. 

(ii) Defined benefit plans 

The group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated by 
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the 
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of 
any plan assets is deducted. The discount rate applied is the yield at the balance sheet date on AA 
credit rated bonds that have maturity obligations approximating to the terms of the group’s obligations. 
The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. 

The group recognises all actuarial gains and losses in the statement of comprehensive 
performance. 

(o)    TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Trade and other payables are stated at cost. 
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(p)    SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS 

IFRIC 12 “Service Concession Arrangements” (the ‘interpretation’) addresses the accounting by 

private sector operators involved in the provision of public sector infrastructure assets and services.  For all 

arrangements falling within the scope of the interpretation, the infrastructure assets are not recognised as 

property, plant and equipment of the operator.  Rather, depending on the terms of the arrangement, the 

operator recognises: 

• a financial asset – where the operator has an unconditional right to receive a specified 

amount of cash or other financial asset over the life of the arrangement; or 

• an intangible asset – where the operator’s future cash flows are not specified (e.g. where 

they will vary according to the usage of the infrastructure asset); or 

• both a financial asset and an intangible asset where the operator’s return is provided 

partially by a financial asset and partially by an intangible asset. 

As a consequence of this treatment the operator recognises investment income in respect of the 
financial asset on an effective interest basis and amortisation of any intangible asset arising.  In addition, the 
timing of profit recognition changes over the life of the contract with no change in the overall project cash 
flows arising therein.   

(q) REVENUE 

(i) Services rendered 

Revenue represents the fair value of sales and services to third party customers, stated net of 
any applicable value added tax, rebates and discounts. The stage of completion as defined in IAS 18 
“Revenue” is determined by reference to the point at which the group has met its principal contractual 
obligations. Revenue is recognised as follows: 

• Residential Care 

Residential long-term contracts — revenue is recognised on a time-elapsed basis as the 
principal contractual obligation is to provide bed capacity. Units of care under these contracts 
are typically provided on a daily basis and there is no obligation to carry forward any non-
utilised capacity. 

Residential spot purchase contracts — revenue is recognised when the group’s principal 
contractual obligation is fulfilled, that is typically when a service user has received care 
services from the group, which are usually provided on a daily basis. 

• Community Services 

Community based services — revenue is recognised only on the actual delivery of care 
services. Revenue attributable to any unused capacity under “block” contracts, where the 
group is able to submit invoices for contracted services that have not actually been provided, is 
only recognised when the recovery of income is considered virtually certain. 

• Health Care 

Capacity related contracts — revenue is recognised on a time-elapsed basis as the principal 
contractual obligation is to provide an agreed level of capacity over a fixed term. There is no 
obligation under these contracts to carry forward non-utilised capacity. 

Service related contracts — revenue is recognised only on the delivery of services, either 
surgical procedures or other treatments, under contractual obligations that are intended to 
provide a pre-determined volume of services over a fixed term. Revenue attributable to unused 
capacity is only recognised when recovery of income is considered virtually certain. 

In all businesses when revenue is invoiced in advance this is accounted for as deferred income 
until the service is provided. 
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(ii) Land pass through 

In the normal course of business the group enters into forward agreements with institutional 
funders for the development of new residential care homes. Where these funding arrangements 
include the pass through of land from Care UK’s customer to the institutional provider, who ultimately 
bear the risks and reward of ownership of the property during construction and on legal completion, 
Care UK makes a nil gain or loss from the pass through transaction. 

 Under IAS 18 revenue is measured at the fair value of the goods or services received, adjusted 
by the amount of cash or cash equivalents transferred. Accordingly, Care UK recognises the fair value 
of non-cash deferred income and operating lease charges, being equal and opposite values, within 
liabilities and assets respectively upon the legal transfer of land. The subsequent amortisation of both 
the deferred income and lease charge are released to the statement of comprehensive performance 
over the life of the underlying contract and lease relationships. 

 There is no impact on cash flow or total profit or loss that will ultimately be recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive performance over the life of the operating leases or service contracts. 

(iii) Government grants 

Capital based Government grants are included within accruals and deferred income in the 
balance sheet and credited to the statement of comprehensive performance over the estimated useful 
economic lives of the assets to which they relate. Grants that compensate the group for expenses 
incurred are recognised as revenue in the statement of comprehensive performance on a systematic 
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. 

(r)    EXPENSES 

(i) Operating lease payments 

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
performance on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive performance as an integral part of the total lease 
expense. 

The amortisation of the fair value of non-cash operating lease charges arising on the pass 
through of land to institutional funders as outlined in accounting policy q(ii) above are recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive performance on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

(ii) Finance lease payments 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the 
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

(iii) Net financing costs 

Net financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective 
interest rate method, interest receivable on funds invested, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
gains and losses on hedging instruments that are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
performance. 

Interest income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive performance as it accrues, 
using the effective interest method. The interest expense component of finance lease payments is 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive performance using the effective interest rate method. 
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(s)    TAXATION 

The charge for taxation is based on the profit or loss for the year and comprises current and 
deferred taxation. Income tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive performance except to 
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, together with any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax is provided for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following 
temporary differences are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill not deductible for taxation 
purposes, and the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable 
profit. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or 
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date. 

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

(t)    SEGMENT REPORTING 

Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited operates solely within the UK, hence no 
geographical segment disclosures are presented. 

Segmental information is presented in respect of business segments which are regularly 
reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and the disclosure of the measure of profit and 
revenue used by the CODM.  The segments reviewed by the CODM are Residential Care, Community 
Services, Health Care and Other, which includes the group’s central functions and smaller trading 
operations. The measure of profit used is “adjusted” operating profit as defined below in non-GAAP 
performance measures.  Further details are provided in note 1 to these financial statements. 

(u)    NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

Immediately before their classification as being held for sale, the measurement of the value of 
any such assets (and all assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is fair valued in accordance with 
applicable adopted IFRS. On their ensuing initial classification as being held for sale, non-current 
assets and disposal groups are recognised at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to 
sell. 

Impairment losses on the initial classification of non-current assets as being held for sale are 
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive performance, including where there has been 
any revaluation of the asset. The same also applies to gains and losses on subsequent measurement. 

(v)    NON-GAAP PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

The board believe that the measure “adjusted” operating profit provides additional useful 
information for the shareholders and other stakeholders on the underlying performance of the 
business. These measures are consistent with how business performance is monitored internally. The 
adjusted operating profit is not a recognised profit measure under adopted IFRS and may not be 
directly comparable with “adjusted” profit measures used by other companies. 

Adjusted operating profit, which includes Care UK’s proportionate ownership share of EBITDA 
from joint venture enterprises, is defined as Operating profit before net financing expenses adjusted to 
exclude amortisation of IFRS 3 intangible assets, impairment charges and non-recurring items and 
excluding the impact of applying IAS 17 in respect of lease incentives. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as 
Adjusted operating profit plus depreciation. 
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 (w)    NEW STANDARDS EFFECTIVE AND APPLIED IN THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Group and the Company adopted IAS 19 (Revised) Employee Benefits from 1 October 
2013 and as a result changed their accounting policy with respect to the basis for determining the 
income or expense related to its post-employment defined benefit plans. Under previous IAS 19, the 
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and an expected return on plan assets were recognised 
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive performance within finance expense and finance 
income respectively. Under IAS 19 Revised, these two amounts have been replaced by a single 
measure called ‘net interest’ calculated on the net defined benefit liability. This change affects the 
difference between actual and expected return on plan assets, which is recognised in full within other 
comprehensive income as part of re-measurement. 

 (x)    NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET APPLIED  

The following new EU adopted standards, amendments to standards and interpretations were 
not effective for the year ended 30 September 2014, and have not been applied in preparing these 
financial statements.  Their adoption is not expected to have a material effect on the financial 
statements unless otherwise indicated: 

 Transition guidance: Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 

 IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

 IFRS 11 Joint arrangements 

 IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in other entities 

 IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (2011) 

 IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 

 Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27) 

 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – Amendments to IAS 32 

 Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets – Amendments to IAS 36 

 IFRIC 21 Levies 

 Continuing hedge accounting after derivative novations – Amendments to IAS 39 

 (y)    SIGNIFICANT SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with adopted IFRS requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses 
during the year then ended. Management bases its estimates on historical experience and various 
other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may 
differ from those estimates. 

Estimates are used in accounting for allowances for uncollectible receivables, depreciation, 
amortisation and impairment, share based payments, pensions, taxes, provisions, contingencies and 
certain of the non-recurring items reported in the year. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed 
periodically and the effects of revisions are reflected in the financial statements in the period that an 
adjustment is determined to be required. 

Management regularly discusses with the Audit Committee the development, selection and 
disclosure of the group’s critical accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies 
and estimates. 

Significant accounting judgements in applying the group’s accounting policies have been 
applied by the group in order to prepare the consolidated financial statements with respect to the value 
of other intangible assets and goodwill (note 8) and pensions (note 22) and are described below. 
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Intangible assets 

The group uses forecast cash flow information and estimates of future growth to initially value 
other intangible assets, to assess whether goodwill and other intangible assets are impaired, and to 
determine the useful economic lives of its intangible assets. If the results of operations in a future 
period are adverse to the estimates used for impairment testing, an impairment charge may be 
triggered at that point, or a reduction in useful economic life may be required. 

Pensions 

Details of the principal actuarial assumptions used in calculating the recognised liability for the 
Defined Benefit plans are given in note 22. Changes to the discount rate, mortality rates and actual 
return on plan assets may necessitate material adjustments to this liability in the future. 



F-19 

CARE UK HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

1. SEGMENT REPORTING 

Segment information is presented in respect of the group’s business segments. The primary 
business segments presented are based on the group’s management and internal reporting structure. 
Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited operates solely within the UK hence no 
geographical segment disclosures are presented. During the year the group carried out an 
organisational restructuring programme. This resulted in the Mental Health division, which was 
previously reported within the ‘Other’ segment, being absorbed into the group’s Health Care segment. 
The segmental analysis provided below incorporates this change in structure and prior year information 
has been restated accordingly. 

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis. 

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly interest bearing loans, borrowings 
and expenses, corporation taxes and corporate assets and expenses. 

Business segments 

The group comprises the following main business segments: 

• Residential Care Services operates care homes for older people; 
• Community Services supports people in their own homes, including older people and 

others with specialist needs; 
• Health Care provides a range of primary and secondary care services; and 
• Other includes the group’s central functions and smaller trading operations. 

 

2014 

Residential 
Care 

Services 
Community 

Services 
Health 
Care Other Group 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Revenue...........................................................  221.7 122.0 370.1 12.0 725.8 

Adjusted EBITDA .......................................................  19.5 8.1 31.3 (10.8) 48.1 

Depreciation of tangible assets .................................  (11.1) (1.8) (15.2) (2.0) (30.1) 

Adjusted operating profit/(loss) ........................  8.4 6.3 16.1 (12.8) 18.0 
Amortisation of intangible assets .....................  (7.2) (5.2) (8.9) - (21.3) 

Non-recurring items .........................................  (7.9) (1.8) (2.0) (1.3) (13.0) 

IAS 17 lease expense ......................................  (1.9) - - (0.5) (2.4) 

Less: Share of joint venture EBITDA ...............  - - (0.1) - (0.1) 

Operating (loss)/profit before financing 
expenses and taxation .................................  (8.6) (0.7) 5.1 (14.6) (18.8) 

Net financing expense .....................................      (55.4) 

Share of results of joint venture .......................      (0.3) 

Taxation ...........................................................      12.0 

Loss for the period ...........................................      (62.5) 

      

Operating lease charges: Land & 
buildings (excluding IAS 17 lease 
expense).......................................................  (15.6) (1.8) (14.3) (0.4) (32.1) 

      

 

Tangible assets      
Property, plant and equipment:      
— additions ......................................................  24.3 1.5 7.5 2.3 35.6 
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2013 

Residential 
Care 

Services 
Community 

Services 
Health 
Care Other Group 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Revenue...........................................................  196.7 119.2 329.4 11.9 657.2 

Adjusted EBITDA .......................................................  26.6 9.4 25.2 (7.8) 53.4 
Depreciation of tangible assets .................................  (7.8) (1.8) (11.8) (1.7) (23.1) 

Adjusted operating profit/(loss) ........................  18.8 7.6 13.4 (9.5) 30.3 
Amortisation of intangible assets .....................  (6.1) (6.5) (7.9) (0.1) (20.6) 
Impairment of intangible assets - - (1.8) - (1.8) 

Non-recurring items .........................................  (0.6) (0.9) (15.3) 0.4 (16.4) 

Operating profit/(loss) ......................................  12.1 0.2 (11.6) (9.2) (8.5) 

Net financing expense .....................................      (34.5) 

Taxation ...........................................................      12.9 

Loss for the period ...........................................      (30.1) 

      

Operating lease charges: Land & 
buildings (excluding IAS 17 lease 
expense).......................................................  (11.3) (1.8) (12.8) (0.1) (26.0) 

      

Tangible assets      
Property, plant and equipment:      
— acquired.......................................................  - - 10.6 - 10.6 

— additions ......................................................  17.1 1.5 16.2 2.8 37.6 

Total capital expenditure ..................................  17.1 1.5 26.8 2.8 48.2 
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2. NON-RECURRING ITEMS 
 

The following non-recurring items have been adjusted for on the face of the Consolidated 
statement of comprehensive performance in arriving at Adjusted operating profit: 

 Note 2014 2013 

  £m £m 

Non-recurring items:    

— Contract transfer and integration costs ..................................................  (a) (8.8) (0.3) 

— Restructuring ..........................................................................................  (b) (2.4) (0.3) 

— Closure costs ..........................................................................................  (c) (1.2) - 

— Property related costs ............................................................................  (d) (0.6) (0.7) 

— Acquisition and integration costs ............................................................  (e) - (8.2) 

— Onerous contracts ..................................................................................  (f) - (4.4) 

— Excess contract implementation costs ...................................................  (g) - (2.5) 
  (13.0) (16.4) 

 
Non-recurring items in the year ended 30 September 2014 amounted to a charge of £13.0m in 

aggregate (2013: charge £16.4m). The key elements of the charges for both years are set out below.  

Segmental analyses of non-recurring items are shown in note 1. 

(a) Contract transfer and integration costs  
During the 2013 financial year the Residential Care Services division transferred 16 existing 

care homes from Suffolk County Council as the initial stage of a long term contract and the Community 
Services division commenced the operation of a significant learning disabilities supported living 
contract in Doncaster. Both of these contracts involved significant employee transition and service 
optimisation programmes incurring associated costs of £8.8m in aggregate in the year ended 30 
September 2014 (2013: £1.3m). 
 

During the year ended 30 September 2013 Care UK completed the transfer and integration 
process in respect of a contract that commenced in the 2011 financial year, which resulted in the 
release of a surplus transition costs provision of £1.0m. 
 
(b) Restructuring 

In the final quarter of the 2013 financial year a restructuring programme was initiated in order 
to reduce ongoing operating costs through various business efficiency initiatives. More recently the 
Care UK group commenced an organisational restructuring programme within the Health Care division 
in order to create a simplified structure aligned to market opportunity, improved service quality and 
operational effectiveness. This has resulted in the Mental Health division being absorbed into the 
group’s Secondary Care sub-segment and the combination of the formerly separate Primary Care and 
Urgent Care sub-segments into an enlarged Primary Care sub-segment. During the year ended 30 
September 2014 aggregate implementation costs of £2.4m (2013: £0.3m) were incurred in relation to 
these transformation initiatives.  
 
(c) Closure costs 

During the year ended 30 September 2014 an operational unit within the Health Care division 
closed following the decision by the NHS to close an adjacent accident and emergency department. In 
addition, within the Residential Care Services division, a local authority fully funded care home closed 
due to reorganisation of its financial resources and a home that was held on a short leasehold basis 
was handed back to the local authority. As a result of these closures Care UK incurred unit closure and 
contract exit costs of £1.2m (2013: £nil). 
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(d) Property related costs 
During the year ended 30 September 2014 Care UK incurred losses of £0.6m (2013: £0.5m) 

due to a residential care home suffering subsidence. This home closed in March 2014 and subsequent 
to the year end a long-term solution has been agreed with the property owners. 

 
Property disposals during the year ended 30 September 2013 resulted in a net charge of 

£0.2m. 
 
(e) Acquisition and integration costs  

During the 2013 financial year Care UK incurred costs in relation to a number of acquisitions 
as set out in the 2013 financial statements. In accordance with IFRS 3, such costs cannot be included 
in the cost of business combination and therefore cannot be capitalised. In the year ended 30 
September 2013 total transaction and integration costs of £9.2m were incurred in relation to these 
acquisitions and their subsequent integration into the Care UK group. A gain of £1.0m was recognised 
in the year ended 30 September 2013 in respect of the writing back of contingent acquisition 
consideration that did not become payable in relation to an acquisition made during the year ended 30 
September 2011. 

 
(f) Onerous contracts 

During the year ended 30 September 2013 two contracts within the Health Care division were 
identified as onerous. A non-recurring charge of £4.4m was made to recognise future losses that were 
likely to be incurred under these contracts. Care UK continues to operate these contracts and 
continually seeks to improve them operationally and financially in addition to engaging with their 
respective commissioners in relation to other ways in which the services could potentially be delivered. 
The directors’ have made judgements and estimates to assess the future contract performance and 
have determined as at 30 September 2014 no further provision for losses is required. These contracts 
run for the unexpired period of between two and three years. 
 
(g) Excess contract implementation costs 

During the initial implementation period of the NHS 111 service, substantially higher 
implementation costs were incurred than originally expected, with the principal focus being on 
achieving operational stability within these services. In addition, a number of revenue deductions were 
agreed with the commissioners of these services on a commercial, rather than contractual basis. In the 
year ended 30 September 2013 a charge of £2.5m was recognised in relation to certain specific non-
recurring excess implementation costs.  
 
 
3. NET FINANCING EXPENSE 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 

Financial income:   
Interest receivable ..........................................................................................  1.8 0.9 
IFRIC-12 interest receivable ..........................................................................  1.1 1.2 

Financial income ............................................................................................  2.9 2.1 

Financial expense:   
— interest payable on financial liabilities - borrowings ..................................  (58.3) (37.0) 
— fair value movement in interest rate cap (note 20(a)) ...............................  (0.5) - 

— less: amount capitalised to assets in the course of construction 
at an annual rate of 7.5% (2013: 6.95%) ...................................................  0.5 0.4 

Financial expense ..........................................................................................  (58.3) (36.6) 

Net financing expense ...................................................................................  (55.4) (34.5) 
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4. EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 

(a) Employees 

 Group 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
Staff costs for all employees, including executive directors, 

consists of: 
 

 
— wages and salaries .................................................................................  370.9 340.5 
— social security costs ...............................................................................  29.7 25.9 
— pension costs ..........................................................................................  7.8 5.9 

 408.4 372.3 

Other pension costs represent contributions to the group’s pension schemes. 

The average monthly number of employees of the group during the period, including executive 
directors, was as follows: 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 Number Number Number Number 
Nursing, care and support staff .....................................  18,920 16,559 - - 
Management and administration ...................................  3,185 1,901 - - 

 22,105 18,460 - - 

In common with other providers in the health and social care sector, Care UK’s employed staff 
base is supplemented from time to time by agency staff and, on certain contracts within the Health 
Care division, both by staff seconded from the NHS and by self-employed medical professionals.  As 
these categories of staff are not direct employees of Care UK neither the numbers of these staff nor 
their related costs are shown in the above tables. 

(b) Remuneration of directors 

 
 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
Directors’ emoluments ........................................................................................  1.0 1.1 
Company contributions to money purchase pension plans ................................  0.1 0.1 

 1.1 1.2 

 
The aggregate of emoluments of the highest paid director was £0.6m (2013: £0.7m) including 
contributions in lieu of pension payments totalling £nil (2013: £0.1m).  
 

 Number of directors 

 2014 2013 

In the year, retirement benefits were accruing to the following 
number of directors under: 

 
 

Money purchase schemes ................................................................................................. 
2 2 
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5. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 

The following items have been included in arriving at loss before taxation: 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
Depreciation of owned assets ...................................................................  30.1 23.1 
Amortisation of intangible assets ..............................................................  21.3 20.6 
Impairment of intangible assets ................................................................  - 1.8 
Impairment of trade receivables ................................................................  0.7 0.8 
Land and buildings - operating leases ......................................................  34.5 24.7 
Hire of other assets - operating leases .....................................................  2.0 2.0 
Government grants ...................................................................................  (0.3) (0.2) 
IFRIC 12 infrastructure costs expensed in the period ...............................  2.4 1.4 
Amounts receivable by the auditor in respect of services to the 

company and its subsidiaries: 
  

- audit of subsidiaries’ financial statements ..............................................  0.3 0.3 
- other services ..........................................................................................  0.2 0.1 
   

Of the auditor’s remuneration £5,000 (2013: £5,000) was in respect of the audit of the group 
and company financial statements. 
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6. TAXATION 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
UK corporation tax payable at 22% (2013: 24%) ..............................................................  - - 
Adjustment relating to previous years ............................................................  - - 

Total current taxation recognised in statement of comprehensive 
performance ...............................................................................................  - - 

Deferred taxation:   
— origination and reversal of temporary differences .....................................  12.7 7.7 
— adjustment relating to previous years .......................................................  (0.7) 3.1 
— adjustment relating from change in rate of corporation tax .......................  - 2.1 

Total deferred taxation recognised in statement of comprehensive 
performance ...............................................................................................  12.0 12.9 

Total income tax credit recognised in statement of comprehensive 
performance ...............................................................................................  12.0 12.9 

The taxation credit for the year represents an effective tax rate of 16% (2013: 30.0%) which is 
lower (2013: higher) from the average standard rate of corporation tax in the UK applied during the 
year of 22% (2013: 24%). The differences are explained below: 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 

Loss before taxation ..................................................................................  (74.5) (43.0) 

Expected tax credit at 22% (2013: 24%) ..................................................  16.4 10.3 
Effects of:   
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes ........................................  (1.2) (0.7) 
Capital allowances for the period less than depreciation ..........................  (2.9) (1.7) 
Amortisation of intangible assets ..............................................................  (0.5) 0.4 
Impairment of goodwill ..............................................................................  - (0.4) 
Non-taxable income ..................................................................................  0.1 0.1 
Group relief received .................................................................................  - 0.7 
Adjustments relating to prior periods ........................................................  (0.7) 2.1 
Adjustment arising from change of rate of corporation tax .......................  - 2.1 
Capitalised revenue expenditure ..............................................................  1.0 - 
Utilisation of tax losses .............................................................................  1.3 - 
Losses for the year....................................................................................  (1.7) - 
Provisions ..................................................................................................  0.2 - 

Total income tax credit recognised in statement of comprehensive 
performance ..........................................................................................  12.0 12.9 

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 

Deferred tax credit/(charge) on pension liability .................................................. 0.3 (0.3) 

Total deferred tax credit/(charge) recognised directly in equity .......................... 0.3 (0.3) 

Total income tax credit/(charge) recognised in equity ......................................... 0.3 (0.3) 

Total tax 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 

Total current tax credit ...................................................................................  - - 

Total deferred tax credit.................................................................................  12.3 12.6 
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Group 
Land and 
buildings 

Furniture, 
fittings and 
equipment 

Assets in 
course of 

construction Total 

 £m £m £m £m 
Cost     
At 30 September 2012 ...............................................  238.1 45.6 5.3 289.0 
Acquired .....................................................................  3.4 7.1 0.1 10.6 
Additions ....................................................................  0.7 13.5 22.8 37.0 
Transfers ....................................................................  7.6 8.5 (16.1) - 
Transfers from current assets ....................................  0.6 - - 0.6 

Disposals ...................................................................  (0.9) (0.2) - (1.1) 

At 30 September 2013 ...............................................  249.5 74.5 12.1 336.1 
Additions ....................................................................  0.7 14.0 20.9 35.6 
Transfers ....................................................................  7.4 20.1 (27.5) - 
Transfers to current assets ........................................  (3.7) - - (3.7) 
Disposals ...................................................................  (1.3) (15.9) - (17.2) 

At 30 September 2014..............................................  252.6 92.7 5.5 350.8 

Depreciation and impairment     
At 30 September 2012 ...............................................  20.9 16.0 - 36.9 
Charge for year ..........................................................  6.1 17.0 - 23.1 
Disposals ...................................................................  (0.1) - - (0.1) 

At 30 September 2013 ...............................................  26.9 33.0 - 59.9 
Charge for year ..........................................................  11.1 19.0 - 30.1 
Transfer to current assets ..........................................  (0.7) - - (0.7) 
Disposals ...................................................................  (0.6) (15.5) - (16.1) 

At 30 September 2014..............................................  36.7 36.5 - 73.2 

Net book value     
At 30 September 2014..............................................  215.9 56.2 5.5 277.6 

At 30 September 2013 ...............................................  222.6 41.5 12.1 276.2 

  

 Land and buildings include depreciable assets with an original cost of £195.2m (2013: 
£198.8m) and capitalised interest of £3.9m (2013: £4.3m).  Included within the net book value of land 
and buildings are long leasehold buildings which have a net book value of £37.3m (2013: £31.0m) and 
short leasehold buildings which have a net book value of £39.1m (2013: £40.6m).   

Assets in the course of construction include capitalised interest of £0.1m (2013: £0.2m). 

The net book value of furniture, fixtures and fittings includes assets with a cost of £6.4m (2013: 
£8.4m) and accumulated depreciation of £0.1m (2013: £0.7m) held under finance leases. The 
depreciation charge on fixed assets held under finance leases was £1.0m (2013: £1.2m).   

Refer to note 24 for contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment. 
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
(a) Acquired intangible assets 

Group Goodwill 
Intangible 

assets Total 

 £m £m £m 
Cost    
At 30 September 2012 .........................................................................  92.8 131.5 224.3 
Acquired ..................................................................................................  49.1 34.7 83.8 
At 30 September 2013 ............................................................................  141.9 166.2 308.1 
Acquired ..................................................................................................  - - - 

At 30 September 2014 ...........................................................................  141.9 166.2 308.1 

Amortisation    
At 30 September 2012 .........................................................................  - 53.6 53.6 
Impairment charge ..........................................................................................  1.8 - 1.8 

Amortisation charge for year ...........................................................................  - 20.6 20.6 

At 30 September 2013 ............................................................................  1.8 74.2 76.0 
Adjustment ..............................................................................................  - (0.2) (0.2) 

Amortisation charge for year ...................................................................  - 21.3 21.3 

At 30 September 2014 ...........................................................................  1.8 95.3 97.1 

Net book value    
At 30 September 2014 ...........................................................................  140.1 70.9 211.0 

At 30 September 2013 ....................................................................................  140.1 92.0 232.1 

The amortisation of intangible assets of £21.3m (2013: £20.6m) is recognised within 
administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive performance. 

Intangible assets comprise the value attributed to ongoing customer relationships within 
acquired businesses and are amortised over their estimated useful economic lives, which do not 
exceed ten years. The useful economic life is determined by reference to the life of the associated 
contract. 

Management believes that goodwill represents value to the group for which the recognition of a 
discrete intangible asset is not permitted. 

(b) Impairment charge 

During the year ended 30 September 2014, the group reviewed all cash-generating units that 
contain goodwill for impairment in accordance with IAS 36. The recoverable amount was determined 
by value-in-use. The discount rates used in each value-in-use calculation were based upon a risk 
adjusted pre-tax group weighted average cost of capital (2014: 10.3%; 2013: 11.7%).  

A goodwill impairment charge of £1.8m was recognised in the year ended 30 September 2013 
in respect of an acquisition made in 2011. The terms of the acquisition included the potential payment 
of contingent consideration subject to the business meeting certain performance targets. The 
contingent consideration did not become payable and therefore the carrying value of the goodwill 
initially recognised on acquisition has been impaired to reflect the inherent reduction in value. No other 
impairments were identified as a result of the review. A related credit of £1.0 million was included within 
non-recurring items in the year ended 30 September 2013 in relation to the writing back of the 
provision made on acquisition for the expected payment of contingent consideration. There were no 
impairments in the year ended 30 September 2014. 
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(c) Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill 

The following divisions have significant cash-generating units that have the following goodwill 
carrying values: 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
Residential Care Services ...............................................................  48.6 48.6 
Community Services .......................................................................  15.7 15.7 
Health Care .....................................................................................  68.8 68.8 
Other ...............................................................................................  7.0 7.0 

 140.1 140.1 

 

All of the recoverable amounts are measured based on value-in-use. Those calculations use 
cash flow projections based on actual operating results and the budget and forecast business plan for 
the five years ending 30 September 2019. A terminal value is placed on the value of the annual cash 
flows in year five. No growth has been assumed after the first five years. No adjustment is made for the 
projected terminal value of the net assets of the individual cash-generating unit. Cash flows associated 
with post acquisition investment are included within the calculation. 

 The discount rate used in each value-in-use calculation is based upon a risk adjusted pre-tax 
group weighted average cost of capital. This was 10.3% (2013: 11.7%). 

Assumptions 

The budget and forecast business plans include assumptions of the level of certain key drivers 
that are assumed to be met to achieve revenue and EBITDA projections as follows: 

 Key Driver 

  
Residential Care Services ...............................................................  Occupancy and bed fee rates 
Community Services .......................................................................  Number of chargeable hours 
Health Care .....................................................................................  Volumes of activity/patients treated/fee 

rates/level of occupancy 
Other (primarily the group’s smaller trading entities) ......................  Annuity revenue on contracts 

 

Whilst management is confident that its assumptions are appropriate in light of circumstances 
at the time of the review, it is possible that circumstances may change. The recoverable amounts 
calculated on the above basis significantly exceed the carrying values of the cash-generating units that 
include goodwill to the extent that the assumptions made would need to change by a significant 
amount to eliminate the surplus. 
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9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Non-current  

 Group 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
IFRIC-12 financial asset ..........................................................................  21.1 22.2 

Fair value of interest rate cap (note 20(a)) .............................................  0.6 - 

 21.7 22.2 

  

Current  

 Group 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
IFRIC-12 financial asset ..........................................................................  1.1 1.0 

  

  

IFRIC-12 financial asset  

 Group 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
IFRIC-12 financial asset: brought forward ..............................................  23.2 24.2 

Released in the period ............................................................................  (1.0) (1.0) 

IFRIC-12 financial asset: carried forward................................................  22.2 23.2 

 

These financial assets are recognised upon adoption of IFRIC 12 “Service Concession 

Arrangements” (this interpretation addresses the accounting by private sector operators involved in the 

provision of public sector infrastructure assets and services).  For all arrangements falling within the scope 

of the interpretation, the infrastructure assets are not recognised as property, plant and equipment of the 

operator, Care UK.  Rather, depending on the terms of the arrangement, the operator recognises a financial 

asset where the operator has an unconditional right to receive a specified amount of cash or other financial 

assets over the life of the arrangement. IFRIC 12 only applies to the group consolidated financial 

statements. 

 
10. INVESTMENTS 

Company 

Shares in 
subsidiary 

undertakings 

 £m 
Cost and Net book value  
At 30 September 2014 and 30 September 2013 .....................................................................  210.7 

Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited owns 100% of the issued ordinary share 
capital of Care UK Health & Social Care Plc, its only direct investment. See note 29 for further details 
of group entities. 
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11. INVENTORIES 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 £m £m £m £m 
Materials and consumables .............................................  4.1 3.0 - - 

12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

(a) Non-current 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 £m £m £m £m 
Other receivables ..........................................................  8.9 - - - 

(b) Current 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 £m £m £m £m 
Trade receivables ..........................................................  72.4 73.4 - - 
Less: provision for impairment of receivables ...............  (1.9) (1.9) - - 

Trade receivables — net ...............................................  70.5 71.5 - - 
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings ..................  - - - 40.8 
Other receivables ..........................................................  7.2 7.4 - - 
Prepayments and accrued income ...............................  9.2 8.6 - - 

 86.9 87.5 - 40.8 

Non-current and current other receivables includes non-cash deferred lease charge recognised 
at fair value to reflect land passed through to institutional funding partners as outlined in the group’s 
accounting policies.  

The group’s exposure to credit risk from its trading operations is considered to be minimal in 
view of its customer base, which primarily comprises public sector entities such as Local Authorities, 
CCGs and other NHS Trusts. 

The group has £26.2m (2013: £15.7m) trade and other receivables that are past due but not 
impaired.  These relate primarily to Local Authorities, CCGs and other NHS Trusts for whom there is no 
history of default.  These have not been provided for as there has not been a significant change in the 
credit quality of the customers concerned and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The group 
does not hold any collateral over these balances.  The ageing analysis of these receivables is as 
follows: 

 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
0–30 days ............................................................................................................. 16.8 8.7 
30–60 days ........................................................................................................... 3.7 2.2 
60–90 days ........................................................................................................... 1.5 1.6 
Over 90 days ........................................................................................................ 4.4 3.2 

 26.2 15.7 
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The group has trade and other receivables of £1.9m (2013: £1.9m) which are impaired and provided 
for. The ageing of these receivables is as follows: 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
0–30 days ............................................................................................................. - - 
30–60 days ........................................................................................................... - - 
60–90 days ........................................................................................................... - - 
Over 90 days ........................................................................................................ 1.9 1.9 

 1.9 1.9 

The group’s impairment provision has been calculated based upon the ageing profile of the 
receivables and any history of default with particular customers. Concentrations of credit risk with 
respect to trade and current other receivables are limited due to the nature of the group’s customer 
base. 

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 £m £m £m £m 
Cash at bank and in hand .............................................  20.9 25.9 - - 
Short-term bank deposits ..............................................  - 8.7 - - 

Cash and cash equivalents ...........................................  20.9 34.6 - - 

Cash and cash equivalents as shown in the 
statement of cash flows .............................................  20.9 34.6 - - 

 

14. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

As at 30 September 2014 the group has one (2013: one) property that has been classified as 
being held for sale. 

 
15. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
 
(a) Current liabilities 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 £m £m £m £m 
Finance lease liabilities   1.3 1.9 - - 

(b) Non-current liabilities 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 £m £m £m £m 
Senior Secured Notes ...................................................  400.0 329.0 - - 
Revolving Credit Facility ...............................................  4.0 46.5 4.0 46.5 
Loan arrangement fees .................................................  (8.6) (10.3) (0.6) (1.5) 

Bank loan ......................................................................  3.0 3.0 - - 

Finance lease liabilities .................................................  0.1 1.8 - - 

 398.5 370.0 3.4 45.0 

  
The Senior Secured Notes as at 30 September 2013 includes a premium on issue of £4.0 

million.  
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(c) Maturity profile of financial liabilities 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 £m £m £m £m 
Debt can be analysed as falling due     
In one year or less, or on demand ...................................  1.3 1.9 - - 
In more than one year but not more than two 

years .............................................................................  3.1 1.8 - - 
In more than two years but not more than five 

years .............................................................................  320.4 364.2 3.4 45.0 
In five years or more ........................................................  75.0 - - - 

 399.8 367.9 3.4 45.0 

(d) Maturity profile of finance leases 

 Group 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
Minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows   
In one year or less..................................................................................................... 1.3 1.9 

After one year but not more than five years .............................................................. 0.1 1.8 

   
Present value of finance lease liabilities ................................................................... 1.4 3.7 

 
(e) Terms and conditions 

i)  Senior Secured Notes 

Up until 17 July 2014 Care UK Health & Social Care Plc ("the Issuer") had £325.0m of 9¾% 
Senior Secured Notes in issue (the "2010 Notes").  

On 17 July 2014 the Issuer issued £400.0m of floating rate Senior Secured Notes (“the 2014 
Notes”). The proceeds of the issue were used to redeem all of the outstanding 2010 Notes, the 
associated accrued interest and the related redemption premium. The remaining proceeds were used 
to repay outstanding amounts under the Revolving Credit Facility and pay transaction fees and 
expenses in connection with the issue of the 2014 Notes. 

The 2014 Notes are divided into two tranches, a First Lien tranche of £325.0m (the "2014 
Senior Secured Notes"), which mature on 15 July 2019, and a Second Lien tranche of £75.0m (the 
"2014 Second Lien Notes"), which mature on 15 January 2020. Interest on the 2014 Senior Secured 
Notes accrues at a rate per annum, reset quarterly, equal to three-month GBP LIBOR plus 5.0%. 
Interest on the 2014 Second Lien Notes accrues at a rate per annum, reset quarterly, equal to three-
month GBP LIBOR plus 7.5%. For both liens interest is payable quarterly in arrears on each of 15 
October, 15 January, 15 April and 15 July. 

The Issuer may redeem the 2014 Notes in whole or in part at any time on or after 15 July 2015 
at the redemption prices set out in the Offering Memorandum. Prior to 15 July 2015, the Issuer may 
redeem all or part of the 2014 Notes by paying a ‘make whole’ premium as set out in the Offering 
Memorandum. 

The 2014 Senior Secured Notes are guaranteed on a senior basis and the 2014 Second Lien 
Notes are guaranteed on a senior subordinated basis by Care UK Health & Social Care Investments 
Limited and certain subsidiary guarantors. 
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ii)  Senior Revolving Credit Facility 

On the 11 July 2014 the £115.0m Senior Revolving Credit Facility (the “original RCF”) was 
replaced by an amended £65.0m Revolving Credit Facility (the "amended RCF"). On 17 July 2014 the 
original RCF utilisations were repaid in full from the proceeds of the issue of the 2014 Notes together 
with utilisations drawn on the amended RCF. 

As at 30 September 2014, £4.0m (2013: £46.5m) of the amended RCF has been utilised as 
cash drawings. The remainder of the facility remained undrawn, with the exception of £10.1m (2013: 
£9.4m) utilised in relation to performance bonds provided in relation certain contracts in the Health 
Care division and £nil (2013: £0.5m) in relation to other ancillary utilisations. 

The margin payable on any loan utilisation under the amended RCF is in the range of 2.25% to 
3.25% above LIBOR plus any mandatory costs depending on the total net leverage of the group. Each 
utilisation under the facility is repayable and capable of being redrawn at the end of each interest 
period. The final repayment date is 11 May 2019.  

 
The Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Facility Agreement requires Care UK Health & 

Social Care Investments Limited, as the parent guarantor, to ensure compliance with a financial 
covenant relating to super senior gross leverage (calculated as the ratio of the aggregate amount of all 
outstanding loans under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility to Consolidated EBITDA of the Group 
for the 12 months ending on that quarter end). “Consolidated EBITDA” for the purposes of the 
covenants under the Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Facility Agreement allows for certain 
adjustments and therefore is not exactly equivalent to the definition of Adjusted EBITDA as outlined in 
the Accounting Policies - Non-GAAP Performance Measures. 
 
16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 £m £m £m £m 
Accrued Senior Secured Notes interest ........................  5.0 5.9 - - 
Trade payables .............................................................................  37.1 30.8 - - 
Other tax and social security ........................................................  9.4 9.2 - - 
Deferred Government grant income.............................................  0.3 0.4 - - 
Accruals and deferred income .....................................................  114.4 102.6 0.3 0.6 
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings ..................................  - - 5.7 - 

 
166.2 148.9 6.0 0.6 

Trade and other payables are expected to be settled within twelve months. 

17. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 £m £m £m £m 
Retirement benefit obligations (note 22) ......................................  4.0 2.3 - - 
Deferred Government grant income ............................................  1.8 2.0 - - 
Accruals and deferred income .....................................................  8.8 - - - 

 14.6 4.3 - - 

Non-current and current accruals and deferred income includes non-cash deferred revenue 
recognised at fair value to reflect land passed through to institutional funding partners as outlined in the 
group’s accounting policies. 

  



F-34 

The group has a number of Government grants that relate to capital contributions towards the 
development of residential homes. Details of any unfulfilled conditions are disclosed in note 26.  The 
total amount of Government grants recognised in the statement of comprehensive performance during 
the year was £0.3m (2013: £0.2m) and the total of Government grants held in the balance sheet at 
30 September 2014 was £2.1m (2013: £2.4m). 

18. DEFERRED TAXATION 

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax 
rate of 20% (2013: 20%).  The company has no deferred tax balances. 

 (a) Recognised deferred tax liabilities 

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of tax losses and other deductible 
temporary differences where it is probable that these assets will be recovered. 

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to the offsetting of balances within the same 
jurisdiction as permitted by IAS 12) during the year are shown below.  Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention to 
settle the balances net. 
 

 Assets Liabilities Net 

Group 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Deferred taxation       
Property, plant and equipment .......................................  - - 1.0 3.0 1.0 3.0 
Employee benefits..........................................................  (0.8) (0.5) - - (0.8) (0.5) 
Acquired intangible assets .............................................  - - 12.5 16.4 12.5 16.4 
Unutilised losses carried forward ...................................  (7.3) (0.3) - - (7.3) (0.3) 
Other items .....................................................................  (0.6) (0.9) - 0.3 (0.6) (0.6) 

Net deferred tax (assets)/liabilities .................................  (8.7) (1.7) 13.5 19.7 4.8 18.0 
Offset of tax ....................................................................  8.7 1.7 (8.7) (1.7) - - 

Net deferred tax liabilities ...............................................  - - 4.8 18.0 4.8 18.0 

 
All of the deferred tax assets were available for offset against deferred tax liabilities and the net 

liabilities are due after more than one year: 

 Group 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
Net deferred tax liabilities .....................................................................................  4.8 18.0 

(b) Unrecognised deferred tax assets 

There are no unrecognised deferred tax assets.  
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(c) Movement in temporary differences during the year 

The movement on the group deferred taxation account is as follows: 

Group 
Balance 1 

October 2013 
Recognised 
in income 

Recognised 
in equity 

Acquired in 
business 

combinations 

Balance 
30 September 

2014 

 £m £m £m £m £m 
Property, plant and equipment ...............  3.0 (2.0) - - 1.0 
Employee benefits ..................................  (0.5) - (0.3) - (0.8) 
Acquired intangible asset .......................  16.4 (3.0) - (0.9) 12.5 

Unutilised losses .....................................  (0.3) (7.0) - - (7.3) 

Other items .............................................  (0.6) - - - (0.6) 

 18.0 (12.0) (0.3) (0.9) 4.8 

 

 

 

Group 
Balance 1 

October 2012 
Recognised 
in income 

Recognised 
in equity 

Acquired in 
business 

combinations 

Balance 
30 September 

2013 

 £m £m £m £m £m 
Property, plant and equipment ...............  8.1 (5.1) - - 3.0 
Employee benefits ..................................  (0.8) - 0.3 - (0.5) 
Acquired intangible asset .......................  15.7 (6.6) - 7.3 16.4 

Unutilised losses .....................................  - (0.3) - - (0.3) 

Other items .............................................  0.3 (0.9) - - (0.6) 

 23.3 (12.9) 0.3 7.3 18.0 

 
(d) Factors that may affect future tax charges 
 

The reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 23% to 21% was effective from 1 April 2014. 
The main rate of corporation tax will further reduce to 20% from 1 April 2015, this was substantially 
enacted on 2 July 2013. 
 
 

19. ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL  

In accordance with Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the company has elected not to 
present its own statement of comprehensive income.  The loss for the year dealt with in the company’s 
own statement of comprehensive income is £4.6m (2013 loss: £3.2m). 

Issued share capital 

 2014 2013 

Group and company Shares £m Shares £m 

Authorised     
Ordinary shares of £1 each ..........................................................  210,676,211 210.7 210,676,211 210.7 

Allotted, called-up and fully paid shares of £1 each     
At 30 September 2013 and 2014 ...............................................  210,676,211 210.7 210,676,211 210.7 

There were no ordinary shares of £1 allotted during the year. 
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

Care UK’s activities and debt financing expose it to a variety of financial risks, the most 
significant of which are market risk (cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity 
risk (changes in the debt market). Care UK’s overall risk management programme focuses on the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on Care UK’s 
financial performance. During the year Care UK entered into an interest rate cap to minimise the 
exposure to movements in LIBOR in respect of the 2014 Notes detailed in note 15(e). Further detail is 
provided below. 

(a) Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk 

 In July 2014 Care UK Health & Social Care Plc completed a refinancing of its borrowings, 
incorporating a two tier floating rate bond issue of £400m (the 2014 Notes). As a result the majority of 
Care UK’s borrowings now carry a combination of a fixed margin with a LIBOR floating rate. The 
amended RCF carries a combination of a variable margin with a LIBOR floating rate. In order to 
manage the cash flow interest rate risk, Care UK entered into an interest rate cap arrangement with a 
principal value of £400m, equal to the 2014 Notes for a three year period ending July 2017. The fair 
value of the cap on inception was £1.1m. As at 30 September 2014 the fair value of the cap was 
£0.6m. Hedge accounting has not been applied and therefore the movement in the fair value of the cap 
of £0.5m has been taken directly to finance expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
performance. 

 Whilst there were no short-term deposits as at 30 September 2014, Care UK does place 
surplus cash on deposit where possible. Short-term deposits are placed with financial institutions in 
accordance with Care UK’s treasury policy. Interest rates obtained on deposits are variable and linked 
to LIBOR.   

(b) Price Risk 

Care UK is not exposed to commodity price risk but as a provider of services is subject to both 
general and industry specific wage pressures, including legislative changes concerning the minimum 
wage level. Contracts with Local Authorities, Clinical Commissioning Groups and other NHS funded 
bodies are also subject to annual price review.  For the year ended 30 September 2014, a 1% increase 
in salary costs would have decreased profit before tax by £4.1m (2013: £3.7m). 

In common with the majority of government-funded providers, most of Care UK’s price 
changes take effect annually on 1 April.  Approximately 25% (2013: 26%) of Care UK’s revenue is 
linked to general inflation indices. 

(c) Credit Risk 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial 
institutions. Credit exposures in relation to customers is limited given that the majority of Care UK’s 
revenue is attributable to publicly funded entities such as Local Authorities, Clinical Commissioning 
Groups and other NHS funded bodies.  Care UK has no significant concentrations of credit risk. For 
banks and financial institutions, only parties with a minimum rating of A are accepted.  For an analysis 
of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired and trade receivables which are past due and 
impaired, see note 12. 

The table below analyses the group’s cash and cash equivalents by credit exposure 
excluding bank balances and petty cash: 

 
Counterparty 2014 2013 

 Rating £m Rating £m 
Financial institutions — money market deposits  Aa3 - Aa3 8.7 
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(d) Liquidity Risk 

A policy of prudent liquidity risk management is applied. Care UK’s operational cash flow is 
largely stable and predictable given the contractual and recurring nature of the core business activity. 
Care UK prepares annual and shorter term cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and 
anticipated projects. Borrowing facilities are arranged as necessary to finance projected requirements, 
including capital expenditure. Adequate headroom in available facilities is maintained. 

 (e)  Fair value hierarchy 

 The group uses the following valuation hierarchy to determine the carrying value of financial 
instruments that are measured at fair value: 

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value 
are observable, either directly or indirectly.  

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have significant effect on the recorded fair value that are 
not based on observable market data. 

   

 2014 2013 

Group Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities 

 £m £m £m £m 
Level 1 ..............................................................................  - - - - 
Level 2: Financial instruments at fair value through profit 

or loss ............................................................................  
 

0.6 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
Level 3 ..............................................................................  - - - - 

 

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(a) Embedded derivatives 

In accordance with IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, the group 
has reviewed all contracts for embedded derivatives that are required to be separately accounted for if 
they do not meet certain requirements set out in the standard.  No such derivatives were identified as a 
result of the review. 

(b) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
The fair values together with the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet are as follows. 

Items have been excluded where their book value approximates their fair value. 

  2014 2013 

Group Notes 
Carrying 
amount 

Fair 
value 

Carrying 
amount 

Fair 
value 

  £m £m £m £m 
IFRIC 12 financial asset ....................................... ial asset 9 22.2 22.2 23.2 23.2 
Interest rate cap ................................................... ial asset 9 0.6 0.6 - - 
Cash and cash equivalents ...............................................  13 20.9 20.9 34.6 34.6 
Senior Secured Notes .......................................................  15 (400.0) (336.6) (329.0) (331.9) 
Revolving Credit Facility.................................... 15 (4.0) (3.1) (46.5) (41.8) 
Bank loan ..........................................................................  15 (3.0) (2.9) (3.0) (2.5) 
Finance lease liabilities .....................................................  15 (1.4) (1.3) (3.7) (2.8) 
Deferred Government grants ............................................  16,17 (2.1) (1.4) (2.4) (1.5) 
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2014 2013 

Company Notes 
Carrying 
amount 

Fair 
value 

Carrying 
amount 

Fair 
value 

  £m £m £m £m 
Revolving Credit Facility.................................... 15 (4.0) (3.1) (46.5) (41.8) 

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair 
values of the financial instruments reflected in the above tables: 

Derivatives 

 The fair value of derivatives, which are quoted at market price, has been calculated by 
discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates. 

Trade and other receivables/payables 

For receivables/payables with a remaining life of less than one year, the notional amount is 
deemed to reflect the fair value.  All other receivables/payables are discounted to determine the fair 
value. 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 

Fair value is calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest cash flows. 

Finance lease liabilities 

The fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at market 
interest rates for homogenous lease agreements. The estimated fair values reflect changes in the 
interest rates. 

Interest rates for determining fair value 

Unless specified on the previous page, the group uses its weighted average cost of capital 
30 September 2014 to discount financial instruments. The interest rates used are as follows: 

 2014 2013 

 % % 
Senior Secured Notes ....................................................................................................  10.3 9.5 
Revolving Credit Facility ................................................................................................  10.3 9.5 
Bank loan .......................................................................................................................  10.3 9.5 
Leases ............................................................................................................................  14.5 14.5 
Deferred Government grants .........................................................................................  10.3 9.5 
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22. PENSIONS 
 

The group has established a number of pension schemes, both defined contribution and 
defined benefit, covering a number of its employees. 

(a) Defined contribution plan 

The group has a defined contribution group personal pension plan as well as a trust based 
occupational defined contribution pension scheme. These schemes comply with the new workplace 
pension reform requirements. Group contributions to these schemes are charged to the statement of 
comprehensive performance as they fall due. The assets of these schemes are held separately from 
those of the group in independently administered funds. 

Pension costs for defined contribution schemes are as follows: 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
Defined contribution schemes ...........................................................................................  3.6 2.0 

 

 (b) Defined benefit plans 

As a result of contractual arrangements with a small number of public sector customers, the 
group contributes to nine defined benefit schemes. These schemes provide pension benefits based on 
a mixture of final pensionable pay and career average revalued earnings. 

The schemes are funded by payments to independently managed funds, the assets of which 
are held separately from those of the group. The funds are administered by trustees as a separate 
legal entity or by administering authorities in the case of county council schemes. The trustees of the 
fund are required to act in the best interest of the fund’s beneficiaries. The appointment of trustees is 
determined by the schemes’ trust documentation. 

Contributions to the defined benefit pension schemes are charged to the statement of 
comprehensive performance so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ estimated working 
lives with the group. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of triennial 
valuations using the projected unit method. 

The liabilities of the defined benefit schemes are measured by discounting the best estimate of 
future cash flows to be paid out by the schemes using the projected unit method. This is the amount, 
after taking into consideration reimbursement assets, which is reflected in the deficit in the balance 
sheet. The projected unit method is an accrued benefits valuation method in which the scheme 
liabilities make allowance for projected earnings. 

Under the terms of the group’s contract with certain of the county council pension schemes, 
the group is indemnified for any shortfall in scheme assets and for any increase in contributions 
required by any future actuarial valuation; hence the group has no constructive or legal obligation to 
fund a deficit on the associated segregated portion of these schemes. Accordingly, the group has 
recognised an asset equal to the current deficit on the segregated portion of these schemes. These 
reimbursement assets have been presented as offsetting the current scheme deficit on the segregated 
portion of the schemes and are therefore included within retirement benefit obligations. 

Details of the principal defined benefit scheme are provided below. 
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Care UK LG Pension Scheme 
The most recent triennial actuarial valuation was at 1 April 2012.  At the date of the actuarial 

valuation the market value of the schemes assets was £8.8m and the actuarial value of those assets 
represented 92% of the benefits that had accrued to members, after allowing for expected future 
increases in earnings. Further to the valuation, the Trustees have agreed with the employer an 
additional amount of £20,400 per month as part of a recovery plan to be paid until 30

th
 June 2015. The 

group will monitor funding levels on an annual basis.  The next triennial valuation report will be as at 1 
April 2015. 
 

Employer contributions amounted to £1.9m (2013: £2.1m) for the year ended 30 September 
2014. The net defined benefit liability at 30 September 2014 was £3.3m (2013: £1.8m). 
 

The scheme obtains approval by the Government Actuarial Department when new members 
join the scheme. 

 
The Trustee Board has three Trustees nominated by the employer and there are two vacancies 

available to be nominated by the scheme members.  
 

Risks 
 
By funding its defined benefit pension schemes, the group is exposed to the risk that the cost of 

meeting its obligations is higher than anticipated. This could occur for several reasons, for example: 

 Investment returns on the schemes’ assets may be lower than anticipated, especially if falls in 
asset values are not matched by similar falls in the value of the schemes’ liabilities; 

 The level of price inflation may be higher from that assumed, resulting in higher payments from 
the schemes; 

 Scheme members may live longer than assumed, for example due to unanticipated advances in 
medical healthcare. Members may also exercise (or not exercise) options in a way that leads to 
increases in the schemes’ liabilities, for example through early retirement or commutation of 
pension for cash; 

 Legislative changes could also lead to an increase in the schemes’ liabilities. 
 
Aggregated scheme disclosures 
 

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: 
 
 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
Present value of funded obligations ..................................................................................  (55.6) (42.8) 

Fair value of plan assets ...................................................................................................  45.2 38.8 

Reimbursement assets .....................................................................................................  6.4 1.7 

Fair value of plan assets ...................................................................................................  51.6 40.5 

Net defined benefit liability ................................................................................................  (4.0) (2.3) 
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Movements in net defined benefit liability 

 

 

 

 

Defined 
benefit 

obligation 
Fair value of 
plan assets 

 

 

 

 

Reimbursement 
asset 

Net defined 
benefit  

liability 

 £m £m £m £m 
     
Opening position at 1 October 2013 .............................................................................  (42.8) 38.8 1.7 (2.3) 

Service cost     

Current service cost ..........................................................................................................  (4.2) - 0.1 (4.1) 

Past service cost (including curtailments) ........................................................................  (0.1) - 0.1 - 

Effect of settlements .........................................................................................................  0.4 (0.3) (0.1) - 

 (3.9) (0.3) 0.1 (4.1) 

Net interest     

Interest income on plan assets .........................................................................................  - 1.8 (1.1) 0.7 

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation ........................................................................  (2.0) - 1.2 (0.8) 

 (2.0) 1.8 0.1 (0.1) 

     

Total defined benefit cost recognised in 
profit or (loss) 

(5.9) 1.5 0.2 (4.2) 

Cash flows     

Plan participant contributions ............................................................................................  (0.8) 0.8 - - 

Employer contributions .....................................................................................................  - 4.0 - 4.0 

Benefits paid .....................................................................................................................  1.1 (1.1) - - 

 0.3 3.7 - 4.0 

     

Expected closing position (48.4) 44.0 1.9 (2.5) 

Re-measurements     

Changes in demographic assumptions ............................................................................  (0.5)  - 0.7 0.2 

Changes in financial assumptions ....................................................................................  (5.8) - 3.6 (2.2) 

Other experience ..............................................................................................................  (0.9) (0.1) 1.0 - 

Return on assets excluding amounts included 
in net interest .................................................................................................................  - 1.3 (0.8) 0.5 

Total re-measurements recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income 

(7.2) 1.2 4.5 (1.5) 

     

Closing position at 30 September 2014 (55.6) 45.2 6.4 (4.0) 
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Defined 
benefit 

obligation 
Fair value of 
plan assets 

 

 

 

 

Reimbursement 
asset 

Net defined 
benefit 

liability 

 £m £m £m £m 

     

Opening position at 1 October 2012 .............................................................................  (19.4) 15.0 0.8 (3.6) 

Service cost     

Current service cost ..........................................................................................................  (3.7) - - (3.7) 

Past service cost (including curtailments) ........................................................................  (0.1) - 0.1 - 

 (3.8) - 0.1 (3.7) 

Net interest     

Interest income on plan assets .........................................................................................  - 1.2 (0.7) 0.5 

Interest cost on defined benefit 
obligation .......................................................................................................................  (1.4) - 0.8 (0.6) 

 (1.4) 1.2 0.1 (0.1) 

     

Total defined benefit cost recognised 
in profit or (loss) 

(5.2) 1.2 0.2 (3.8) 

Cash flows     

Plan participant contributions............................................................................................  (0.4) 0.4 - - 

Employer contributions .....................................................................................................  - 4.1 - 4.1 

Benefits paid .....................................................................................................................  1.0 (1.0) - - 

 0.6 3.5 - 4.1 

     

Expected closing position (24.0) 19.7 1.0 (3.3) 

Re-measurements     

Changes in demographic assumptions ............................................................................  (0.5) - - (0.5) 

Changes in financial assumptions ....................................................................................  (2.8) - 1.7 (1.1) 

Other experience ..............................................................................................................  3.6 (2.7) - 0.9 

Return on assets excluding amounts 
included in net interest ..................................................................................................  - 3.5 (1.8) 1.7 

Total re-measurements recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income 

0.3 0.8 (0.1) 1.0 

     

Acquisitions/transfer of 
(obligations)/assets 

(19.1) 18.3 0.8 - 

     

Closing position at 30 September 
2013 (42.8) 38.8 1.7 (2.3) 

 

The comparatives above are presented in accordance with IAS 19 Revised which has been applied for 
the first time in these financial statements. The application of the revised standard has decreased the 
total defined benefit cost by £0.1m from £3.9m previously reported to £3.8m and has decreased the 
total remeasurements by £0.1m from £1.1m gain previously reported to £1.0m gain.  
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Plan assets 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
Cash and cash equivalents ...............................................................................................  1.8 0.6 

Equity instruments.............................................................................................................  11.2 17.0 

Debt instruments: Gilts ......................................................................................................  1.6 1.3 

Debt instruments: Other bonds .........................................................................................  5.6 5.0 

Derivatives ........................................................................................................................  - 0.4 

Investment funds ...............................................................................................................  22.2 12.5 

Property and other assets .................................................................................................  2.8 2.0 

 45.2 38.8 

 

All equity securities and government bonds have quoted prices in active markets. All government 
bonds are issued by European governments and are AAA or AA rated. All other plan assets are not 
quoted in an active market. 

Actuarial assumptions 

 2014 2013 

 % % 
Rate of increase of pensionable salaries ..........................................................................  2.0-4.5 2.2-4.8 
Rate of increase in pensions in payment and deferred pensions .....................................  2.5-3.5 2.6-5.0 
Discount rate .....................................................................................................................  3.8-4.0 4.3-4.6 
Inflation assumptions .........................................................................................................  3.2-3.5 2.9-4.6 

 

The assumed life expectancy at age 65 is: 

 

Care UK LG Pension 
Scheme Other 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 Years Years Years Years 
Current pensioners     
— males .................................................................................................  88.8 88.7 87.4 87.1 
— females ..............................................................................................  90.8 90.7 89.9 89.8 
Prospective pensioners     
— males .................................................................................................  91.1 91.0 89.4 89.2 
— females ..............................................................................................  93.2 93.0 92.0 91.8 

Sensitivity analysis 

 The net defined benefit liability for the Care UK LG scheme as at 30 September 2014 is £3.3m. 
The sensitivities shown below are only in respect of this scheme. 

The following table summarises how the defined benefit obligation would increase as a result in the 
respective assumptions: 

 2014 

 £m 
0.5% decrease in discount rate .........................................................................................  2.6 

0.5% increase in rate of increase of pensionable salaries ................................................  0.6 

0.5% increase in inflation rate ...........................................................................................  1.1 

1 year increase in member life expectancy .......................................................................  0.6 
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Future funding 

The contributions expected to be paid during the financial year ending 30 September 2015 
amount to £3.6m. 

23. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES 

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 

 2014 2013 

Group 
Land and 
buildings Other 

Land and 
buildings Other 

 £m £m £m £m 
    — within one year .....................................................  30.5 2.3 28.7 0.5 

 — within two to five years .........................................  106.9 4.1 89.1 0.3 
 — after five years .....................................................  495.8 - 381.7 4.9 

 633.2 6.4 499.5 5.7 

The group leases various offices and operational facilities under non-cancellable operating 
lease agreements. The leases have various terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.  The group 
also leases plant and machinery under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. 

The company has no operating lease commitments. 

24. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 £m £m £m £m 
Contracted for, but not provided ......................................  - 0.9 - - 

25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Cross guarantees 
The group has a number of cross guarantees between group companies relating to debtor 

balances. The directors consider that the likelihood of these guarantees being called upon is remote. 
 
New residential care home build programme 

The Care UK residential care home expansion programme involves the design, build and 
commissioning of new care homes. Some of the care homes will be developed with local authority 
contracts in place for the delivery of care to the respective local authority funded residents upon home 
opening. Certain local authority contracts include performance obligations which may, over the course 
of the contract/redevelopment program, give rise to liabilities as a consequence of delayed opening of 
the respective care home. Care UK does not expect to incur any financial loss in respect of current 
contracts in operation and does not consider any such loss would have a material adverse effect on the 
group’s business, consolidated financial position or results of operations. 
 
Excess residential care home build cost 

In line with the growth strategy of the Residential Care Services division of Care UK, the group 
enters into forward agreements with institutional funders for the development of new residential care 
homes. Under the terms of the agreements the institutional funders are liable for a predetermined value 
of the build cost of the new home and Care UK is liable for certain specific costs of bringing the care 
home into an operational state. In addition, Care UK also bears the risk of costs exceeding the agreed 
build budget. Costs can exceed the agreed budget for a wide range of reasons including changes in 
design, specification and construction. As at 30 September 2014 Care UK estimates the aggregate of 
excess build costs on current build projects to be £0.2m (2013: nil). Such costs are typically capital in 
nature and therefore do not have a material impact on results of the operation. 
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Care home suffering subsidence 
On 31 March 2014 a residential care home suffering from subsidence was closed. The care 

home is subject to an operating lease with a financial institution with an unexpired term of 22 years. As 
at 30 September 2014 a long-term solution has been agreed in principle with the property’s owner. 
Given this outline agreement Care UK considers the likelihood that it will be required to fulfil its financial 
obligation under the existing lease to be remote. 
 
26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

(a) Identity of related parties 

The group has a related party relationship with its subsidiaries and with its directors and 
executive officers. 

Silver Sea Holdings 
 
Subsequent to the acquisition of Care UK Limited, Bridgepoint Europe IV (Nominees) Limited 

and the management of Care UK have jointly established, as planned, an independent development 
group of which the parent company is Silver Sea Holdings (“Silver Sea”).  The equity interests in Silver 
Sea are an exact replica of the equity interests in Care UK Health & Social Care Holdings Limited. 
Silver Sea has been established in order to (i) build residential care homes to Care UK’s specifications; 
or (ii) to oversee the development of residential care homes by third party property developers who will 
build the care homes to Care UK’s specifications and sell them to Silver Sea on completion. In each 
case Silver Sea will enter into an agreement for lease and development with Care UK and will enter 
into a lease for each such home on its practical completion. 

 
Sites developed by Silver Sea are funded by a combination of equity contributions from its 

shareholders, loans from Care UK and loans drawn down under the debt facilities available to Silver 
Sea. The loans provided by Care UK are on arm’s length terms and subject to the provisions of both 
Care UK’s Revolving Credit Facility and Senior Secured Notes. 

 
Under a technical services agreement, Silver Sea subcontract certain of its obligations to Care 

UK and pays a fee to Care UK for performing these services. Each agreement for lease and 
development contains an obligation on Silver Sea to grant, and an obligation on Care UK to accept, a 
lease of the relevant site. 

 
Given the commonality of equity ownership between Silver Sea and Care UK, each of the 

agreements entered into between these entities in connection with these greenfield development plans 
are a related party transaction. Since the establishment of Silver Sea, the parties have entered into 
seven lease agreements in relation to sites in Orpington, Edinburgh, Hailsham, St Ives, Cheltenham, 
Worcester and Royal Leamington Spa. A further three agreements for lease and development are 
entered into for various sites across England. A number of other sites have been provisionally 
approved for development subject to the receipt of satisfactory planning permission. 

 
Rent of £1.7m (2013: nil) was paid by Care UK to Silver Sea in the year ending 30 September 

2014. Care UK received fees under the technical services agreement from Silver Sea of £1.1m (2013: 
nil) during the year ended 30 September 2014.  

 
(b) Pension plans 
 

During the year, the group made various payments to defined benefit pension plans.  Details of 
these transactions are set out in note 22 to the financial statements. 
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(c) Subsidiaries 

The group centrally manages its financing arrangements. Amounts are transferred within the 
group, dependent on the operational needs of individual companies. The directors do not consider it 
meaningful to set out the gross amounts of transfers between individual companies. Similarly the 
directors do not consider it meaningful to set out the interest and dividend payments made within the 
group as these are a function of the group’s central financing arrangements. There are no provisions or 
expenses recognised for doubtful debts with subsidiary undertakings. 

Details of the company’s cash and indebtedness are set out in notes 13 and 15. 

(d) Transactions with related parties 

During the year Care UK loaned £1.5m (2013: £5.1m) to the Silver Sea group, all of which was 
outstanding as at 30 September 2014.  The loan is an unsecured, interest bearing loan.  Interest is 
charged at an arms-length rate.  

(e) Transactions with key management personnel 

Identity 

The group and company have identified key management personnel as being the directors of 
the company and the members of the executive committee. 

Shareholdings 

No directors or other key management personnel hold any of the issued ordinary share capital 
of the company. 

Compensation 
Key management personnel’s compensation is as follows: 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
Salaries and short-term employment benefits ..................................................................  3.0 2.1 
Contributions to defined contribution plans .......................................................................  0.2 0.1 

 3.2  2.2 

Total remuneration and directors’ emoluments are included in note 4. 

Loans and other transactions 

There have been no loans or other transactions with key management personnel in 2014 
(2013: £nil). 

27. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS 

In line with the growth strategy of the Residential Care Services division of Care UK, the group 
enters into forward agreements with institutional funders for the development of new residential care 
homes. As part of these funding arrangements Care UK agrees to enter into a commercial operating 
lease in respect of the new care home upon practical completion. The lease terms can vary but are 
typically of between 20 and 30 years duration. As at 30 September 2014 Care UK has six such build 
projects in progress whereby future operating lease commitments will commence upon completion of 
the new home. 
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28. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY AND CONTROLLING PARTY 

The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Care UK Health and Social Care Finance 
Limited, which is registered in England and Wales.  Care UK Health and Social Care Finance Limited 
does not prepare group financial statements. 

The company’s ultimate parent company and controlling party is Care UK Health and Social 
Care Holdings Limited, which is registered in England and Wales. 

Copies of the financial statements of Care UK Health and Social Care Holdings Limited, which 
includes the consolidated results of this group, are available from the company’s registered office at 
Connaught House, 850 The Crescent, Colchester Business Park, Colchester, Essex, CO4 9QB. 

29. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY AND JOINT VENTURE UNDERTAKINGS 
 

The following principal subsidiary undertakings, which are incorporated in England and Wales 
and operate in the UK, have been included in the consolidated financial statements and are all directly 
held by the holding company: 

  Ownership interest 

Subsidiaries Nature of business 2014 2013 

  % % 
Care UK Health and 

Social Care Plc 
Intermediary holding and finance company 100 100 

Care UK Limited Intermediary holding company 100 100 
Care UK Community 

Partnerships 
Limited 

Provides specialist healthcare, intermediate 
care, social care and facilities management 
services for the elderly 

100 100 

Care UK Homecare 
Limited 

Provides carers to support people in their own 
home and provides specialist healthcare 
professionals 

100 100 

Care UK Mental 
Health Partnerships 
Limited 

Provides specialised nursing and residential care 
for adults with mental illness 

100 100 

Care UK Learning 
Disabilities Services 
Limited 

Provides residential and supported living 
services, care and day activities, for people with 
learning disabilities 

100 100 

Care UK Clinical 
Services Limited 

Provides primary care services to the public 
sector 

100 100 

A full list of all subsidiaries will be included in the company’s annual return. 
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To the members of Care UK Health & Social Care Investments Limited (company number 
07158140) 

We have audited the financial statements of Care UK Health and Social Care Investments Limited for 
the year ended 30 September 2014 set out on pages F-2 to F-47.  The financial reporting framework 
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as 
applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.   

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 
16 of the Companies Act 2006.  Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no 
other purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed.   

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor 

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page F-3, the directors 
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a 
true and fair view.  Our responsibility is to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).  Those 
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting 
Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.  

Opinion on financial statements 

In our opinion:   

 the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent 
company’s affairs as at 30 September 2014 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;   

 the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted 
by the EU;  

 the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs 
as adopted by the EU and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 
2006; and   

 the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2006.   

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial 
year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.  

  

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires 
us to report to you if, in our opinion:   

 adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for 
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or   

 the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 
returns; or   

 certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or   

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.   

 
 

Ian Brokenshire (Senior Statutory Auditor)   

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor   

Chartered Accountants   
6 Lower Brook Street  
Ipswich  
IP4 1AP  
16 December 2014 
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BASIS OF PREPARATION 

 

This group proforma pre-IFRIC 12 non-statutory financial information (unaudited) does not 
constitute statutory financial statements as defined in section 434 of the Companies Act 2006.  They 
do not include all of the information required for full annual financial statements and should be read in 
conjunction with the statutory financial statements of the group for the year ended 30 September 
2014 which were approved by the Directors and authorised for issue on 16 December 2014.  
Statutory consolidated financial statements for the group for the year ended 30 September 2014, 
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU 
(“adopted IFRS”), on which KPMG LLP gave an unqualified opinion, did not include a reference to 
any matters to which the auditors drew attention by way of emphasis without qualifying their report 
and did not contain a statement under section 498 (2) or (3) of the Companies Act 2006. 

The accounts are presented in pounds sterling, rounded to the nearest hundred thousand 
and have been prepared under the historic cost convention. 

The group proforma pre-IFRIC 12 non-statutory financial information (unaudited) has been 
prepared by the directors pursuant to the requirements detailed on page 204 of the offering 
memorandum and on the basis of the recognition and measurement principles contained in 
applicable IFRSs as adopted by the EU, with the exception of accounting interpretation IFRIC 12 
Service Concession Arrangements as detailed below, and in accordance with the following 
accounting policies which have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered 
material in relation to the group proforma pre-IFRIC 12 non-statutory financial information 
(unaudited). 

 

Definition 

The term ‘proforma’ in this group proforma pre-IFRIC 12 non-statutory financial information 
(unaudited) has been defined on page 205 of the offering memorandum as ‘prepared in accordance 
with GAAP before giving effect to the accounting standard IFRIC 12 as amended or supplemented 
from time to time’. 

 

Accounting policies 

The preparation of the group proforma pre-IFRIC 12 non-statutory financial information 
(unaudited) requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.  The 
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of 
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources.  Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods. 

Except as described below, the same accounting policies and methods of computation are 
followed in this group proforma pre-IFRIC 12 non-statutory financial information (unaudited) as were 
applied in the group’s 2014 Annual report: 

IFRIC 12 “Service Concession Arrangements” – this interpretation addresses the accounting 
by private sector operators involved in the provision of public sector infrastructure assets and 
services.  For all arrangements falling within the scope of the interpretation, the infrastructure 
assets are not recognised as property, plant and equipment of the operator.  Rather, 
depending on the terms of the arrangement, the operator recognises: 

• a financial asset – where the operator has an unconditional right to receive a specified 
amount of cash or other financial asset over the life of the arrangement; or 
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• an intangible asset – where the operator’s future cash flows are not specified (e.g. 
where they will vary according to the usage of the infrastructure asset); or 

• both a financial asset and an intangible asset where the operator’s return is provided 
partially by a financial asset and partially by an intangible asset. 

As a consequence of this treatment the operator now recognises investment income in 
respect of the financial asset on an effective interest basis and amortisation of any intangible asset 
arising.  In addition, the timing of profit recognition changes over the life of the contract with no 
change in the overall project cash flows arising therein.  This group proforma pre-IFRIC 12 non-
statutory financial information (unaudited) has been prepared to present financial information on a 
pre-IFRIC 12 basis. 
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CARE UK HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INVESTMENTS GROUP 
PROFORMA PRE-IFRIC 12 NON-STATUTORY CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 

COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED) 
For the year ended 30 September 2014 

  2014 2013  

  £m £m  
 Revenue ....................................................................................................................  728.1 659.6  
 Cost of sales ..............................................................................................................  (642.2) (572.4)  

 Gross profit ..............................................................................................................  85.9 87.2  
 Administrative expenses ............................................................................................  (101.5) (94.7)  

 Operating loss before financing expense .............................................................  (15.6) (7.5)  

     

      Adjusted EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation 
and amortisation) ....................................................................................................  52.8 56.2 

 

 Depreciation of tangible assets ..................................................................................  (32.0) (25.4)  

 Adjusted operating profit ............................................................................................  20.8 30.8  
 Amortisation of intangible assets ...............................................................................  (20.9) (20.1)  
 Impairment of intangible assets .................................................................................  - (1.8)  
 Non-recurring items ...................................................................................................  (13.0) (16.4)  

 IAS 17 lease expense ................................................................................................  (2.4) -  

 Less: Share of joint venture EBITDA .........................................................................  (0.1) -  

 Operating loss before financing expenses ...........................................................  (15.6) (7.5)  

     
     
 Financial income ........................................................................................................  1.8 0.9  
 Financial expense ......................................................................................................  (58.3) (36.6)  

 Net financing expense .............................................................................................  (56.5) (35.7)  

     
 Share of results of joint venture .................................................................................  (0.3) -  
 Loss before taxation ................................................................................................  (72.4) (43.2)  

 Taxation .....................................................................................................................  11.4 12.9  

 Loss for the period ..................................................................................................  (61.0) (30.3)  

     

 Loss attributable to     
 Equity holders of the parent .......................................................................................  (61.0) (30.3)  

 Non-controlling interest ..............................................................................................  - -  

  (61.0) (30.3)  

     

 Other comprehensive (expense)/income ..............................................................     

 Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension plan ..........................................  (1.5) 1.4  
 Deferred taxation on actuarial losses/(gains) ............................................................  0.3 (0.3)  

 Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the period, net of 
taxation ..................................................................................................................  (1.2) 1.1 

 

 Total comprehensive loss for the period ..............................................................  (62.2) (29.2)  

     
 Total comprehensive loss attributable to     

 Equity holders of the parent .......................................................................................  (62.2) (29.2)  

 Non-controlling interest ..............................................................................................  - -  

  (62.2) (29.2)  
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CARE UK HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INVESTMENTS GROUP 
PROFORMA PRE-IFRIC 12 NON-STATUTORY BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED) 

As at 30 September 2014 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
Assets   
Property, plant and equipment ..........................................................................  308.8 306.9 
Intangible assets ...............................................................................................  202.3 223.3 
Other financial assets........................................................................................  0.6 - 
Amounts due from related party undertakings ..................................................  18.0 15.1 
Equity-accounted investments ..........................................................................  5.5 5.4 

Other receivables ..............................................................................................  8.9 - 

Other investments .............................................................................................  - 0.1 

Total non-current assets ................................................................................  544.1 550.8 

Inventories .........................................................................................................  4.1 3.0 
Trade and other receivables .............................................................................  86.9 87.5 
Cash and cash equivalents ...............................................................................  20.9 34.6 
Assets held for sale ...........................................................................................  0.4 0.3 

Total current assets ........................................................................................  112.3 125.4 

Total assets .....................................................................................................  656.4 676.2 

Liabilities   
Financial liabilities .............................................................................................  (1.3) (1.9) 
Trade and other payables .................................................................................  (155.8) (138.8) 

Total current liabilities ....................................................................................  (157.1) (140.7) 

Financial liabilities .............................................................................................  (398.5) (370.0) 
Other non-current liabilities ...............................................................................  (14.6) (4.3) 
Deferred tax liabilities ........................................................................................  (7.2) (20.0) 

Total non-current liabilities ............................................................................  (420.3) (394.3) 

Total liabilities .................................................................................................  (577.4) (535.0) 

Net assets ........................................................................................................  79.0 141.2 

Equity   
Issued share capital ..........................................................................................  210.7 210.7 
Retained earnings .............................................................................................  (131.7) (69.5) 

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent ............................  79.0 141.2 
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CARE UK HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE INVESTMENTS GROUP 
PROFORMA PRE-IFRIC 12 NON-STATUTORY CASH FLOW STATEMENT (UNAUDITED) 

For the year ended 30 September 2014 

 2014 2013 

 £m £m 
Cash flow from operating activities   
Loss for the period before taxation .............................................................................  (72.4) (43.2) 
Share of results of joint venture ..................................................................................  0.3 - 
Financial income .........................................................................................................  (1.8) (0.9) 
Financial expense .......................................................................................................  58.3 36.6 
Depreciation of tangible assets ...................................................................................  32.0 25.4 
Amortisation of intangible assets ................................................................................  20.9 20.1 
Impairment of intangible assets ..................................................................................  - 1.8 
(Profit)/loss on disposal of fixed assets.......................................................................  (0.1) 0.1 
(Increase)/decrease in inventory .................................................................................  (0.8) 0.1 
Increase in trade and other receivables ......................................................................  (7.4) (19.4) 
Increase in trade and other payables..........................................................................  17.9 10.8 

Cash flow from operations .......................................................................................  46.9 31.4 

Income taxes paid .......................................................................................................  - (0.3) 

Net cash flow from operating activities ..................................................................  46.9 31.1 

Cash flow from investing activities   
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment ..................................................  (32.4) (34.9) 
Loans to related party undertakings............................................................................  (1.5) (5.1) 
Investment in joint venture ..........................................................................................  (0.1) (1.4) 
Loans to joint venture ..................................................................................................  (0.2) (4.2) 
Interest received ..........................................................................................................  0.4 - 
Net proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment ........................................  3.1 1.7 

Payments to acquire subsidiary undertakings (net of cash acquired) ........................  - (67.1) 

Net cash flow from investing activities ..................................................................  (30.7) (111.0) 

Cash flow from financing activities   
Proceeds from new loans ...........................................................................................  658.0 177.6 
Repayments of amounts borrowed .............................................................................  (625.5) (61.1) 
Interest paid ................................................................................................................  (51.4) (34.4) 
Finance costs .................................................................................................................  (8.7) (4.4) 

Payment of capital element of finance lease payments ..............................................  (2.3) (1.5) 

Net cash flow from financing activities ..................................................................  (29.9) 76.2 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ...........................................................  (13.7) (3.7) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period .........................................  34.6 38.3 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period .............................................  20.9 34.6 
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CARE UK HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INVESTMENTS LIMITED GROUP 

PROFORMA PRE-IFRIC 12 NON-STATUTORY CONSOLIDATED SEGMENTAL REPORTING 
NOTE (UNAUDITED) 

 
 

2014 

Residential 
Care 

Services 
Community 

Services 
Health 
Care Other Group 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Revenue .....................................................................  224.0 122.0 370.1 12.0 728.1 

Adjusted EBITDA .......................................................  24.2 8.1 31.3 (10.8) 52.8 

Depreciation of tangible assets ..................................  (13.0) (1.8) (15.2) (2.0) (32.0) 

Adjusted operating profit/(loss) ..................................  11.2 6.3 16.1 (12.8) 20.8 
Amortisation of intangible assets ...............................  (6.8) (5.2) (8.9) - (20.9) 
Non-recurring items....................................................  (7.9) (1.8) (2.0) (1.3) (13.0) 

IAS 17 lease expense ................................................  (1.9) - - (0.5) (2.4) 

Less: Share of joint venture EBITDA .........................  - - (0.1) - (0.1) 

Operating (loss)/profit before financing 
expenses and taxation ...........................................  (5.4) (0.7) 5.1 (14.6) (15.6) 

Net financing expense ...............................................      (56.5) 

Share of results of joint venture .................................      (0.3) 

Taxation .....................................................................      11.4 

Loss for the period .....................................................      (61.0) 

      

Operating lease charges: Land & 
buildings (excluding IAS 17 lease 
expense) .................................................................  (15.6) (1.8) (14.3) (0.4) (32.1) 

 

 

2013 

Residential 
Care 

Services 
Community 

Services 
Health 
Care Other Group      

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Revenue .....................................................................  199.1 119.2 329.4 11.9 659.6 

Adjusted EBITDA .......................................................  29.4 9.4 25.2 (7.8) 56.2 
Depreciation of tangible assets ..................................  (10.1) (1.8) (11.8) (1.7) (25.4) 

Adjusted operating profit/(loss) ..................................  19.3 7.6 13.4 (9.5) 30.8 
Amortisation of intangible assets ...............................  (5.6) (6.5) (7.9) (0.1) (20.1) 

Impairment of intangible assets .................................  - - (1.8) - (1.8) 

Non-recurring items..........................................  (0.6) (0.9) (15.3) 0.4 (16.4) 

Operating profit/(loss).................................................  13.1 0.2 (11.6) (9.2) (7.5) 

Net financing expense ...............................................      (35.7) 

Taxation .....................................................................      12.9 

Loss for the period .....................................................      (30.3) 

      

Operating lease charges: Land & 
buildings (excluding IAS 17 lease 
expense) .................................................................  (11.3) (1.8) (12.8) (0.1) (26.0) 

 


